
 
 

 
 
 
 

Regular Session of the
Niagara Falls Water Board

July 30, 2018   5:00 PM at
Michael C. O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plant

 
 

1. Attendance and Preliminary Matters

a.      Forster ___Kimble ____ Larkin____ Leffler___ O’Callaghan____

b.      Letters and Communications

c.       Public Comment (All speakers must register with the Chairman prior 
to roll call and are limited to three minutes per person – total time 
for all speakers may not exceed one hour)  

d.       Approval of Minutes from June 25, 2018 

 

 
2. Executive Director 

 
I.       Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed during 

July 23 Work Session (if any):
a.       Consent order 

i.          Draft Q2 report
ii.          GHD consent order support

iii.          AECOM consent order support
b.      Outreach/PR

i.          Media day Martin Group - Highlighting  
accomplishments

c.       Vanguard Report
d.      Grants Update 

i.          Draft GHD Engineering Report – WWTP and 
GPS Rehabilitation

e.       SPAR 3D
f.        Request for Proposal for WWTP Projects

i.          Scope of Work



g.       Five-year Capital Plan and Bond Information 
 

3. Director of Operations
 

I.       Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed during 
July 23 Work Session (if any):

a.       Upgrade of camera truck software resolution $20K
b.      NAASCO training
c.       Vanguard Security – Disposition Relative to Recommendations

 
II.  Chemical Tank Removal at WWTP

 
 
 
 

4. Superintendent
 

I.       Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed during 
July 23 Work Session (if any):

a.       Private Fire hydrant update.
b.      NFWB Fire Hydrant update.
c.       Valves GPS program.

 
   
 
 

5. Engineering
 

I.       Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed during 
July 23 Work Session (if any):

a.       National Grid Annual Savings Report
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

6. Personnel Items
 

I.       Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed during 
July 23 Work Session (if any):

a.       Personnel Actions and Reports
i. General Merchandise and Material Control 

Specialist
ii. Records Retention Control Specialist

b.      Organization Chart
 

II.    Staff Requested:
 

Will the Board Formally Approve Personnel Actions and Report dated 
Monday, July 23, 2018?

 
 
 
 

7. Information Technology (IT) Dept.
 

I.       Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed during 
July 23 Work Session (if any):

a.       Verizon One Talk Presentation
 
 
 
 

8. Financial Reports
 

I.       Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed during 
July 23 Work Session (if any):

a.       NFWB Bank Accounts
b.      Budget Monitoring Expenses – June
c.       July 20, 2018 Payment Listing
d.      Credit Card Report
e.       Bank on Buffalo Transition Update
f.        Finance Department Handout

 
 
 
 

9. Reports
 

a.  



a. O&M Report
b. Safety
b.  

 
 

10.   General Counsel and Secretary
 

I.       Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed during 
July 23 Work Session (if any):

a.       T-Mobile – Request for Expansion of Lease Space 
     at 56th St. Water Tank

b.      Janus v. ASFCME – Impact on NFWB
i. Department of Labor Guidance

ii. Department of Labor FAQ
c.       American Water Resources Water and Sewer Line Protection 

Program Partnership
 

II.    New Items
 

a. NY Alerts Regarding Sewer Overflows
i. Sign up without a NY.gov Account

ii. Sign up with a NY.gov Account
b.  Twitter Page - https://twitter.com/NFWB_Official

 
 
 
 
 

11.  From the Chairman
 
 
 
 

12. Resolutions 
 

a.       RESOLUTION 2018-07-001 -- AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF 
HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE TO ENHANCE CAMERA TRUCK 
CAPABILITIES 

i. Supporting Document:  Cyncon Pipelogix Quote
 

b.       RESOLUTION 2018-07-002 -- AWARD BID FOR SEWER LINE 
CHEMICAL ROOT CONTROL 

i. Award Recommendation Memorandum
ii. Bid Tally Sheet

 



c.       RESOLUTION 2018-07-003 -- AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF 
HARDWARE AND SERVICES TO UPGRADE TO VERIZON ONE 
TALK PHONE SYSTEM 

i. Verizon One Talk Service Quote
ii. Connected Solutions Hardware and Installation Quote

 
d.      RESOLUTION 2018-07-004 -- AUTHORIZING FUNDS FOR GHD 

TO PERFORM WORK REQUIRED BY CONSENT ORDER

 

 
i. GHD’s June 27, 2018 Proposal

 
e.       RESOLUTION 2018-07-005 – SEQRA NOTICE LEAD AGENCY 

DESIGNATION AND DETERMINATION OF SIGNIFICANCE FOR 
THE NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD BEECH AVE WATER 
TANK IMPROVEMENTS 

i. Full EAF Part 1
ii. Full EAF Part 2

iii. Full EAF Part 3
iv. Copy of Resolution 2018-02-20
v. Letters from Interested Agencies

vi. Water Tank Study
 

f.         RESOLUTION 2018-07-006 -- ADOPTING FIVE YEAR CAPITAL 
PLAN 

i. Proposed Five Year Capital Plan
 

g.       RESOLUTION 2018-07-007  -- REQUIRING WEEKLY STAFF 
REPORTS TO BOARD MEMBERS 
 

h.       RESOLUTION 2018-07-008 -- DIRECTING STAFF TO REQUEST 
PROPOSALS FOR FORENSIC ACCOUNTING SERVICES 
 

i.         RESOLUTION 2018-07-009 -- SETTING WILLIAM WRIGHT’S 
SALARY AFTER SIX-MONTH CONTRACTUAL REVIEW 
 

j.         RESOLUTION 2018-07-010 -- PURCHASE OF HYDRAULIC 
GUILLOTINE CUTTER WITH SAFETY FUNDS 

i. E.H. Wachs Quote
 

k.        RESOLUTION 2018-07-011 -- REQUIRING IT DEPARTMENT 
REVIEW OF PURCHASES FOR POSSIBLE INTEGRATION WITH 
WATER BOARD SYSTEMS  
 



l.         RESOLUTION 2018-07-012 -- ADOPTING NYS DEPARTMENT OF 
LABOR GUIDANCE REGARDING JANUS CASE 

i. Department of Labor Guidance
 

m.    RESOLUTION 2018-07-013 -- AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH JONI CIMINO  
 

n.       RESOLUTION 2018-07-014 -- STRATUS SERVER MIGRATION 
SERVICES 

i. Applied Sciences Group, Inc., Proposal

 

o.       RESOLUTION 2018-07-015 -- AWARDING CONTRACT FOR 
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE REPLACEMENT PROJECT AT 
66TH STREET AND GIRARD AVENUE 

i. 4th Generation Construction, Inc., Proposal
 

p.       RESOLUTION 2018-07-016 -- AUTHORIZING LIFT STATION 
SCADA CONTROL 

i. Proposal and Estimates
 

q.       RESOLUTION 2018-07-017 -- AUTHORIZING FUNDS TO 
PROCURE TWO ADDITIONAL SETS OF SEDIMENTATION 
BASIN SCRAPER BLADES 
 

 
 
 

13. Unfinished Business 
 
 
 
 

14. New Business & Additional Items for Discussion
 
 
 
 

15. Executive Session and/or Recess for Seeking Legal Advice
i. Update regarding litigation 

 
   (Additional topics only if required and announced during the meeting.) 
 
 
 



 
16. Adjournment of Meeting

 



Page 1 of 11

Regular Session of the
Niagara Falls Water Board

June 25, 2018   5:00 PM at
Michael C. O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plant

1. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance: Meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m.

1. Roll Call:

Forster __P___Kimble ___P___ Larkin___P___ Leffler__P___ O’Callaghan___P___

2. (a)  Letters and Communications 

(b)  Public Comment (All speakers must register with the Chairman prior to roll 

call and are limited to three minutes per person – total time for all speakers may 

not exceed one hour)  

1. Jabril and Ellen Shareef spoke in front of the board regarding their May 2018 

water bill, for the amount of $11,799. Their existing vacant rental property is 

located at 411 Hyde Park Blvd. Ms. Shareef explains there was a meter reading that 

was completed on April 1, 2018 with no indication of outstanding water usage; 

even though she explains they did experience a pipe leak in their basement around 

the same time the meter reading was taken. Ms. Shareef spoke with customer 

service at the NFWB and was instructed to bring the matter in front of the board 

due to some restrictions regarding bill adjustments. Mr. and Ms. Shareef are 



Page 2 of 11

seeking a bill adjustment at this time. Ms. Walker recommends completing the bill 

adjustment application and submitting the completed application for review.

2. Ronald Cunningham spoke in front of the board regarding his $2,745 water bill. 

He explains his property is a commercial building that is currently vacant. Mr. 

Cunningham’s property is located at 559 19th St. The NFWB meter shop completed 

a meter read with no significant findings. Mr. Cunningham states he believes the 

issue is due to a meter malfunction, because he has not made any repairs since the 

high meter reading. He also raises concern with an additional property located at 

551 19th St. This building is a residential, 3 unit apartment complex. There are 

tenants living in a 3 apartments at this property. Mr. Cunningham has also 

completed an adjustment application for this matter as well.

3. Niagara Falls Councilman Ezra Scott spoke in front of the board on behalf of 

Roswell Park Cancer Institute in hopes to making the NFWB a tobacco-free 

workplace. Mr. Scott mentioned signage will be supplied if we decide to move 

forward.  He commended the Water Board on the great job it has been doing.

3. Approval of Minutes from May 21, 2018

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin

Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Abstain _ O’Callaghan_ Y_

Motion was carried 4-0

4.  Executive Director

a. Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed During 
June 18 Work Session (if any):

a. Consent Order – AECOM & GHD
i. AECOM Draft Report on Work Item 10

ii. GHD Draft Report on Various WWTP Projects
iii. Scrapers – Sed. Basin #5 – (See Resolution 2018-06-011)



Page 3 of 11

Mr. Porter explains that sedimentation basin #5 will be taken offline on July 9th to be 
pumped out and cleaned. Mollenberg-Betz Inc. will be fabricating the necessary parts 
needed for the sedimentation basin repair. On July 17th, the NFWB employees will 
reassemble the basin.

Mr. Forster asks if spare scrapers for the basins will be fabricated. 

Mr. Porter confirms.

iv. Grit Screw - Sed. Basin #1 - $30,000 - (See Resolution 2018-06-
011)

v. Gates - $21,000 - (See Resolution 2018-06-011)
vi. Sludge Building - 3 pumps are installed, 1 more needed.  On 

schedule to be completed by June 2018.

b. WWTP 
i. Payments - GHD, AECOM, & Danforth

ii. Electric - Second feed to be completed by 6/22/18
iii. Backflow prevention - 2 mechanics have passed their courses in 

order to complete necessary repairs, in order to repair our 
backflows.

c. 5 Year Capital Projects
i. Option 1 – Assumes NYS Funding

ii. Option 2 – Assumes only NFWB Resources
iii. Option 3 – Includes outfalls

d. Vanguard Report

b. New Items:

a. Update on Buffalo Ave. Water Main Replacement Project
b. Revised 5-year Capital Plan

Still working on refining the plan and evaluating potential impact on rates to fund 
these improvements.  Mr. Forster requested that several problematic water mains be 
added to the draft plan.

c. Chlorine odor complaint – June 20, 2018

Mr. Porter noted that Water Board staff and consultants are working on improving the 
chlorine injection process, which may help to address that issue.

d. Draft Internal Controls Policy



Page 4 of 11

5. Director of Operations

1. Call-in to security procedures – temporarily on hold 

The board questions the “hold-up” regarding the implementation of this requested 
procedure.

Mr. Perry explains the Union has a right to request further information regarding this 
procedure prior to implementation.

Mr. O’Callaghan questions how long this process with take?

Mr. Perry states it will take an additional few weeks to finalize everything.

Mr. Forster states he would like Mr. Costello to gather job description information for 
the employees who have handled these calls in the past. 

6. Superintendent

I. Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed 
During June 18 Work Session (if any):

a. Grant-Funded Lead Service Replacement Project

Mr. O’Callaghan asks Mr. Wright and Mr. Eagler if their crews involved with this 
work are full.

Mr. Wright states they are 1 man short.

7. Engineering

1. DOT ADA Compliance Program – (See Resolution 2018-06-006)

This project impacts the Water Board because it involves raising a few Water Board 
manhole covers.



Page 5 of 11

8. Personnel Items

1.   Review of Org Chart

2.    Personnel Actions and Reports

The Board discussed with staff what criteria are involved in recommending a 
promotion from MW2 to MW3.

Motion to approve the personnel actions by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. 
Kimble
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 5-0

9. Information Technology (IT) Dept.

Mr. Perry states the Ethernet cables have been installed for the time management 
system; effects bargaining with Union is moving ahead as well.

10. Financial Reports

I. Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed During 
June 18 Work Session (if any):

a. June 2018 Department Overview Report
b. NFWB and Bank on Buffalo Transition
c. NFWB Bank Accounts
d. Budget Monitoring Expenses - April
e. Budget Monitoring Revenues - April
f. Overtime Hours #201812

Mr. O’Callaghan states he would like Mr. Costello and Ms. Walker to work together to 
review the how water suppliers in surrounding areas handle high water bills; possibly 
re-addressing our water bill adjustment procedure if a better process is identified. 

Mr. Forster requests from Ms. Walker a report for anything on track to exceed 60% of 
the budget for 2018, and asked whether there have been any budget transfers.  Noted 
that the 2019 budget process will begin in July.  



Page 6 of 11

11. Reports

I. Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed During June 
18 Work Session (if any):

a. O&M Report
b. Safety

No recordable/reportable injuries have been mentioned at this time. 

12. Attorney/Legal

I. Questions or Comments on the Following Items Discussed During June 
18 Work Session (if any):

a. Legal Department Mission Statement and Needs Assessment
b. Recovery on Hydrant Claim 
c. Annual Execution of Certain Governance Documents
d. Fiduciary Duty Acknowledgment
e. Certificate of Independent Director

II. New Items

a. American Water Resources Proposal

Mr. Costello recommends that the board members allow him to proceed with 
negotiating a proposed agreement with AWR whereby the Water Board would help 
AWR offer water and sewer line protection programs to Water Board customers in 
exchange for a share of the revenue generated by AWR.

13. From the Chairman

Mr. O’Callaghan shared his gratitude in regards to the hard work of the employees at 
the NFWB. He states everyone is going a great job, building necessary up crew sizes as 
well as the completed of the WWTP gates.

14. Resolutions 

a. RESOLUTION 2018-06-001 – PROHIBITING ALTERATION OF 
WATER BOARD PROPERTY WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 5-0



Page 7 of 11

b. RESOLUTION 2018-06-002 – HIRING PROCEDURES

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 5-0

c. RESOLUTION 2018-06-003- REVISING CREDIT CARD POLICY 
TO PROHIBIT TRANSFER OF CREDIT CARDS OUTSIDE OF 
DEPARTMENTS

1. Supporting Document:  June 2018 Proposed Revised Credit Card 
Policy

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 5-0

d. RESOLUTION 2018-06-004 – AUTHORIZING INFORMATION 
CAMPAIGN ADVERTISING

Ms. Kimble questioned the money spent on the Martin Group and the cost of 
advertising.  Ms. Walker noted that $5,100 has been paid for ads in The Niagara 
Reporter.  Ms. Larkin added that the Water Board paid the Martin Group an additional 
$2,500 to create those ads.  Mr. Porter explained that the resolution is for print ads to 
communicate relevant information to Water Board ratepayers (past ads have explained 
sewer surcharges, how the wastewater treatment plant works).  Ms. Kimble said her 
concern was more with the Martin Group bills which do not really detail what work 
was performed, what specific services were provided, but will support the resolution to 
the extent it provides public information and notices.  This is less expensive than the 
cost of mailing information to ratepayers.  Ms. Larkin states that she feels this is a poor 
way to spend $10,000 and that the $5,100 to date was spent unwisely.  The resolution 
for an additional $10,000 is not limited to public notices required by law and she will 
not support the resolution unless it is limited to public notices required by law.  
Mr. O’Callaghan feels we have to communicate with and educate the public and that 
this is the least expensive way to do things.  

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ N _ Leffler_ N_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 3-0



Page 8 of 11

e. RESOLUTION 2018-06-005 – AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF 
MARYANN TAIBI CLAIM FOR DAMAGE TO SHRUB AT 2948 
WOODLAWN AVENUE

1. Supporting Document:  Notice of Claim, Maryann Taibi
2. Supporting Document:  Repair Estimates

Motion to approve by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 5-0

f. RESOLUTION 2018-06-006- GRANTING THE STATE OF NEW 
YORK AUTHORITY TO PERFORM AN ADJUSTMENT OF 
NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD FACILITIES AND 
AGREEMENT TO MAINTAIN FACILITIES ADJUSTED VIA THE 
STATE-LET CONTRACT

1. Supporting Document:  Correspondence and Forms Related to 
Department of Transportation ADA Improvement Program 
(adjusts depth of Water Board manholes on Military Road)

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 5-0

g. RESOLUTION 2018-06-007 –COMMITTING TO FUND OR BOND 
EXPENSES OF PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS TO SEWER 
PLANT, WATER MAINS, AND BEECH AVE. WATER TANK 

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 5-0

h. RESOLUTION 2018-06-008 - FINANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS

Motion to approve by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 5-0



Page 9 of 11

i. RESOLUTION 2018-06-009 - GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 5-0

j. RESOLUTION 2016-06-010 - REQUIRING THAT COSTS OF 
COOPERATION WITH OTHER MUNICIPAL ENTITIES BE 
TRACKED

1. Supporting Document:  Draft Cost of Cooperation Tracking Form  

Ms. Leffler asked what provisions are made if Water Board equipment loaned to 
other municipal entities is damaged?  Mr. Drury will work with General Counsel to 
add some relevant language to the tracking form.

Motion to approve by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Mr. Forster
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 5-0

k. 2018-06-011 - AUTHORIZING FUNDS TO COMPLETE REPAIRS 
TO WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT SEDIMENTATION 
BASIN SCRAPERS, GRIT SCREW, AND GATES

Motion to amend resolution to state under the resolved section, “repair or 
replacement of the scraper blade assembly in Sedimentation Basin #5, with the 
scraper blade replaced with stainless steel in order to extend its service life, and 
procurement of a spare scraper blade and complete assembly to reduce the time 
required to make future repairs, at a total estimated cost of $120,000.”

Motion to amend by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Larkin

Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 5-0

Motion to approve by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y _
Motion was carried 5-0

l. 2018-06-012 - AUTHORIZING FUNDS TO RESTORE SCADA 
SYSTEM FUNCTIONALITY AND TO PREPARE A REPORT ON 
NEEDED IMPROVEMENTS

      Motion by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Kimble to approve.
      Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y 
      Motion was carried 5-0



Page 10 of 11

Walk-on-Resolutions

Motion to consider walk on resolutions numbered 2018-06-013 and 2018-06-014 by 
Ms. Kimble and seconded by Mr. Forster
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y 
Motion was carried 5-0

Resolution 2018-06-013 – Authorizing Agreement with Modern Corporation to Dispose of 
Approximately 600 Tons of Water Treatment Plant Residuals, Also Known as Alum Sludge 

Motion to approve by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y 
Motion was carried 5-0

Resolution 2018-06-014 – Authorizing Change Order for Gorge Pumping Station Roof 
Replacement Project

Motion to approve by Mr. Forster and seconded by Ms. Leffler
Forster_ Y _ Kimble_ Y _ Larkin_ Y _ Leffler_ Y_ O’Callaghan_ Y 
Motion was carried 5-0

15. Unfinished Business 

Nothing was discussed at this time. 

16. New Business & Additional Items for Discussion

Mr. Forster states he would like there to be a daily checklist implemented where 
employees observe and track potential or existing problems with the sedimentation 
basins.

Mr. Porter states there is a shared primary performance comprehensive checklist to be 
completed on a routine basis.

 

17. Executive Session and/or Recess for Seeking Legal Advice

The Board voted to enter into an executive session to discuss two matters related to 
collective bargaining at 7:13 p.m., but before the public was cleared from the room it 
was noted that these matters (the time management system and call in procedures) 
already had been discussed in the open session.  The Board determined that therefore 



Page 11 of 11

there was no need for executive session, voted to exit executive session, and at 
7:15 p.m. voted to adjourn the meeting.

18. Adjournment of Meeting



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD, NEW YORK 
Cash Flow Projections based on a $12,000,000 bond issuance in 2019 

 

Line 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenues

1 Water and wastewater user payments 31,231,999 32,628,068 34,556,970 34,897,742 35,241,922 
2 Interest earnings 459,709      459,709      459,709      459,709      459,709      
3 Total 31,691,708 33,087,777 35,016,679 35,357,451 35,701,631 

Operations and Maintenance Expenses
4 Salaries and benefits 11,713,075 12,123,974 12,551,922 12,997,703 13,462,137 
5 Chemicals/sludge 5,068,132   5,490,495   5,581,645   5,674,617   4,741,617   
6 Insurance/safety 504,189      514,273      524,558      535,049      535,049      
7 Maintenance 1,255,748   1,280,863   1,306,480   1,332,610   1,332,610   
8 Utilities 1,302,049   1,328,090   1,354,652   1,381,745   1,381,745   
9 Other expenses 1,588,377   1,620,145   1,652,547   1,685,598   1,685,598   
10 Authority/Board expenses 875,512      893,022      910,883      929,100      929,100      
11 PILOT payment to City 750,000      765,000      780,300      795,906      795,906      
12 Total 23,057,082 24,015,861 24,662,987 25,332,329 24,863,763 

13 Revenues available for debt service 8,634,626   9,071,916   10,353,692 10,025,122 10,837,869 

Debt Service
14 Debt service on outstanding bonds 7,401,817   7,427,360   7,363,716   7,021,537   7,369,642   
15 Debt service on future Authority bonds -             -             1,470,000   1,480,000   1,480,000   
16 Total 7,401,817   7,427,360   8,833,716   8,501,537   8,849,642   

17 Surplus (line 13 - line 16) 1,232,809   1,644,556   1,519,976   1,523,585   1,988,227   

18 Debt Service Coverage (minimum 1.15) 1.17           1.22           1.17           1.18           1.22           

19 Proposed Rate Increase 3.0% 6.0% 1.0% 1.0%  



NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD, NEW YORK 
NOTES 

 

 2018 costs and revenues come directly from the budget document as year-to-date figures (through April 2018) were for the most part, 
consistent with budget. 

o Exception for sludge removal - Per management’s request, sludge removal budget was increased $3.4 million over the existing 
budget allocated through 2021.  

 Assumed a 2% increase on personnel and contractual costs in 2019 through 2022.   

 Employee benefits are increasing 5% from 2019 through 2022. 

 Debt principal and interest payments are expected to begin in 2020.  

 All other debt payments are taken directly from the audited financial statements. 
 



MCSC Approved (Date)              

                                                  

                                             

 

General Merchandise and Material Control Specialist 

 

 

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF THE CLASS:   The immediate opening seeks a Merchandise and Material 

Control Specialist with responsibility for planning, scheduling, maintaining and managing the movement, storage, 

use and inventory of Merchandise and Materials.  The work involves the management of a moderately large 

storeroom, containing a variety of parts, supplies and some equipment. The successful candidate will work 

collaboratively with other Water Treatment Plant (WTP) and Waste Water Treatment plant (WWTP) employees, 

Niagara Falls Water Board management, and administrative staff.  The Control Specialist provides support for the 

Niagara Falls Water Board through the storage, management and tracking of a variety of company supplies, 

equipment and inventories used by multiple functions within the business. Periodically, the Control Specialists 

might be responsible for training employees on inventory management procedures and policies, which would 

include setting par levels, FIFO, contingency planning, auditing and forecasting. Functionally, the Control 

Specialist shall be responsible for product related data entry into the business system. The Merchandise and 

Material Control Specialist performs related work as required 

 

PRIMARY RESPONSIBILITIES:  

 

 Plan and manage all material and merchandise movement. 

 Maintain clearly organized warehouse spaces, controlled inventory cages, and office. 

 Receive materials into inventory control system. 

 Assure proper storage of all merchandise and materials. 

 Master Setup and Maintenance – Create and manage new and existing inventories and master lists- 

including warehouse location management, changes, revision control, etc.   

 Prepare reports as necessary. 

 Obsolescence - Identify low or no usage items, updating part maintenance and implementing necessary 

inventory adjustments. 

 Work with management staff   in order to assist with workload management on multiple projects, 

meeting, and deadlines. 

 Inventory Analysis and Adjustments - Work with Operations and Purchasing to monitor and manage 

inventory levels, scrap, returned goods, build out analysis, and order as necessary. 

 Overall system maintenance and data entry as required. 

 Training of coworkers or subordinates as needed. 

 Miscellaneous duties as directed.  

 

POSITION SUMMARY 

 

The Merchandise and Material Control Specialists is responsible for ensuring adequate stock levels and dispensing 

repair parts, materials, equipment and supplies in accordance with approved procedures.  It is the responsibility of 

the Control Specialist to exam goods for defects, properly store merchandise, and keep track of inbound and 

outbound materials. The control specialist also maintains detailed records of all merchandise and materials.  

 

FULL PERFORMANCE KNOWLEDGES, SKILLS, ABILITIES AND PERSONAL 

CHARACTERISTICS:  

 

Good knowledge of inventory methods used in keeping merchandise and materials. Good 

knowledge of terminology, procedures, routines and equipment associated with inventory 

management; good knowledge of arithmetic and English; Outstanding computer skills; ability to 

understand and carry out complex oral and written directions; ability to get along well with others; 

mental alertness; good judgment; accuracy; attention to detail;  integrity; physical condition 

commensurate with the demands of the position. General understanding of the operation and minor 



maintenance of pumps, valves and related mechanical and electrical equipment helpful.    

             

     

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:   

 

 

(A) Graduation from a regionally accredited or New York State registered college or university with an  

 Associate’s degree and two (2) years of experience involving the ordering, storage, inventory and  

             distribution of   supplies, equipment, and materials- on a moderately large scale. 

 

OR 

 

(B) Graduation from high school or possession of a high school equivalency diploma and four (4)       

              years’ experience involving the ordering, storage, inventory and distribution of supplies, equipment, and   

              materials- on a moderately large scale. 

 

 

SPECIAL REQUIREMENT: 

 

A valid Fork Lift Operator’s license or ability to obtain one within 6 months of hire. 



MCSC Approved (Date)              

                                                  

                                             

 

Records Retention Control Specialist 

 

 

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF THE CLASS:   The opening seeks a Records Retention Control Specialist 

with responsibility for maintaining and managing the storage and inventory of archived records, and other NFWB 

documents.  The work involves the management of the storeroom, containing a variety of documents and records. 

The successful candidate will work collaboratively with other Water Treatment Plant (WTP) and Waste Water 

Treatment plant (WWTP) employees, Niagara Falls Water Board (NFWB) management, and administrative staff.  

The Specialist provides support for the Niagara Falls Water Board through the storage, management and tracking of 

documents and records used by multiple functions within the business. This position requires proficiency in 

scanning, organizing and maintaining documents such that they adhere to the company's document lifecycle 

procedures, as well as controlling archived and inactive records in accordance with the records retention schedule.  

Periodically, the Records Specialists will be responsible for training employees on records management procedures 

and policies, which include retention, retrieval, destruction and disaster recovery. Functionally, Records Specialist 

will be responsible for product related data entry into the business system. The Records Specialist performs related 

work as required 

 

PRIMARY RESPONSIBILITIES:  

 

 Maintain clearly organized storage spaces, controlled inventory, and office. 

 Receive material into record control system. 

 Assure proper storage of all records. 

 Organize and maintain documents and records in adherence to NFWB lifecycle procedures and record 

retention guidelines. 

 Store, Manage and track company archives. 

 Ability to research and interpret record retention guidelines. 

 Maintain control and retrieval of all archived records.  

 Manage RFI (request for Information) by receiving and processing, as well as tracking. 

 Assist on Freedom of Information (FOIL) requests by gathering information and documents. 

 Master Setup and Maintenance – Create and manage new and existing inventories and master lists.   

 Prepare reports as necessary. 

 Overall system maintenance and data entry as required. 

 Training of coworkers/subordinates, as needed. 

 Miscellaneous duties as directed.  

 

POSITION SUMMARY 

 

The Records Retention Control Specialists is responsible for managing company archived documents while also 

ensuring their accuracy, quality and integrity. The specialists will ensure the NFWB adheres to record retention 

policies, safeguards information and is able to retrieve data more effectively.  The specialist will contribute to the   

NFWB ability to become more eco-friendly and efficient- updating current systems.   This position performs 

inventory and record retention duties.  

 

FULL PERFORMANCE KNOWLEDGES, SKILLS, ABILITIES AND PERSONAL 

CHARACTERISTICS:  

 

Good knowledge of inventory methods used in keeping records. Good knowledge of 

terminology, procedures, routines and equipment associated with inventory and record management; 

good knowledge of arithmetic and English; Outstanding computer skills; ability to understand and 

carry out complex oral and written directions; ability to get along well with others; mental alertness; 

good judgment; accuracy; attention to detail;  integrity; physical condition commensurate with the 



demands of the position. General understanding of the operation and minor maintenance of pumps, valves and 

related mechanical and electrical equipment helpful.        

              

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:   

 

 

(A) Graduation from a regionally accredited or New York State registered college or university with an  

 Associate’s degree and two (2) years of experience involving the ordering, storage and distribution of      

            supplies, equipment, and materials- including records, or previous work experience in inventory   

                  procedures and practices.  

 

OR 

 

(B) Graduation from high school or possession of a high school equivalency diploma and four (4)       

              years’ experience involving the ordering, storage and distribution of supplies, equipment, and materials- 

              including records, or previous work in inventory procedures and practices 

 

 

 

SPECIAL REQUIREMENT: 

 

None 



I.  PERSONNEL ACTIONS RECOMMEND TO HIRE

Line Item Number Position Department/Location Pay Rate or Grade

1 GMMC Specialist New position/ see job description Grade 9 Pending

2 Records Retention Specialist New position/ see job description Grade 9 Pending

II. RECOMMENDED PROMOTION / MOVE / APPOINTMENT 

Line Item Number Position Type of labor move Change in pay rate or grade

IV. BOARD NOTIFICATION OF OTHER MOVEMENT (CBA BID, MCSB APPOINTMENT, LEGAL STATUS CHANGE)

Name Position & type of labor move Department/Location Pay Rate or Grade

V.  OTHER ACTIVITY

Niagara Falls Water Board

  Personnel Actions and Report

Monday, July 23, 2018

Recommended Moves by the Director of Administrative Services

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The position is still under review by MCSB

The position is still under review by MCSB

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION / AUTHORITY

OTHER PERSONNEL ACTIVITY FOR BOARD NOTIFICATION 



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 1 of 16 

Monthly O&M Report 
For the Month of June 

 2018 

 
Agenda Item # 7.1 

1. Treatment & Plant Maintenance 

1.1. Water – Robert Rowe, updated 07/05/2018 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 

 
  Total water production for the month of June was 626 million gallons.  The average 
daily water production was 20.9 million gallons.  The plant data summary table is included 
below for your reference. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
2018 TOTALS AND AVERAGES 

  

        

  
PRE 

   
POST F/W  

 
R/W CL2 PACL H2SiF6 PO4 CL2 1000 

 
PUMPAGE LBS LBS LBS LBS LBS 

GAL/ 
DAY 

JAN 670103 6739 130700 15545 1271 3979 21616 

FEB 657443 6477 138300 16193 1572 4126 23480 

MAR 667740 7042 153500 16497 1715 4410 21540 

APR 623399 7174 158300 15162 1555 4280 20780 

MAY 642201 7875 147300 16376 1603 4473 20716 

JUN 626242 8320 126800 15168 1638 4359 20875 

JUL 
       AUG 
       SEP 
       OCT 
       NOV 
       DEC 
       TOTAL 3887128 43627 854900 94941 9354 25627 129007 

        



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 2 of 16 

        

  
2018 ANALYTICAL RESULTS 

   

        

 
RAW 

 
PRE POST EFF 

  

 
TURB RAW Cl2 Cl2 TURB EFF F. RES 

 
NTU pH RES.mg/l RES.mg/l NTU pH mg/l 

JAN 9.6 8.0 0.58 1.23 0.061 7.7 0.70 

FEB 4.8 8.0 0.56 1.21 0.063 7.6 0.71 

MAR 2.5 8.0 0.57 1.21 0.067 7.7 0.70 

APR 9.3 8.0 0.57 1.23 0.063 7.6 0.67 

MAY 2.9 8.0 0.54 1.24 0.063 7.6 0.69 

JUN 1.7 8.0 0.53 1.25 0.063 7.6 0.67 

JUL 
       AUG 
       SEP 
       OCT 
       NOV 
       DEC 
       AVG 5.1 8.0 0.56 1.23 0.063 7.6 0.69 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Operations and Maintenance Highlights 
 
 
Ongoing Items… 
We have received our replacement online turbidity meters, and will be looking to schedule the 
installation soon.  These will be replacing our original, outdated units and will allow us to 
more effectively and efficiently clean and calibrate the instruments as required.  The units are 
also EPA approved for using a safer, less toxic substance for the calibrations, which was a 
major factor in choosing this brand and model.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 3 of 16 

 
 
 

1.2 Wastewater – Bob Dunn, Chief Operator- updated 07/12/2018 
 

Non Compliance Events: NONE 

1. Sampling Notes: There were no samples processed in June 2018. 

OPERATIONAL and MAINTAINENCE- Highlights  

Work on the Air Scour Unit was completed after minor delays. The Grit Screw on 
Sediment Basin #1 was damaged when one of the mounting bolts failed. The Basin was 
emptied for a thorough examination. Plans for removal and repair are in place. The 
Basin can function without the Grit Screw. While it was empty, inspections were 
conducted and maintenance performed.  The Gorge Pump Station elevator was 
examined and plans for repairs have been made. The malfunctioning Carbon Bed 
Actuators have been removed and sent out for rebuild. The 4th Thickened Sludge pump 
has been installed and tested. Due to the dry weather, sludge has been reduced. The 
first good rain will likely bring large amounts of solids to the WWTP. Both operations 
and Maintenance are prepared to deal with this. Sediment Basin #4 is currently empty 
for this reason. Both Operations and Maintenance have performed above and beyond 
to address the ongoing problems. 

Sediment Basin #5: On June 4, 2018, a “ticking” noise was heard during the morning 
walk through, it was believed to be a possible problem with the sludge rake 
mechanism. Speculation led to the decision to take Basin #5 down for further 
investigation. Since all work on #5 must be approved by the DEC, work was scheduled 
to begin the following Monday (pending approval). (Rain was expected) Dewatering 
was hampered by the discovery that the #5 drain was non-functional. Permission was 
received to use alternate methods. Crews worked through their shifts and overtime to 
shovel and hose the basin to ready it for inspection. On June 11th it was determined 
that a portion of the Sludge Plow Blade had broken off and was lodged in the Sludge 
screw. Removal of several feet of raw sewage was required for closer inspection. A 
second piece of the blade was found to have broken off.  It was decided to replace the 
blade and stanchions. The Basin was brought back online with plans in place to take it 
down for repairs beginning July 9th.  

 



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 4 of 16 

1.2 Continued 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Explanation of data abbreviations: 
INF: Influent       BFP: Belt Filter Press 
EFF: Effluent       PRIM: Primary 
CBE Carbon Bed Effluent     FeC13: Ferric Chloride 
GPS: Gorge Pump Station     H2O2: Peroxide 
MGD: Millions of Gallons per Day    NaOCl: Sodium Hypochlorite 
PPM: Parts Per Million 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2018 FLOWS Chlorine Rainfall            Polymer FeCl3 LIME H2O2 NaOCl Grit

INF/EFF CBE GPS Residual average NET LANDFILL BFP PRIM

DATE MGD MGD MGD PPM inches               (Lbs)

January 849.22 1119.08 358.13 2.0 2.3 515.5 537.8 3905.0 5849.1 24420 57.4 24200 97590 51.8

February 937.49 1169.86 377.68 2.0 2.2 483.0 576.5 4070.0 4406.2 26910 69.3 20110 85220 59.8

March 869.60 1109.82 390.90 2.0 2.4 463.8 446.4 2805.0 4986.0 32020 67.3 21390 87320 56.0

April 978.38 1220.23 408.61 2.0 3.3 424.9 511.2 2410.0 4871.0 31640 62.9 21050 91355 44.0

May 727.92 984.12 381.90 2.0 3.2 490.1 568.0 3025.0 4888.8 32950 52.2 22380 186270 45.9

June 591.01 928.69 317.52 1.8 1.2 495.2 538.0 3300.0 4855.0 29160 58.3 21920 236770 25.8

July

August

September

October

November

December

Totals 4953.62 6531.80 2234.74 2.0 14.6 2872.5 3177.9 19515.0 29856.1 177100 367.4 131050 784525 283.3

(Tons)

SLUDGE

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT OPERATING DATA

(gals.) (gals.) (Tons)(Tons)(gals.)



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 5 of 16 

2. Pipes: 
2.1. Sewer Collection – Michael Eagler, updated 07/16/2018 

Sewer Collection System O&M Report 

 
Service Flushing UFPO Receivers 

Bypass 
Pumping 

CB MH MAIN Connections Lateral 

2018 Calls (Feet) Responses Cleaned (Hours) 
     

January 41 17125 157 156 81.1 
     

February 62 18940 111 70 147.6 1 2 
 

1 
 

March 35 300 215 71 10.5 2 1 
 

1 
 

April 28 7543 159 77 304 5 3 1 2 1 

May 96 53201 110 72 0 2 5 0 1 2 

June 87 37,801 311 45 0 6 3 5 2 1 

July      
     

August           

September           

October           

November           

December           

Notes Sewer Department curtailed to assist in water service/hydrant repair Feb 
March. April may     

    
2.2   Water Distribution – Michael Eagler, updated 07/16/2018 

2018 

MAIN 
BREAKS 

SERVICE 
LEAKS 

VALVE 
REPR/
REPL        

HYDRANT 
 

REPLACE 

HYDRANT 
 
REPAIRS 

HYDRANT 
FLOW/FLUSH 

MAINTENANCE 

HYDRANTS 
OUT OF 
SERVICE 

MISC. 
SERVICE 
CALLS 

CONCRETE 
LANDSCAPE 

UFPO 

JANUARY 22 9 0 4 6 215 64 66 6 157 

FEBRUARY 8 6 0 12 8 207 47 71 8 111 

MARCH 7 6 1 27 10 196 10 56 1 215 

APRIL 8 5 3 6 4 120 0 77 2 159 

MAY 7 9 3 4 2 133 2 68 18 110 

JUNE 13 9 1 3 2 341/659 3 140 15 311 

JULY           

AUGUST           

SEPTEMBER           

OCTOBER           

NOVEMBER           

DECEMBER           

 3 hydrants damaged in Feb not on out of service list. 

 



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 6 of 16 

3. Analytical Services 

3.1 Water Laboratory –Patrick Fama, updated 7/10/18 

 
1.  New York State Sanitary Code Part V Monitoring/Reporting 

-June samples have been collected & analyzed in-house for TOC, DOC & UV254 on both 
finished and source water.  All samples were in compliance. 
-June bacteriological and chemical monitoring from the distribution system samples were 
within compliance limits. 

                                   
2.  In-house/DEC Monitoring 

  
-All in-house monitoring for bacteriology and water chemistry have been within normal 
limits.   
-The monthly SPDES sample collected from the freeze thaw bed was within normal limits. 
-Samples analyzed to date are 8,978.  
     

3.  Laboratory Concerns 
- The Department of Health conducted a required ELAP Biannual Assessment of the 
Laboratory. Satisfactory results were received with only minor findings. All findings have 
been addressed and submitted to ELAP for final approval. 
- As part of the assessment the Laboratory began the Certification process for an 
additional ten metals.  
 -The laboratory Analyzed 38 water samples from The Town of Tonawanda for Lead and 
Copper. The Laboratory also analyzed  9 samples for Total Organic Carbon and 9 
required Wet chemistry analysis. 
-The microbiology lab analyzed 21 samples from the Aquarium of Niagara’s indoor and 
outdoor pools as well as three samples from the Village of Lewiston.  All results were 
reported to the representative contacts.  
- Revenue created to date is $16,722. 

      
3.2 Wastewater Laboratory For May Brian Eldridge 6/12/18 
 
 
 

1. The data for May’s State Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (SPDES) report is 
currently being compiled with no anticipated violations.   
 

2. The second quarter BHC PMP samples were collected and are being analyzed. 
 

3. Sampling for the yearly Priority Pollutant scan will be conducted in June. 
 
 
 
 



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 7 of 16 

4. Customers & Compliance 
4.1. Meter Shop – Bob Reid Updated 6/18/18 

Shop read 5265 residential meters for the month. The daily appointments were split up 
between Macri, Paul, DeRubeis and Virtuoso. Also Tagged approx.. 675 properties for 
shutoff and did as many shutoffs as time and manpower allowed. 

  MONTH: WORK STOPPED Registers SCRAPPED INDUSTRIAL RESIDENTIAL 

  ORDERS METERS Replaced METERS METERS METERS 

          READ READ 

JANUARY 77 1 5 0 0 7192 

FEBRUARY 94 0 7 0 0               5262 

MARCH 100 5 9 0 569 5497 

APRIL 101 2 6 0 0 7192 

MAY 107 4 7  0 5265 

JUNE       

JULY                           

AUGUST       

SEPTEMBER       

OCTOBER       

NOVEMBER                          

DECEMBER                            

TOTAL 489                    12            34 0                      0 30408 

         

METER READINGS:        

 DISTRICT 3 B.REID M.MACRI V.Virtuoso J.PAUL F.DERUBEIS TOTAL 

             

       

                                                                                 

5/2/18           676                841                                             1517 

                                       
 
                   

5/3/18 687 756               24                 1467 

5/4/18 954                26                 980 

5/7/18 525 754                                 1279   

5/8/18                22       22 

              

                     

                    

                                     

       

4/30/18                        

       

       

TOTAL 2842 2351 46                    26 5265 

       

       

       

       

TOTAL       

Mike Conti was on appointments  for month of January/this report generated by A Hunt . 

 

 



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 8 of 16 

 

 

4.2. Industrial Monitoring/Enforcement – Joel Paradise updated 6/13/2018 

 

a) Hauled Waste Program – The Hauled waste moratorium imposed on August 16th is still 
in effect.   

    b)  Investigations/Enforcement – All inspections have been conducted and Notices of            
         Violation have been issued as required.   
 

c.)  SIU Updates 
 

1.) On 12/10/17 the Chemours Corp. discharge permit number 77 was terminated. 
Chemours will enter into a private agreement with Olin Corp, who now control MS #8, 
to discharge to MS #8. Olin’s discharge permit #23 was modified on that same 
12/01/17 date to account for these changes. As the permit holder at MS #8, Olin has 
complete responsibility for anything discharged through MS #8 to the NFWB 

.  
2.) Any SIU whose discharge permits are nearing expiration in the next several months 

have been sent renewal applications for us to review and eventually issue a renewed 
discharge permit lasting for a term of 5 years. This is an ongoing and continuing 
process.                                                                                                                                             

 
3.) The 2018 SIU Verification program is underway and on schedule. 

 
4.)  On 12/06/17 TAM Ceramics Group of NY, LLC was reclassified from CIRSU permit #    
      71 to SIU discharge permit # 79. 

 
5.) Our Compliance Officer / Industrial Waste Inspector Matt LaGamba is progressing in his 

training in the position. 

 
6.) The EPA conducted their scheduled 5-year audit of the Pretreatment Program on 

September 26th and 27th. As was expected, there are several relatively minor items that 
will have to be addressed. The EPA finally issued their report on March 27th, 2018 and it 
was received at the NFWB on March 30th, 2018. Their findings are being addressed and 
our response was sent to the EPA via USPS on  May 17th, 2018 as requested. All SIU 
discharge permit have been modified with the recommended changes. We are awaiting 
any comments from the EPA with regard to our response sent in May 17th, 2018. Once 
those comments are received and dealt with the modified SIU discharge permits can be 
issued.   

 
  

 
 



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 9 of 16 

 

5. Support Services 

5.1. Safety – Gina Senia, updated 7/16/18 

Safety Performance (June 2018): 
The NFWB experienced zero OSHA/PESH recordable injuries and zero first aid incidents in 
June bringing our Injury Frequency Rate to 5.6 for Total Recordable Injuries and 1.9 for Lost 
Work Day Cases: 
 

MONTHLY SAFETY 
PERFORMANCE: 

June 
YEAR TO DATE 
SAFETY 
PERFORMANCE: 

YEAR TO DATE 
INJURY 
FREQUENCY RATE: 

OSHA/PESH LWDC 0 1 1.9 

OSHA/PESH Recordable Injuries 0 3 5.6 

Man Hours Worked (est.) 19,347 104,289 - 

First Aid Cases 0 - - 

 

2018 GOALS  
OSHA/PESH LWDC   0    
TOTAL OSHA/PESH Recordables 0    
INJURY FREQUENCY RATE 0    

 
 
Summary of Recordable Injuries (June 2018): 0 
 
 
Summary of First Aid Incidents (June 2018): 0 
 
 
Summary of Other Incidents (June 2018): 1 
 
6/18/18 – A backhoe being operated by an Outside W/S employee hit another NFWB vehicle 
while working in a tight work-zone causing minor damage; no one was injured in the incident. 

 
 
Safety Activities (June 2018):     

 A total of 54 Water Board employees attended the monthly Safety/Training meetings in 
June. Employees reviewed the revised Emergency Action Plan (EAP) including the 
evacuation routes (primary and secondary) for each plant and location of spill control 
and safety equipment (i.e., eyewash, safety showers). Employees also reviewed the 
incident command structure and the new role of security at each plant. In addition to 
EAP training, employees were trained on confined space awareness where they 
reviewed how to identify a confined space, potential hazards of confined spaces and 
reviewed the revised list of confined spaces that have been assessed at each plant.    



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 10 of 16 

 
5.1 Safety Continued 

 

 Hazardous Waste Disposal (WTP) – Veolia was onsite on June 11 to pack and 
dispose of universal waste, and expired and unused process and janitorial chemicals; 
a similar waste lab-pack and disposal is being planned for the WWTP.  

 Fall Protection (WWTP) – In compliance with OSHA 1910.28 we purchased “Glide-
Loc” rail systems that will be installed on all fixed ladders greater than 24’ high. New 
harnesses having a front “D-ring” for use in the Glide-Loc system also were ordered; 
all O&M employees will be trained on proper use. Additionally, on June 26 a Miller fall 
protection representative was onsite to evaluate the sedimentation basins for fall 
protection options. It was recommended that we replace the existing corroded 
horizontal “Sky-Grip” life-line with a new life-line, similar to the current setup. The 
intent is for the employee to tie-off at each side of the walkway using a double lanyard. 
We are purchasing new equipment (harnesses and double lanyards) and will be 
evaluating the cost for upgrading the life-line.  

 Lab Safety – on June 27 we held a “mini” HazCom and safety data sheet (SDS) 
training for WWTP laboratory employees. Employees reviewed the sections of the 
SDS particularly pertaining to exposure hazards and how to protect against the 
hazards. Employees also reviewed proper labeling and storage. Lab employees will be 
taking inventory of unused and expired chemicals to facilitate future lab-pack and 
disposal (expected to be completed by end of July). 
 

 WTP Process Hazards Analysis (PHA) – we will be accepting a proposal from 
Arcadis to lead WTP employees in an OSHA-required PHA. The PHA will identify and 
evaluate the leak/release prevention controls that are in place (or that are lacking) 
within the chlorine process. The PHA will cover the chlorine process from the point of 
cylinder delivery at the gate to the point where “finished” water leaves the plant. 
Additionally, the PHA is expected to facilitate development of the alternative offsite 
consequence scenario and analysis that is required by USEPA under their Risk 
Management Program.  

 The Water Board Safety Committee met on June 21 with an impressive turnout; 
employees discussed the new fixed gas detection systems (including the system at the 
Gorge Pump Station), fall protection, chain hoists and lifting aids among other safety 
items. The committee continues to provide updates to employees as it progresses. 
 

 New Employee Safety Orientation – A total of 5 new hires (3 mechanics and 2 HR 
specialists) attended safety orientation in June. Each new employee was provided a 
general overview of our safety program and information regarding primary hazards 
and how to eliminate or protect against them. Additionally, new employees were 
provided our Workplace Violence Prevention policy. 

  



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 11 of 16 

 

6.  Technical Services – Doug Williamson, updated 7/6/18 

1. Wastewater Treatment Plant and Sanitary Sewer Lift Station Standby Power 
Generator Systems (General and Electrical contracts #7519 and #7520):   
We are waiting for the record drawings and O & M manuals requested from GHD.  
The automatic transfer switch for back-up power to main pumps 1 and 2 will be 
delivered on 8/3 and work to begin afterwards. 

2. Hazard Mitigation FEMA Grant Program No.4204-0003: 
There was a project conference call held on June 14th with GHD, FEMA and 
NYSDHSES.  SEQR Coordination Notice was distributed to each 
interested/involved party notifying them that the NFWB intends to act as Lead 
Agency under the SEQR for this project. 

3. Niagara Gorge Corridor - Robert Moses Parkway Removal Project: 
The NYSDOT Project Identification No. 5761.90 Removal of NY Route 957A 
(Niagara Scenic Parkway) AutoCAD contract drawings were received from Watts 
Engineering in June.  We plan on creating a water/sewer utility GIS map of the 
project area, prior to the start of construction activities.   

4. Seneca Niagara Resort and Casino Arrival Experience Project: 
We are still waiting for a maintenance agreement from Seneca Gaming.  We 
provided correspondence to Wendel on May 22nd requesting a pressure recorder 
installation in Schoellkopf shaft #1 for continuous level measurements.  A letter has 
been drafted regarding acceptance of the project based on certain criteria being 
met. 

5. Schoellkopf Tunnel Surcharge: 
Ongoing measurements and review of data with GHD at shaft #1 and #2 reveal no 
unusual behavior.    

6. LaSalle SSO Abatement Program and Consent Order: 
Milherst Construction completed additional site restoration for the LaSalle SSO 
(2016-17) project in June.  We are still waiting for a formal response from the 
NYSDEC regarding the letter submitted by RBPC Attorneys on May 7th regarding 
the LaSalle SSO consent order.  The year 11 (2018) work that includes the re-
evaluation of the need for Love Canal Sewer Rehabilitation have been put on hold.  
Future work in years 12 (2019) to year 18 (2025) were addressed along with 
another revision of the Table 4.2 of the original consent. 

7. NYSDEC Consent Order: 
CPL, GHD and AECOM continue to progress on items due under the consent 
order.   

8. Niagara Falls WWTP SPDES No. NY0026336: 
The quarterly Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW) legal advertisement was 
published in the Niagara Gazette.  The current WWTP SPDES permit expires on 
October 31st, 2018.  We are currently waiting to hear back from the NYSDEC 
regarding the higher hexachlorocyclohexanes (BHC) limits proposed under the new  
 



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 12 of 16 

6. Continued 
Permit.  The RBPC Attorneys submitted a letter to the NYSDEC on March 23rd 
addressing our concerns with the new proposed limit.  The SPDES Renewal 
Application that was submitted in April also addressed our concerns. 

9. Stormwater Mapping: 
The Western New York Stormwater Coalition (WNYSC) was at the NFWB on 
Friday 6/29 to map the storm drainage catch basins and manholes at the water 
treatment plant, wastewater treatment plant and Gorge Pumping Station. 

10. Town of Niagara Flow Monitoring: 
The spring of 2018 flow data and calculations were provided to the Town of 
Niagara in June. 

11. Gorge Pump Station Flow Measuring Instrumentation: 
We plan to perform calibration of the flow measuring instrumentation in August.  
The NYSDEC was notified that a dry weather overflow event may be avoided.  

12. Falls Street Tunnel Drop Shaft Zero Inspection and Calibration: 
We made a formal request on 6/26 to the NYSDEC for a short-term dry weather 
discharge of FST groundwater infiltration for the purpose of checking and 
calibrating the overflow measurement system (maintenance).  A bypass rate of 
approximately three mgd for a period of less than two hours is expected.  We are 
targeting October 16th for the inspection date, preserving October 17th as an 
alternate rain date. 

13. CSO Public Notification Plan: 
We received a letter from the NYSDEC regarding public notification requirements 
for combined sewer overflows to the Great Lakes Basin.  A public notification plan 
is being developed for submittal to the DEC by 8/7/18.  CSO discharge notification 
signage has been ordered for four locations along the Lower Niagara River that 
must be installed by 11/7/18. 

14. WWTP Spill Prevention Report: 
The WWTP Spill Prevention Report was updated and certified in June.  CBS tanks 
#213, #214 and #215 are due for their five year inspection in mid-August. 

15. Radiological Monitoring Program: 
We plan on continuing to utilize Greater Radiological Dimensions (GRD) for their 
radiation consulting services that include recalibration of the instruments and 
training in 2018.    

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 13 of 16 

6. Continued 
 

 

 
 

7. SECURITY REPORT-- Richard Beutel, updated 07/13/2018 

Emergency Lighting is currently being installed. 

New Lighting at the WWTP has improved visibility after hours. 

Key cards have been issued and use is being enforced. Monitoring of “Piggybacking” 

without second vehicle scanning is being done at the WWTP. Security is addressing 

the problem. 

7.1 SECURITY INCIDENTS 

There were no Security incidents in June 2018. 

2018 OXIDIZER BUDGET

BUDGET = $1,670,000.00 for year

COST = $611,137.03 to date

% USED = 36.60% to date

BUDGET = $4,575.34 per day avg. per month avg.

COST = $3,376.45 per day avg. per month avg.

27.5 Flow (MGD) 181 total days

$139,166.67

$101,856.17

MONTH

FLOW 

(MG)

H2O2 

(GAL)

NaOCl 

(GAL)

GAL PER 

MG FLOW TOTAL COST 

LANDFILL 

SLUDGE 

(TONS)

SOLIDS 

THROUGH

PUT (%)

FERRIC 

CHLORIDE 

(TONS)

LIME 

(TONS)

Jan-2018 873.5 24,200 97,590 142 $92,848.11 537.8 104.3 45.8 57.4

Feb-2018 937.4 20,110 85,220 123 $78,899.03 576.5 119.4 50.5 69.3

Mar-2018 869.6 21,440 87,320 125 $82,622.39 446.4 96.2 60.0 67.3

Apr-2018 978.4 21,050 91,355 121 $83,496.46 511.2 120.3 59.3 62.9

May-2018 727.9 22,380 186,270 294 $126,452.73 568.6 116.0 61.8 50.0

Jun-2018 590.3 21,920 236,770 442 $146,818.31 495.2 122.0 54.7 58.3

Jul-2018

Aug-2018

Sep-2018

Oct-2018

Nov-2018

Dec-2018

TOTALS 4,977.1 131,100 784,525 208 $611,137.03 3,135.7 678.2 332.1 365.2

Low value for year

High value for year

WWTP DATA OXIDIZER USEAGE SLUDGE REMOVAL



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 14 of 16 

8. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (I.T.) Joe Morock 05/08/2018 

 

1. Parameter Survey for the Infotronics IT 3100 (Intelligent Terminal time 
management system) is complete. It was submitted to ComputerSearch 
Corp. The next step will be system installation and training.  

2. Preparing New and Updating existing NFWB IT policies and Procedure forms 
to be used on new and existing employees, to provide audit trails of NFWB 
employee’s access and permissions to our network. 

a) Will be building/hosting an INTRANET site that all NFWB employees 
can access to get any IT, policy and procedures, forms and see current 
events, or special announcements.  

3.  Reviewing assets tracking/tagging systems for all equipment. 

4. Soon to be implementing an IT trouble ticketing system, exploring options 
through Lucity, SharePoint or 3rd party. 

5. Implementing a collaborative NFWB SharePoint site to assist with new and 
ongoing projects to provide status updates from NFWB, consultants and 
vendors on an “as needed basis. 

6. Lucity is still in development.  The feedback is being used to refine and 
further develop the platform moving forward.  Current improvements include: 

a) Working with outside contractors to assist with uploading additional 
data and linking assets to work orders and GPS.  

b) Building reports that can be run to display the real-time status of assets. 

c) 3-D Integration of plant and equipment for both WTP & WWTP. 

d) Tie-in with New World system integration and 3-D to provide clickable 
real-time asset information.  

e) Lucity Mobile – will be the next phase. Lucity Desktop must be 
completed prior to being able to focus on the mobile app 

7. Email (Exchange) we are exploring a Cloud Email system. 

8. Office 365- Bundling with Exchange Cloud Bids sent out (received one back). 

9. We are looking into Infrastructure needs and improvements at each plant, 
which will improve the reliability and speed of the NFWB Network. Such as; 

a) Fiber connectivity between the plants. 



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 15 of 16 

b) New Routers & Switches with room for growth and network segregation 
of traffic. 

c) Improvements to Network Security. 

d) Wi-Fi Coverage at WW & WWTP (Work and Guest network) 

e) Exploring ways to improve Emergency Recovery Plan. Several 
methods are being explored; redundancy options for Network and 
Internet. 

11. Will explore multiple IP phone vendors, for possible cost reductions in 
service. 

12. Guard house – Assisting with main gate doorbell solutions, intercom 
integration, phone installation. 

13. Datacenter – I.T. will be re-wiring all WW & WWTP servers with CAT6 
Ethernet cable. 

a) I.T. will also be replacing all desktop and phone cables to Cat 6 
Ethernet to replace existing brittle cabling. 

14. Preparing a modernization plan for conference rooms at both plants. 

15. Exploring real-time server hardware monitoring solutions (proactive 
solutions) 

16. Looking to implement SCCM (Microsoft System Center Configuration 
Manager) which will allow IT to manage the deployment and security of 
devices and applications across our network. 

17. Assisting with videography of plant operations, to be used as training videos 
for current or future break fix scenarios. 

18. Issued IPad tablets for board to use for access to SharePoint and to check 
Lucity work order status and for NFWB email access. - done 

a) Providing support. 

19. Preparing for a major Lucity software upgrade which will add new 
functionality and reliability to the system. 

20. Systematically upgrading Desktop PC’s.  

21.  Working on electronic O&M manual, PM’s and Checklists at WTP.  



 

O&M Report  July 27, 2018 Page 16 of 16 

22.  Efforts to organize IT areas at both plants continues, taking inventory of 
equipment and material on hand.  We are also setting everything up to look 
more professional.  

23. SCADA at WTP – working with Rob to address needs of SCADA.  

24. Phone WWTP- whole basement maintenance area needs approximately 9 
corrosive resistant phones installed.  

a) We also need to locate, wire check (test) all lines and replace if 
necessary. 

25. Verizon – met with Verizon to talk about installing mobile cell signal 
antennas inside WWTP & WTP, coverage to include basement to top 
floors. 

a) Gorge pumping station – elevator and station landlines will be tested 
and fixed if faulty. 

b) Discussed replacing the old Comtel phones with a new digital IP phone 
system to replace Comtel. 

26. IT will be scheduling full WTP & WWTP and GORGE site survey tours 
checking and testing all phones, PC’s and data connections. 

 

27. IT will be visiting other Water Treatment Facilities (both WWTP & WTP) as 
permitted this year to benchmark their IT process. This is going to help us 
throughout the course of the year to observe best practices and possibly 
become a World Class Operation.  

28. Historian – Data collection server for SCADA (IFIX, Proficy) systems need 
attention, upgrades and consolidation of new services from current ways. 

a. Met with Automatech’s Henry to discuss upgrade of SCADA systems, to 
new version and hardware “stratus server” meeting being setup to 
include, B. Millroy, Kevin Coleman and IT. 

29. STATIC IP – to solve issues as seen from the electrical project, IT will be 
manually assigning all static IP addresses to every PC/PRINTER. 

 

 

 



 

 

 1 

To Enroll With a New NY.GOV ID 

 

Step 1: Create a new NY.GOV Account 

a) Enter First Name, Last Name, E-mail Address, Confirm E-Mail Address 

b) Select CAPTCHA checkbox 

c) Click Create Account 

 

Step 2: Confirm Personal Information 

a) Review Personal Information and Click Continue 

  



 

 

 2 

Step 3: Receive Confirmation E-mail 

a) Open E-mail where  

b) Select click here link to Activate Account 

 

Step 4: Create Security Questions 

a) Add 3 Security Questions 

b) Click Continue 

 

 



 

 

 3 

Step 5: Set Password 

a) Set a Password with Minimum of 8 characters with at least 3 letters and 1 number 

b) Click Set Password 

 

c) Click Continue 

Step 6: Agree to NY-Alert Terms of Service 

a) Read NY-Alert Terms of Service and Scroll to the bottom 

b) Click Continue 

 

Step 7: System Redirects to NY-Alert System 

 

 



 

 

 4 

Step 8: Edit My Profile 

a) Click Edit under My Profile 

b) Add or Remove Contact Information & Time Zone 

c) Add or Remove Email Address, SMS, or other Phone Numbers 

d) Click Save 

 

 



 

 

 5 

Step 9: Edit My Locations 

a) Click Edit Under My Locations 

b) Add Locations (up to 5) 

c) Click Verify Address 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 6 

Step 10: Edit My Subscriptions 

a) Click Edit under My Subscriptions 

b) Select Marine Zone Alerts (+) Dropdown Menu  

a. Select appropriate checkboxes for Maritime Zones 

c) Select Your County Alerts (+) Dropdown Menu 

a. Select County (+) Dropdown 

b. Select appropriate alerts per county 

d) Click Save 

 



 

 

 7 

 



 

 

1 

To Enroll With an Existing NY.GOV ID 

Step 1: Enter Existing NY.GOV ID  

a) Click Sign In 

 

Step 2: System Redirects to NY-Alert System 

 



 

 

2 

Step 3: Edit My Profile 

a) Click Edit under My Profile 

b) Add or Remove Contact Information & Time Zone 

c) Add or Remove Email Address, SMS, or other Phone Numbers 

d) Click Save 

 

 



 

 

3 

Step 4: Edit My Locations 

a) Click Edit Under My Locations 

b) Add Locations (up to 5) 
c) Click Verify Address 

 

Step 5: Edit My Subscriptions 

a) Click Edit under My Subscriptions 

b) Select Marine Zone Alerts (+) Dropdown Menu  

a. Select appropriate checkboxes for Maritime Zones 

c) Select Your County Alerts (+) Dropdown Menu 

a. Select County (+) Dropdown 

b. Select appropriate alerts per county 

d) Click Save 

 





Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-001

AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE 
TO ENHANCE CAMERA TRUCK CAPABILITIES

WHEREAS, in December 2017 the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) 
authorized the purchase of a vehicle equipped with sewer camera technology and apparatus in 
order to inspect its sewer mains; and

WHEREAS, that camera truck has proven to be exceptionally useful in responding to 
incidents and provides critical information to understand the condition of the sewers, proactively 
to identify defects in the sewer before serious problems occur, identifying the locations of water 
main leaks, and to better target investments in repairing and replacing sewer lines; and

WHEREAS, using the Water Board’s sewer camera truck avoids the expense of hiring 
contractors to perform certain camera survey work; and

WHEREAS, Water Board staff have identified an upgrade to the camera truck’s 
software and hardware that would make operation of the camera even more efficient by linking 
information and video created by the camera truck directly to the Water Board’s existing asset 
and maintenance management software and the Water Board’s Geographical Information System 
(“GIS”) software; and

WHEREAS, this hardware and software upgrade package, which includes PipeLogix 
software, associated computer hardware, training, and support, is available from Cyncon, the 
original supplier of the camera truck, for a total investment of $19,990 after trading in certain 
existing equipment that will be replaced by the new hardware and software package; 

* CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE *



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that Water Board staff hereby are authorized to purchase the PipeLogix 
software and hardware package from Cyncon pursuant to that company’s July 2, 2018 quote, 
with a total cost after trade-in of the software and hardware system being replaced not to exceed 
$19,990.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Director of Operations

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board



Cyncon Equipment, Inc.  7494 West Henrietta Road, Rush, New York 14543
PH: 585-533-2500  FAX: 585-533-2501

1-800-429-6266

Premier Municipal and Truck Equipment Since 1978

July 2, 2018

Rolfe Porter
Niagara Falls Water Board
5815 Buffalo Ave.
Niagara Falls, NY 14303

Cyncon Equipment, Inc. is pleased to provide you with our quote for the following 
equipment: 

Description Quote

PipeLogix Full Reporting License
DVS Recording Module 
GIS Module
PipeLogix Software Support Program – 1 Yr.
Software Setup and Training ( 2 Days On-Site)
ArcGIS Engine Runtime License
Rack Mount computer

Sub Total
Discount for MuniXS Trade-in

Total

$ 22,990.00
($3,000.00)

$ 19,990.00

Thank you for the opportunity to supply your equipment needs. As always, 
please contact me with any questions. 

Kind Regards, 

Dave Hull
Dave Hull
Sales Representative



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-0xx

AWARD BID FOR SEWER LINE CHEMICAL ROOT CONTROL

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) is responsible for 
maintaining an extensive network of sewer mains in the City of Niagara Falls; and

WHEREAS, the intrusion of roots into sewer mains can cause structural damage to 
sewer mains and also block or reduce flow, cause overflows, or reduce hydraulic capacity 
(leading to a loss of self-scouring velocities); and

WHEREAS, to combat roots in its sewer mains, the Water Board performs camera 
inspections of its system and makes targeted application of approved root-control chemicals into 
its sewer mains; and

WHEREAS, with the assistance of City of Niagara Falls Purchasing, Water Board staff 
developed specifications for the application of DEC approved root control chemicals to 
Water Board sewer mains under Bid No. W2018-04; and

WHEREAS, the lowest bid that met Water Board specifications was submitted by 
Municipal Sales, Inc.; 

* CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE *



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that the bid for Sewer Line Chemical Root Control hereby is awarded to 
Municipal Sales, Inc., and Water Board staff hereby are authorized to purchase sewer line 
chemical root control services from Municipal Sales, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $25,000 
without further Board resolution.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Superintendent

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:
GA 8120.4900.0449.599- Undesignated Services

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board









Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-003

AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF HARDWARE AND SERVICES 
TO UPGRADE TO VERIZON ONE TALK PHONE SYSTEM

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has identified a need to 
upgrade its internal phone system in order to improve reliability and efficiency; and

WHEREAS, Water Board staff have identified Verizon’s One Talk phone system as 
offering the best value and most useful features for the Water Board; and

WHEREAS, the estimated monthly service price for the desired system features is 
$3,388.99 from Verizon, and the equipment and installation services required for the upgrade are 
available for a one-time cost of $14,542.49 from Connected Solutions Group; and

WHEREAS, the competitive bidding requirements for this procurement have been satisfied, 
as the Verizon service is available through a National Association of State Procurement Officials 
(NASPO) pre-bid contract that meets the requirements of General Municipal Law § 103(16), and 
the Connected Solutions Group procurement is below the $20,000 threshold requiring competitive 
bidding;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that Water Board staff hereby are authorized to procure Verizon One Talk 
monthly service from Verizon, and to purchase the equipment and installation services required for 
the upgrade to the One Talk system from Connected Solutions Group for a total cost not to exceed 
$14,542.49.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Director of Administrative Services

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board



Prepared by Company

Mobile # Contact

Today's Date Valid Until

Plan Quantity

Data        

Included                

(GB)

Discounted 

Monthly 

Access

Total              Data 

(GB)
Features Total

Flexible Business Plan                             

One Talk Desk Phone
110 100MB $25.00 9.76 GB Unlimited Talk / Text / 100 MB Data $2,750.00

Flexible Business Plan          Tablet 

Data Plan w/ One Talk 
20 2GB $26.95 40 GB

2GB Data Share Plan                            w/One 

Talk Line Share App
$539.00

Flexible Business Plan          

Cradlepoint Modem
1 Unlimited $39.99 X Unlimited Router Data Plan $39.99

Samsung EMM                             

Knox Manage
20 X $2.00 X Samsung EMM - Knox Manage $40.00

Flexible Business Plan                        

One Talk Auto Receptionist
1 X $20.00 X Auto Receptionist $20.00

Total 121 49.76 GB $3,388.99

$3,388.99

Qty Total

105 $16,275.00

5 $2,475.00

2 $790.00

1 $524.49

$20,064.49

Locations Total

2 $399.98

2 $399.98

$20,464.47

$155.00

$495.00

$524.49

Install & Service Costs:

Niagara Falls Waterboard

Joseph Morock

7/15/2018

Michael DiFranco

716-512-5128

June 29, 2018

IMPORTANT CONSUMER INFORMATION: Subject to Major Account Agmt, Calling Plan & credit approval. Charges up to 45c/min after allowance. Usage rounded to next 

full minute. Offers & coverage, which varies by service, not available everywhere. Network details & coverage maps at verizonwireless.com. 

Equipment:

ONE TIME EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORY TOTAL 

DATA PLAN WITH OPTIONAL SERVICES AND FEATURES MONTHLY TOTAL:

Product Description

Yealink T46GW IP Desk Phone

YealinkT49G IP Desk Phone

Product Description

Pepwave MAX BR1 Mini-LTE                          

(Antenna/Cables/Shipping)

Device Pricing:

Government Contract Pricing - NASPO Contract

Our Surcharges (incl. 2.29% Federal Universal Service (varies quarterly), 5¢ Regulatory & 40¢ Administrative/line/mo., & others by area) are not taxes (details: 1-888-684-

1888); gov't taxes and our surcharges could add 6% - 35% to your bill. 

CSG White Glove Installation                        w/2 year One 

Talk Support Services

Proprietary and Confidential. This Analysis is intended only as a reference and comparison of calling plan optimization. Taxes, surcharges and other charges are not 

included.

Total

Cost per Location

$199.99

$395.00Yealink CP860 IP Desk Phone



Sales Quote
Date

7/12/2018

Quote #

4962

Name / Address

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Attn: Joe Morock
5815 BUFFALO AVE
NIAGARA FALLS, NY 14304

Ship To

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Attn: Joe Morock
5815 BUFFALO AVE
NIAGARA FALLS, NY 14304

P.O. No.

L-5211111

Terms

CC

Rep

JKOTK

Total

Connected Solutions Group
8529 Meadowbridge Road
Suite 300
Mechanicsville VA 23116

Description Qty Cost Total

Verizon CPO Yealink T46GW - Including OEM Handset, Phone
Cord and Base

95 139.00 13,205.00

95 0.00 0.00
One Talk Promotional Subsidy Discount -2,850.00 -2,850.00

Verizon ONE TALK Handsets **Yealink T49G-D  Desktop
Phones** 
 from Manufacturer, Executive Video

5 495.00 2,475.00

Verizon One Talk Conference Phone System Yealink CP860 OEM
Sealed

2 395.00 790.00

MAX-BR1-MINI-LTE-US-T Pepwave MAX BR1 Mini - LTE

(North/South America)

1 299.00 299.00

New MiMo WMM LTE High Gain Antenna, 2G/3G/4G 0.3m/1ft
N(f) Mfr.P/N: WMMG-7-27-03NJ
SKU#: 4250926

1 160.00 160.00

 C29 Low Loss Cable (10 Meters)  SKU#: 4516791 1 29.99 29.99

Page 1



Sales Quote
Date

7/12/2018

Quote #

4962

Name / Address

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Attn: Joe Morock
5815 BUFFALO AVE
NIAGARA FALLS, NY 14304

Ship To

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD
Attn: Joe Morock
5815 BUFFALO AVE
NIAGARA FALLS, NY 14304

P.O. No.

L-5211111

Terms

CC

Rep

JKOTK

Total

Connected Solutions Group
8529 Meadowbridge Road
Suite 300
Mechanicsville VA 23116

Description Qty Cost Total

CSG White Glove Installation and 2 years of One Talk support
services:

Services Included:

Pre-Sale Consultation Call
Whiteboarding Session
Network Speed Testing
Call Flow & Call Mapping
My Biz Portal Configuration
Pre-Installation on-site inspection
Remote Training on Portal
Remote Training on Phone & OneTalk App
2 years of remote support
Lifetime troubleshooting
Installation of OneTalk Solution
Network configuration as needed

**The $199 is NON-REFUNDABLE after the network survey has
been completed.**

2 199.00 398.00

**100 OT Lines**

**Install of router and antenna @ $150 per hour (billed once we
know the amount of time of install)**

UPS Ground Shipping 35.50 35.50
TAX EXEMPT 0.00% 0.00

Page 2

$14,542.49



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-004

AUTHORIZING FUNDS FOR GHD 
TO PERFORM WORK REQUIRED BY CONSENT ORDER

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) entered into a Consent 
Order with the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (the “Department”) 
dated December 19, 2017 to address water quality concerns related to discharges from the 
Niagara Falls Wastewater Treatment Plant (the “WWTP”); and 

WHEREAS, GHD is performing substantial miscellaneous engineering work in 
connection with the Consent Order, in addition to work on engineering studies required by the 
Consent Order that are partially reimbursable pursuant to a grant and thus are dealt with in a 
separate Water Board resolution; and

WHEREAS, in a proposal dated June 27, 2018, GHD has estimated its fees for 
miscellaneous necessary work in connection with the Consent Order from May 2018 to 
May 2019 at $455,000, to be billed on a time and material basis; and

WHEREAS, the Water Board has engaged Clark Patterson Lee as its engineering 
management consultant and to monitor the work performed by engineering firms in connection 
with the Consent Order, and Rick Henry, P.E., has recommended that the Water Board authorize 
funds for the estimated future cost of GHD work on Consent Order items, with any payments to 
be subjected to review and approval by CPL; and

WHEREAS, CPL will provide regular reports to the Water Board regarding payments to 
GHD related to Consent Order work; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  *



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, the Executive Director is 
hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with GHD to perform miscellaneous engineering 
work required by the Consent Order, to be billed on a time and material basis and at a total cost 
not to exceed $455,000 as outlined in GHD’s June 27, 2018 proposal, with said agreement and 
any payments made pursuant to this resolution first to be approved by Rick Henry, P.E., of CPL, 
as the Board’s engineering management consultant.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Executive Director

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board



 
 
 
 

GHD 
285 Delaware Avenue Suite 500 Buffalo New York 14202 USA 
T 716 856 2142  F 716 856 2160  W www.ghd.com 

June 27, 2018 Reference No. 11145878 
 
 
Rolfe Porter, PE Original Sent Via Email 
Executive Director 
Niagara Falls Water Board 
5815 Buffalo Avenue 
Niagara Falls, New York 14304 
 
Dear Mr. Porter 
 
Re: Niagara Falls Water Board 

Order on Consent R9-20170906-129 
Continuing Order Assistance 

GHD appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal to continue assisting the Niagara Falls Water 
Board (NFWB) respond and comply with the Order on Consent (Order) referenced above. Our proposal 
provides for engineering assistance to the NFWB on items listed in Schedule A of the Order with the 
exception of Items 11 and 14 (GHD received separate authorization). These items were specifically 
addressed in a proposal dated March 13, 2018, and have subsequently received State funding. This 
proposal addresses professional engineering services required from May 1, 2018 through the completion 
of the Order requirements (March 2019). 

We have reviewed the 17 items in Schedule A of the Order with the NFWB, and identified those items that 
GHD will lead the engineering effort to comply with the item and those where GHD will support the efforts 
of John Goeddertz, PhD of AECOM. Through these discussions, we developed a collaborative approach 
to addressing each Order item. This approach has been working extremely well and resulted in numerous 
submittals to the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) prior to the Order 
stipulated due dates. 

Scope of Services 

GHD proposes to complete the following tasks in support of the NFWB’s obligations under the Order: 

Order Item 1 – O&M Procedures and Documentation Submittals 

1. Update and expand the computerized operations and maintenance manual (COMM) originally 
developed in the mid-2000s. We will migrate the existing content to a new website maintaining the 
COMM’s functionality and purpose. The NFWB will initiate the new website, host the data, and 
provide GHD read/write access. The COMM will be developed using WordPress, the NFWB’s 
preferred software. 

  

http://www.ghd.com/


 
 
 

11145878Porter-6 2 

2. Attachment A is a proposed table of contents for the COMM, which we developed following 
meetings with NFWB management, operations and maintenance personnel. Through these 
meetings, we developed the following standard appearance for process related pages in the 
COMM. 

3. We also developed the “storyboard” approach to the WWTP graphical navigator to assist operations 
and maintenance staff quickly access desired content of the COMM. The graphical navigator may 
require the NFWB to have their website developer provide advance design assistance. 

4. Expand the NFWB’s existing Lucity computerized maintenance management system (CMMS) to 
include preventive maintenance tasks and schedules for the process equipment at the WWTP. This 
effort involves obtaining manufacturer operations and maintenance manuals (O&MM) from the 
NFWB and/or from the manufacturer when possible. We will extract maintenance tasks and 
schedules from the manufacturer’s O&MM along with necessary attribute information (i.e., motor 
size), if available in documents. GHD will assemble the preventive maintenance tasks in a table 
organized in a schedule format. The preventive maintenance table will be reviewed with NFWB 
maintenance staff and we will address their suggested changes and comments. The agreed to 
maintenance tasks and schedules will then be placed into a “flat file” as required for upload into the 
CMMS by Lucity personnel. 

5. Provide access through the COMM website to a staffing plan developed by the NFWB. We 
anticipate the staffing plan will consist of an organization chart, job duties, and shift assignments. 

Order Item 2 – Operation as per Approved Plans 

AECOM developed this item and the NYSDEC has approved this submittal. 

Order Item 3 – Sedimentation Basin Dewatering Procedures 

AECOM developed this item and the NYSDEC has approved this submittal. 

Order Item 4 – Excess Solids Work Plan Submittal 

AECOM developed Items 4a-4c and GHD developed Item 4d for the February 2018 required submission; 
NYSDEC has approved this submittal. 

Order Item 5 – Improve Sedimentation Basin Traveling Bridge and Chain & Flight Reliability 

Item 5a of the Order will mainly be addressed through the expansion of the COMM and update of the 
CMMS when addressing Item 1 of the Order. Ongoing O&M efforts to repair and maintain operability of 
the equipment is being led by Dr. John Goeddertz (AECOM) and Kenneth Maving of GHD. GHD will 
provide support as requested and will incorporate updated O&M tasks into COMM and Lucity CMMS. 

AECOM developed Items 5b-5c for the March 2018 required submission.  



 
 
 

11145878Porter-6 3 

Item 5d of the Order requires an evaluation of the recurring mechanical problems with sedimentation 
basin mechanical equipment and the development of recommendations and schedules for problem 
correction. GHD proposes to: 

1. Investigate the operational issues with the subject equipment including recent maintenance 
observations and repair activities. 

2. Develop a draft report summarizing the findings, consistent with quarterly progress reports and 
facility improvement funding initiatives. 

3. Distribute the draft report and attend one review meeting with NFWB and AECOM staff. 

4. Finalize the report and provide to NFWB Counsel for the NYSDEC submission. 

5. Address NYSDEC questions concerning the report. 

Implementing the recommended sedimentation basin improvements, once approved by the NYSDEC, will 
be an additional effort requiring a supplemental authorization. 

Order Item 6 – Ferric Chloride Alternative Evaluation Work Plan Submittal 

Dr. John Goeddertz (AECOM) is taking the lead with this work item. GHD will support AECOM’s work by 
providing relevant background information, reviewing and commenting on documents, participating in 
meetings to plan and conduct the associated work, and technical input as requested by AECOM and the 
NFWB. 

Order Item 7 – Sedimentation Basin 5 Alternative Evaluation Work Plan Submittal 

Dr. John Goeddertz (AECOM) is taking the lead with this work item. GHD will support AECOM’s work by 
providing relevant background information, reviewing and commenting on documents, participating in 
meetings to plan and conduct the associated work, and technical input as requested by AECOM and the 
NFWB. 

Order Item 8 – WWOP Update Submittal 

The current Wet Weather Operating Plan (WWOP) was approved by the NYSDEC in November 2004, as 
required by the NFWB facility SPDES permit. The Order now requires an update to the WWOP focusing 
on changes to reduce wet weather plant bypasses. GHD proposes to: 

1. Review the current plan and all associated documents. 

2. Update the WWOP for changes in staff, SIU’s, the current SPDES permit, etc. 

3. Update the WWOP for changes to facility and sewer collection system infrastructure that have 
occurred since 2004. 

4. Update the WWOP for changes to facility operations that have been implemented since 2004. This 
includes changes to sedimentation basin and carbon filter operation made during 2018. 

5. Distribute the draft update and attend one review meeting with NFWB and AECOM staff. 



 
 
 

11145878Porter-6 4 

6. Finalize the update and provide to NFWB Counsel for NYSDEC submission. 

7. Address NYSDEC questions concerning the updated WWOP. 

The format of the WWOP will be similar to the format of the 2004 approved plan. 

Order Item 9 – Disinfection Improvement Recommendation Submittal 

Dr. John Goeddertz (AECOM) is taking the lead with this work item. GHD will support AECOM’s work by 
providing relevant background information, reviewing and commenting on documents, participating in 
meetings to plan and conduct the associated work, and technical input as requested by AECOM and the 
NFWB. 

Order Item 10 – Carbon System Oxidizer Evaluation Work Plan Submittal 

Dr. John Goeddertz (AECOM) is taking the lead with this work item. GHD will support AECOM’s work by 
providing relevant background information, reviewing and commenting on documents, participating in 
meetings to plan and conduct the associated work, and technical input as requested by AECOM and the 
NFWB. 

Order Item 11 – Treatment Process Alternative Report 

This item was specifically addressed in a proposal dated March 13, 2018, has subsequently received 
State funding, and GHD received a separate authorization to perform the work. 

Order Item 12 – GPS and FST CSO and SSO Documentation Submittal 

GHD developed this item for the March 2018 required submission. GHD has since addressed related 
questions by the NYSDEC.  

Order Item 13 – NY-Alert CSO and SSO Reporting Documentation Submittal 

GHD developed a response to this item for the March 2018 required submission.  

Order Item 14 – Outfall 001 and 003 Relocation Evaluation Submittal 

This item was specifically addressed in a proposal dated March 13, 2018, has subsequently received 
State funding, and GHD received a separate authorization to perform the work. 

Order Item 15 – Quarterly Report Progress Submittals 

Dr. John Goeddertz (AECOM) serves as the designated On-Site Environmental Monitor (OEM) and, as 
such, prepares the required quarterly progress reports. GHD has been reviewing and commenting upon 
the draft quarterly reports, and will continue to do so as requested. 

Order Item 16 – Sedimentation Basin 5 Dewatering Restrictions 

GHD has been providing technical assistance concerning the operation of Sedimentation Basin 5 and will 
continue to do so as requested. 



 
 
 

11145878Porter-6 5 

Order Item 17 – Update Operating Plans and Staff Direction 

GHD has been providing technical assistance concerning day-to-day facility operations and training, and 
will continue to do so as requested. 

SharePoint and Microsoft Project Scheduling Assistance 

GHD has been providing assistance with implementation of NFWB SharePoint sites. We have also 
developed the overall Order schedule and are tracking progress on each of the items listed in Schedule A. 
We will continue providing this technical assistance as requested by the NFWB. 

Training PowerPoints 

GHD has developed training PowerPoints for many of the key processes of the WWTP. We will continue 
developing these training tools as requested by the NFWB. 

Engineer’s Report for Funding Applications 

Assist the NFWB in pursuing funding for various improvements at the WWTP by preparing an engineer’s 
report that the NFWB will use when applying for funding from State and Federal agencies. The report will 
follow New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation’s (NYSEFC) guidelines. The report will 
address the nine project groupings identified by the NFWB and contained in the 5-Year Capital Plan. 

Meetings and General Consultation 

Attend team meetings scheduled by the NFWB to discuss response development and respond to issues 
related to the Order. GHD will continue providing consultation as requested by the NFWB. 

Proposed Schedule and Fee 

GHD will complete the above scope of services by the due dates listed in Schedule A of the Order. GHD 
proposes to furnish the above scope of services for an estimated not-to-exceed fee of $455,000. Table 1 
provides an anticipated breakdown of our fee. Labor will be invoiced hourly in accordance with our 
2018/2019 USA Fee Schedule. Invoicing for services will be issued monthly and direct expenses will be 
invoiced at cost plus 5 percent. Invoices will be due within 30 days from receipt. 

  



 
 
 

11145878Porter-6 6 

Table 1 Anticipated Fee Breakdown 
Scope Tasks Estimated Fee 
Order Item 1 – COMM $175,000 
Order Item 1 – CMMS (Lucity) $100,000 
Order Item 5d $  15,000 
Order Item 8 $  20,000 
Engineer’s Report for Funding $  35,000 
Meetings, SharePoint, MS Project and General Consultation Allowance 
(includes GHD support of AECOM lead efforts) 

$110,000 

TOTAL $455,000 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal. We look forward to continuing our assistance to the 
Niagara Falls Water Board on the Order on Consent. If you have any questions, please contact us at your 
convenience. 

Sincerely, 

GHD 

 
Robert P. Lannon Jr., PE  
Vice President 

RPL/PJM/RRR/las/6 

Attachments 

cc: Paul J. McGarvey, PE BCEE – GHD 
Richard R. Roll, PE DEE – GHD 
Mr. Kenneth F. Maving – GHD 
Casey W. Cowan, PE – GHD 



 

 

11145878Porter-6-AttA Page 1 

Attachment A 
Niagara Falls Water Board 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Computerized O&M Manual 
Table of Contents 

 
 
Chapter 1 – Introduction 
 
Chapter 2 – Permits & Standards 
 
Chapter 3 – Wastewater Treatment Facilities 
 
3.1 Gorge Pumping Station 
 
3.2 Main Pumping/Preliminary Treatment 
 
3.3 Primary Treatment 
 
3.4 Intermediate Pumping/Carbon Treatment 
 
3.5 Chemical Oxidation/Disinfection 
 
Chapter 4 – Sludge Treatment Facilities 

 
4.1 Thickening and Thickened Sludge Pumping 

 
4.2 Sludge Dewatering 
 
4.3 Sludge Stabilization 
 
Chapter 5 – Plant-Wide Support Systems 
  
5.1 Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning Systems 

 
5.2 Electrical Systems 

 
5.3 Plumbing Systems 

 
5.4 Natural Gas Systems 
 
5.5 Plant Water System 
 
Chapter 6 – Laboratory Procedures 
 
Chapter 7 – Records 
  



 

 
 

11145878Porter-6-AttA 2 

Chapter 8 – Emergency Procedures 
 
8.1 Emergency Situations 

 
8.2 Wet Weather Operating Plan 
 
8.3 Emergency Contacts and Telephone Tree 



 

 

11145878Porter-6-AttB Page 1 

Attachment B 
Niagara Falls Water Board 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Computerized O&M Manual 
Equipment Page Template 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Relevant Text 
 

3D IMAGES 

    TRAINING        DRAWINGS        STAFFING PLAN        STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES        MAINTENANCE         SAFETY         GLOSSARY         LINKS 

 

Chapter 3.X 
General Process Summary 
Equipment Description 
Design Criteria 
Controls 
Start-up/Shutdown 
Maintenance 
Nameplate Data 
Manufacturer & Rep Info 
Safety 
Drawings 



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-005

SEQRA NOTICE LEAD AGENCY DESIGNATION AND DETERMINATION OF 
SIGNIFICANCE FOR THE NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD BEECH AVE WATER 

TANK IMPROVEMENTS

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has, by Resolution 
# 2018-02-20, determined that it is appropriate to apply for grant funding to assist in the 
financing of the various capital improvement projects identified in such resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board has proposed to demolish the existing Beech Avenue 
Water Tower and erect a new storage tank for improving the water distribution system within the 
City; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of 6 NYCRR Part 617 (SEQRA), the 
Board adopted Resolution # 2018-02-20, on February 26, 2018 declaring its intent to act as Lead 
Agency for the Proposed Action and circulated said intent to all Involved Agencies; and 

WHEREAS, no Involved Agencies challenged the intent of the Board to act as Lead 
Agency.  

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  *



Page 2 of 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

RESOLVED, that the Water Board hereby designates itself as Lead Agency for the 
proposed action pursuant to 6 NYCRR Part 617; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that based upon examination of the Environmental 
Assessment Form (EAF), its own independent analysis of the Proposed Action, and comparison 
with the criteria for determining significance under 6 NYCRR 617.7, the Water Board finds that 
the Proposed Action will not have a significant environmental impact and hereby issues a 
Negative Declaration; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this determination is based on the facts and 
conclusions as noted in the attached EAF.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Executive Director

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:
Not applicable.

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board

CERTIFICATION
I, Sean W. Costello, duly appointed and qualified as General Counsel and Secretary to 

the Niagara Falls Water Board, do hereby CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted at 
a meeting duly called and held in the office of the Niagara Falls Water Board, a quorum present 
on the 30th day of July 2018, and that said copy is a true, correct and compared copy of the 
original resolution so adopted and that the same has not been revoked or rescinded.

WITNESSETH, my hand and seal this ____ day of July, 2018.

_______________________________
Sean W. Costello, General Counsel 
  and Secretary to the Board



Page 1 of 13 

Full Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 1 - Project and Setting 

Instructions for Completing Part 1              

Part 1 is to be completed by the applicant or project sponsor.  Responses become part of the application for approval or funding, 
are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.   

Complete Part 1 based on information currently available.  If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to 
any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information; indicate whether missing information does not exist, 
or is not reasonably available to the sponsor; and, when possible, generally describe work or studies which would be necessary to 
update or fully develop that information.   

Applicants/sponsors must complete all items in Sections A & B.  In Sections C, D & E, most items contain an initial question that 
must be answered either “Yes” or “No”.  If the answer to the initial question is “Yes”, complete the sub-questions that follow.  If the 
answer to the initial question is “No”, proceed to the next question.  Section F allows the project sponsor to identify and attach any 
additional information.  Section G requires the name and signature of the project sponsor to verify that the information contained in 
Part 1is accurate and complete. 

A. Project and Sponsor Information. 

Name of Action or Project:  

Project Location (describe, and attach a general location map): 

Brief Description of Proposed Action (include purpose or need): 

Name of Applicant/Sponsor: Telephone:  

E-Mail: 

Address: 

City/PO: State:  Zip Code: 

Project Contact (if not same as sponsor; give name and title/role): Telephone: 

E-Mail: 

Address: 

City/PO: State: Zip Code:

Property Owner  (if not same as sponsor): Telephone: 
E-Mail: 

Address: 

City/PO: State: Zip Code:

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91625.html


Page 2 of 13 

B. Government Approvals 

B. Government Approvals, Funding, or Sponsorship.  (“Funding” includes grants, loans, tax relief, and any other forms of financial 
assistance.)   

Government Entity If Yes: Identify Agency and Approval(s) 
Required 

Application Date 
(Actual or projected) 

a. City Council, Town Board, 9 Yes 9 No
or Village Board of Trustees

b. City, Town or Village 9 Yes 9 No 
Planning Board or Commission

c. City Council, Town or 9 Yes 9 No 
Village Zoning Board of Appeals

d. Other local agencies 9 Yes 9 No 

e. County agencies 9 Yes 9 No 

f. Regional agencies 9 Yes 9 No 

g. State agencies 9 Yes 9 No 

h. Federal agencies 9 Yes 9 No 

i. Coastal Resources.
i. Is the project site within a Coastal Area, or the waterfront area of a Designated Inland Waterway? 9 Yes 9 No 

ii. Is the project site located in a community with an approved Local Waterfront Revitalization Program?   9 Yes 9 No 
iii. Is the project site within a Coastal Erosion Hazard Area? 9 Yes 9 No 

C. Planning and Zoning 

C.1. Planning and zoning actions. 
Will administrative or legislative adoption, or amendment of a plan, local law, ordinance, rule or  regulation be the 9 Yes 9 No  
 only approval(s) which must be granted to enable the proposed action to proceed?  

• If Yes, complete sections C, F and G.
• If No, proceed to question C.2 and complete all remaining sections and questions in Part 1

C.2. Adopted land use plans. 

a. Do any municipally- adopted  (city, town, village or county) comprehensive land use plan(s) include the site 9 Yes 9 No 
where the proposed action would be located?

If Yes, does the comprehensive plan include specific recommendations for the site where the proposed action 9 Yes 9 No 
would be located? 
b. Is the site of the proposed action within any local or regional special planning district (for example:  Greenway   9 Yes 9 No 

Brownfield Opportunity Area (BOA); designated State or Federal heritage area; watershed management plan;
or other?)

If Yes, identify the plan(s):   
     _______________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________   
 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

c. Is the proposed action located wholly or partially within an area listed in an adopted municipal open space plan,   9 Yes 9 No
or an adopted municipal farmland  protection plan?

If Yes, identify the plan(s): 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91635.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91640.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91630.html


Page 3 of 13 

C.3.  Zoning 

a. Is the site of the proposed action located in a municipality with an adopted zoning law or ordinance.  9 Yes 9 No
If Yes, what is the zoning classification(s) including any applicable overlay district? 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

b. Is the use permitted or allowed by a special or conditional use permit? 9 Yes 9 No 

c. Is a zoning change requested as part of the proposed action? 9 Yes 9 No  
If Yes, 

i. What is the proposed new zoning for the site?   ___________________________________________________________________

C.4. Existing community services. 

a. In what school district is the project site located?    ________________________________________________________________

b. What police or other public protection forces serve the project site?
    _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

c. Which fire protection and emergency medical services serve the project site?
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________

d. What parks serve the project site?
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________

D. Project Details 

D.1. Proposed and Potential Development 

a. What is the general nature of the proposed action (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial, recreational; if mixed, include all
components)?
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

b. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? _____________  acres 
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? _____________  acres 
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned

or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? _____________  acres 

c. Is the proposed action an expansion of an existing project or use? 9 Yes 9 No 
i. If Yes, what is the approximate percentage of the proposed expansion and identify the units (e.g., acres, miles, housing units,

square feet)?    % ____________________  Units: ____________________
d. Is the proposed action a subdivision, or does it include a subdivision?  9 Yes 9 No 
If Yes,  

i. Purpose or type of subdivision? (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial; if mixed, specify types)
  ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ii. Is a cluster/conservation layout proposed?  9 Yes 9 No 
iii. Number of  lots proposed?   ________
iv. Minimum and maximum proposed lot sizes?  Minimum  __________  Maximum __________

e. Will proposed action be constructed in multiple phases? 9 Yes 9 No 
i. If No, anticipated period of construction:  _____  months 

ii. If Yes:
• Total number of phases anticipated  _____ 
• Anticipated commencement date of  phase 1 (including demolition)  _____  month  _____ year 
• Anticipated completion date of final phase  _____  month  _____year 
• Generally describe connections or relationships among phases, including any contingencies where progress of one phase may

determine timing or duration of future phases: _______________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91645.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91650.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91655.html


Page 4 of 13 

f. Does the project include new residential uses? 9 Yes 9 No  
If Yes, show numbers of units proposed. 

  One Family      Two Family         Three Family        Multiple Family (four or more)  

Initial Phase    ___________      ___________    ____________      ________________________ 
At completion 
   of all phases       ___________      ___________    ____________   ________________________  

g. Does the proposed action include new non-residential construction (including expansions)?  9 Yes 9 No   
If Yes, 

i. Total number of structures ___________
ii. Dimensions (in feet) of largest proposed structure: ________height; ________width;  and  _______ length

iii. Approximate extent of building space to be heated or cooled:  ______________________ square feet

h. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that will result in the impoundment of any   9 Yes 9 No 
liquids, such as creation of a water supply, reservoir, pond, lake, waste lagoon or other storage?

If Yes,  
i. Purpose of the impoundment:  ________________________________________________________________________________

ii. If a water impoundment, the principal source of the water:                     9  Ground water  9 Surface water streams  9 Other specify:
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. If other than water, identify the type of impounded/contained liquids and their source.
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iv. Approximate size of the proposed impoundment.    Volume: ____________ million gallons; surface area: ____________  acres 
v. Dimensions of the proposed dam or impounding structure:       ________ height; _______ length

vi. Construction method/materials  for the proposed dam or impounding structure (e.g., earth fill, rock, wood, concrete):
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

D.2.  Project Operations 
a. Does the proposed action include any excavation, mining, or dredging, during construction, operations, or both? 9 Yes 9 No

(Not including general site preparation, grading or installation of utilities or foundations where all excavated
materials will remain onsite)

If Yes:  
  i .What is the purpose of the excavation or dredging?  _______________________________________________________________ 
ii. How much material (including rock, earth, sediments, etc.) is proposed to be removed from the site?

• Volume (specify tons or cubic yards): ____________________________________________
• Over what duration of time? ____________________________________________________

iii. Describe nature and characteristics of materials to be excavated or dredged, and plans to use, manage or dispose of them.
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

iv. Will there be onsite dewatering or processing of excavated materials?  9 Yes 9 No 
   If yes, describe. ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

v. What is the total area to be dredged or excavated?  _____________________________________acres
vi. What is the maximum area to be worked at any one time? _______________________________ acres

vii. What would be the maximum depth of excavation or dredging? __________________________ feet
viii. Will the excavation require blasting? 9 Yes 9 No 
ix. Summarize site reclamation goals and plan: _____________________________________________________________________

   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

b. Would the proposed action cause or result in alteration of, increase or decrease in size of, or encroachment 9 Yes 9 No 
into any existing wetland, waterbody, shoreline, beach or adjacent area?

If Yes: 
i. Identify the wetland or waterbody which would be affected (by name, water index number, wetland map number or geographic

description):  ______________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91660.html


Page 5 of 13 

ii. Describe how the  proposed action would affect that waterbody or wetland, e.g. excavation, fill, placement of structures, or
alteration of channels, banks and shorelines.  Indicate extent of activities, alterations and additions in square feet or acres:
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Will proposed action cause or result in disturbance to bottom sediments?       9 Yes 9 No
If Yes, describe:  __________________________________________________________________________________________

iv. Will proposed action cause or result in the destruction or removal of aquatic vegetation? 9  Yes 9 No 
If Yes:
• acres of aquatic vegetation proposed to be removed:  ___________________________________________________________
• expected acreage of aquatic vegetation remaining after project completion:________________________________________
• purpose of proposed removal (e.g. beach clearing, invasive species control, boat access):  ____________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________
• proposed method of plant removal: ________________________________________________________________________
• if chemical/herbicide treatment will be used, specify product(s): _________________________________________________

v. Describe any proposed reclamation/mitigation following disturbance: _________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

c. Will the proposed action use, or create a new demand for water?  9 Yes 9 No 
If Yes:  

i. Total anticipated water usage/demand per day:      __________________________ gallons/day
ii. Will the proposed action obtain water from an existing public water supply?  9 Yes 9 No 

If Yes:  
• Name of district or service area:   _________________________________________________________________________
• Does the existing public water supply have capacity to serve the proposal?  9 Yes 9 No 
• Is the project site in the existing district?  9 Yes 9 No 
• Is expansion of the district needed?  9 Yes 9 No 
• Do existing lines serve the project site?  9 Yes 9 No  

iii. Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to supply the project?  9 Yes 9 No 
If Yes: 

• Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project: ________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

• Source(s) of supply for the district: ________________________________________________________________________
iv. Is a new water supply district or service area proposed to be formed to serve the project site?  9 Yes 9 No 

If, Yes: 
• Applicant/sponsor for new district: ________________________________________________________________________
• Date application submitted or anticipated: __________________________________________________________________
• Proposed source(s) of supply for new district: _______________________________________________________________

v. If a public water supply will not be used, describe plans to provide water supply for the project: ___________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

vi. If water supply will be from wells (public or private), maximum pumping capacity: _______ gallons/minute.

d. Will the proposed action generate liquid wastes? 9 Yes 9 No 
If Yes: 

i. Total anticipated liquid waste generation per day:  _______________  gallons/day
ii. Nature of liquid wastes to be generated (e.g., sanitary wastewater, industrial; if combination, describe all components and

approximate volumes or proportions of each):   __________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Will the proposed action use any existing public wastewater treatment facilities? 9 Yes 9 No 
If Yes:
• Name of wastewater treatment plant to be used: _____________________________________________________________
• Name of district:  ______________________________________________________________________________________
• Does the existing wastewater treatment plant have capacity to serve the project? 9 Yes 9 No 
• Is the project site in the existing district? 9 Yes 9 No 
• Is expansion of the district needed? 9 Yes 9 No 



Page 6 of 13 

• Do existing sewer lines serve the project site? 9 Yes 9 No 
• Will line extension within an existing district be necessary to serve the project? 9 Yes 9 No 

If Yes:  
• Describe extensions or capacity expansions proposed to serve this project: ____________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

iv. Will a new wastewater (sewage) treatment district be formed to serve the project site? 9 Yes 9 No 
If Yes:
• Applicant/sponsor for new district: ____________________________________________________________________
• Date application submitted or anticipated: _______________________________________________________________
• What is the receiving water for the wastewater discharge? __________________________________________________

v. If public facilities will not be used, describe plans to provide wastewater treatment for the project, including specifying proposed
  receiving water (name and classification if surface discharge, or describe subsurface disposal plans): 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

vi. Describe any plans or designs to capture, recycle or reuse liquid waste: _______________________________________________
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________    

e. Will the proposed action disturb more than one acre and create stormwater runoff, either from new point 9 Yes 9 No 
sources (i.e. ditches, pipes, swales, curbs, gutters or other concentrated flows of stormwater) or non-point

   source (i.e. sheet flow) during construction or post construction? 
If Yes:  

i. How much impervious surface will the project create in relation to total size of project parcel?
 _____ Square feet or  _____ acres (impervious surface) 
_____  Square feet or  _____ acres (parcel size) 

ii. Describe types of new point sources.  __________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Where will the stormwater runoff  be directed (i.e. on-site stormwater management facility/structures, adjacent properties,
groundwater, on-site surface water or off-site surface waters)?   

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________    
   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
• If to surface waters, identify receiving water bodies or wetlands:  ________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

• Will stormwater runoff flow to adjacent properties? 9 Yes 9 No 
iv. Does proposed plan minimize impervious surfaces, use pervious materials or collect and re-use stormwater? 9 Yes 9 No 
f. Does the proposed action include, or will it use on-site, one or more sources of air emissions, including fuel 9 Yes 9 No 

combustion, waste incineration, or other processes or operations?
If Yes, identify: 

i. Mobile sources during project operations (e.g., heavy equipment, fleet or delivery vehicles)
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Stationary sources during construction (e.g., power generation, structural heating, batch plant, crushers)
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Stationary sources during operations (e.g., process emissions, large boilers, electric generation)
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

g. Will any air emission sources named in D.2.f (above), require a NY State Air Registration, Air Facility Permit, 9 Yes 9 No 
or Federal Clean Air Act Title IV or Title V Permit?

If Yes:  
i. Is the project site located in an Air quality non-attainment area?  (Area routinely or periodically fails to meet 9 Yes 9 No 

ambient air quality standards for all or some parts of the year)
ii. In addition to emissions as calculated in the application, the project will generate:

• ___________Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide (CO2)
• ___________Tons/year (short tons) of Nitrous Oxide (N2O)
• ___________Tons/year (short tons) of Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)
• ___________Tons/year (short tons) of Sulfur Hexafluoride (SF6)
• ___________Tons/year (short tons) of Carbon Dioxide equivalent of Hydroflourocarbons (HFCs)
• ___________Tons/year (short tons) of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)



Page 7 of 13 

h. Will the proposed action generate or emit methane (including, but not limited to, sewage treatment plants, 9 Yes 9 No 
landfills, composting facilities)?

If Yes:  
i. Estimate methane generation in tons/year (metric): ________________________________________________________________

ii. Describe any methane capture, control or elimination measures included in project design (e.g., combustion to generate heat or
electricity, flaring): ________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

i. Will the proposed action result in the release of air pollutants from open-air operations or processes, such as 9 Yes 9 No 
quarry or landfill operations?

If Yes: Describe operations and nature of emissions (e.g., diesel exhaust, rock particulates/dust):   
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

j. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels or generate substantial 9 Yes 9 No 
new demand for transportation facilities or services?

If Yes:   
i. When is the peak traffic expected (Check all that apply):  Morning  Evening Weekend

 Randomly between hours of __________  to  ________.
ii. For commercial activities only, projected number of semi-trailer truck trips/day: _______________________

iii. Parking spaces: Existing _____________ Proposed ___________ Net increase/decrease  _____________ 
iv. Does the proposed action include any shared use parking? 9 Yes 9 No 
v. If the proposed action includes any modification of existing roads, creation of new roads or change in existing access, describe:

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

vi. Are public/private transportation service(s) or facilities available within ½ mile of the proposed site? 9 Yes 9 No 
vii  Will the proposed action include access to public transportation or accommodations for use of hybrid, electric 9 Yes 9 No 

 or other alternative fueled vehicles? 
viii. Will the proposed action include plans for pedestrian or bicycle accommodations for connections to existing 9 Yes 9 No 

pedestrian or bicycle routes?

k. Will the proposed action (for commercial or industrial projects only) generate new or additional demand 9 Yes 9 No 
for energy?

If Yes:   
i. Estimate annual electricity demand during operation of the proposed action: ____________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
ii. Anticipated sources/suppliers of electricity for the project (e.g., on-site combustion, on-site renewable, via grid/local utility, or

other):
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Will the proposed action require a new, or an upgrade to, an existing substation? 9 Yes 9 No 

l. Hours of operation.  Answer all items which apply.
i. During Construction: ii. During Operations:
• Monday - Friday: _________________________ • Monday - Friday: ____________________________
• Saturday: ________________________________ • Saturday: ___________________________________
• Sunday: _________________________________ • Sunday: ____________________________________
• Holidays: ________________________________ • Holidays: ___________________________________



Page 8 of 13 

m. Will the proposed action produce noise that will exceed existing ambient noise levels during construction, 9 Yes 9 No 
operation, or both?

If yes:   
i. Provide details including sources, time of day and duration:

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a noise barrier or screen? 9 Yes 9 No 
 Describe: _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

n.. Will the proposed action have outdoor lighting? 9 Yes 9 No  
 If yes: 
i. Describe source(s), location(s), height of fixture(s), direction/aim, and proximity to nearest occupied structures:

  _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ii. Will proposed action remove existing natural barriers that could act as a light barrier or screen? 9 Yes 9 No 
 Describe: _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

o. Does the proposed action have the potential to produce odors for more than one hour per day? 9 Yes 9 No 
  If Yes, describe possible sources, potential frequency and duration of odor emissions, and proximity to nearest 
  occupied structures:     ______________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

p. 9 Yes 9 No Will the proposed action include any bulk storage of petroleum (combined capacity of over 1,100 gallons) 
or chemical products 185 gallons in above ground storage or any amount in underground storage?

If Yes: 
i. Product(s) to be stored ______________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Volume(s) ______      per unit time ___________  (e.g., month, year)
iii. Generally describe proposed storage facilities:  ___________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________

q. Will the proposed action (commercial, industrial and recreational projects only) use pesticides (i.e., herbicides, 9  Yes  9 No 
insecticides) during construction or operation?

If Yes:  
i. Describe proposed treatment(s):

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Will the proposed action use Integrated Pest Management Practices? 9  Yes  9 No 
r. Will the proposed action (commercial or industrial projects only) involve or require the management or disposal 9  Yes  9 No

of solid waste (excluding hazardous materials)?
If Yes: 

i. Describe any solid waste(s) to be generated during construction or operation of the facility:
• Construction:  ____________________  tons per ________________ (unit of time)
• Operation :      ____________________  tons per ________________ (unit of time)

ii. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of materials to avoid disposal as solid waste:
• Construction:  ________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________
• Operation:  __________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________
iii. Proposed disposal methods/facilities for solid waste generated on-site:

• Construction:  ________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________

• Operation:  __________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________



Page 9 of 13 

s. Does the proposed action include construction or modification of a solid waste management facility? 9  Yes  9  No  
If Yes: 

i. Type of management or handling of waste proposed for the site (e.g., recycling or transfer station, composting, landfill, or
other disposal activities): ___________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Anticipated rate of disposal/processing:
• ________ Tons/month, if transfer or other non-combustion/thermal treatment, or
• ________ Tons/hour, if combustion or thermal treatment

iii. If landfill, anticipated site life: ________________________________ years

t. Will proposed action at the site involve the commercial generation, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous 9 Yes 9 No 
waste?

If Yes: 
i. Name(s) of all hazardous wastes or constituents to be generated, handled or managed at facility: ___________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Generally describe processes or activities involving hazardous wastes or constituents: ___________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Specify amount to be handled or generated  _____ tons/month
iv. Describe any proposals for on-site minimization, recycling or reuse of hazardous constituents: ____________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

v. Will any hazardous wastes be disposed at an existing offsite hazardous waste facility? 9 Yes 9 No  
If Yes: provide name and location of facility: _______________________________________________________________________ 
       ________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
If No: describe proposed management of any hazardous wastes which will not be sent to a hazardous waste facility:     

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

E. Site and Setting of Proposed Action 

 E.1. Land uses on and surrounding the project site 

a. Existing land uses.
i. Check all uses that occur on, adjoining and near the project site.

9  Urban      9  Industrial      9  Commercial      9  Residential (suburban)      9  Rural (non-farm) 
9  Forest      9  Agriculture   9  Aquatic      9  Other (specify): ____________________________________ 

ii. If mix of uses, generally describe:
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

b. Land uses and covertypes on the project site.
Land use or  
Covertype 

Current 
Acreage 

Acreage After 
Project Completion 

Change 
(Acres +/-) 

• Roads, buildings, and other paved or impervious
surfaces

• Forested
• Meadows, grasslands or brushlands (non-

agricultural, including abandoned agricultural)
• Agricultural

(includes active orchards, field, greenhouse etc.) 
• Surface water features

(lakes, ponds, streams, rivers, etc.) 
• Wetlands (freshwater or tidal)
• Non-vegetated (bare rock, earth or fill)

• Other
Describe: _______________________________ 
________________________________________ 

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91665.html


Page 10 of 13 

c. Is the project site presently used by members of the community for public recreation? 9 Yes 9 No 
i. If Yes: explain:  __________________________________________________________________________________________

d. Are there any facilities serving children, the elderly, people with disabilities (e.g., schools, hospitals, licensed 9 Yes 9 No 
day care centers, or group homes) within 1500 feet of the project site?

If Yes,  
i. Identify Facilities:

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

e. Does the project site contain an existing dam? 9 Yes 9 No 
If Yes: 

i. Dimensions of the dam and impoundment:
• Dam height:    _________________________________  feet 
• Dam length:    _________________________________  feet 
• Surface area:    _________________________________  acres 
• Volume impounded:  _______________________________ gallons OR acre-feet

ii. Dam=s existing hazard classification:  _________________________________________________________________________
iii. Provide date and summarize results of last inspection:

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
   _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

f. Has the project site ever been used as a municipal, commercial or industrial solid waste management facility, 9 Yes 9 No 
or does the project site adjoin  property which is now, or was at one time, used as a solid waste management facility?

If Yes:  
i. Has the facility been formally closed? 9 Yes 9  No 
• If yes, cite sources/documentation: _______________________________________________________________________

ii. Describe the location of the project site relative to the boundaries of the solid waste management facility:
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Describe any development constraints due to the prior solid waste activities: __________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

g. Have hazardous wastes been generated, treated and/or disposed of at the site, or does the project site adjoin 9 Yes 9 No  
property which is now or was at one time used to commercially treat, store and/or dispose of hazardous waste?

If Yes:  
i. Describe waste(s) handled and waste management activities, including approximate time when activities occurred:

 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

h. Potential contamination history.  Has there been a reported spill at the proposed  project site, or have any 9 Yes 9  No  
remedial actions been conducted at or adjacent to the proposed site?

If Yes: 
i. Is any portion of the site listed on the NYSDEC Spills Incidents database or Environmental Site 9 Yes 9 No 

Remediation database?  Check all that apply:
9  Yes – Spills Incidents database       Provide DEC ID number(s): ________________________________ 
9  Yes – Environmental Site Remediation database Provide DEC ID number(s): ________________________________ 
9  Neither database 

ii. If site has been subject of RCRA corrective activities, describe control measures:_______________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Is the project within 2000 feet of any site in the NYSDEC Environmental Site Remediation database? 9 Yes 9 No 
If yes, provide DEC ID number(s):  ______________________________________________________________________________ 
iv. If yes to (i), (ii) or (iii) above, describe current status of site(s):

 _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 



Page 11 of 13 

v. Is the project site subject to an institutional control limiting property uses? 9 Yes 9 No  
• If yes, DEC site ID number: ____________________________________________________________________________
• Describe the type of institutional control (e.g., deed restriction or easement):    ____________________________________
• Describe any use limitations: ___________________________________________________________________________
• Describe any engineering controls: _______________________________________________________________________
• Will the project affect the institutional or engineering controls in place? 9 Yes 9 No 
• Explain: ____________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

E.2.  Natural Resources On or Near Project Site 
a. What is the average depth to bedrock on the project site?  ________________ feet 

b. Are there bedrock outcroppings on the project site? 9 Yes 9 No 
If Yes, what proportion of the site is comprised of bedrock outcroppings?  __________________% 

c. Predominant soil type(s) present on project site:  ___________________________  __________% 
 ___________________________  __________% 
____________________________  __________% 

d. What is the average depth to the water table on the project site?  Average:  _________ feet

e. Drainage status of project site soils: 9  Well Drained: _____% of site 
 9  Moderately Well Drained: _____% of site 
 9  Poorly Drained _____% of site 

f. Approximate proportion of proposed action site with slopes: 9  0-10%: _____% of site  
9  10-15%: _____% of site 
9  15% or greater: _____% of site 

g. Are there any unique geologic features on the project site? 9 Yes 9 No 
 If Yes, describe: _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________

h. Surface water features.
i. Does any portion of the project site contain wetlands or other waterbodies (including streams, rivers, 9 Yes 9 No 

ponds or lakes)?
ii. Do any wetlands or other waterbodies adjoin the project site? 9 Yes 9 No 

If Yes to either i or ii, continue.  If No, skip to E.2.i. 
iii. Are any of the wetlands or waterbodies within or adjoining the project site regulated by any federal, 9 Yes 9 No 

  state or local agency? 
iv. For each identified regulated wetland and waterbody on the project site, provide the following information:

• Streams:  Name ____________________________________________ Classification _______________________ 
• Lakes or Ponds: Name ____________________________________________ Classification _______________________• Wetlands:  Name ____________________________________________ Approximate Size ___________________ 
• Wetland No. (if regulated by DEC) _____________________________

v. Are any of the above water bodies listed in the most recent compilation of NYS water quality-impaired 9 Yes 9 No 
waterbodies?

If yes, name of impaired water body/bodies and basis for listing as impaired: _____________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

i. Is the project site in a designated Floodway? 9 Yes 9 No 

j. Is the project site in the 100 year Floodplain? 9 Yes 9 No 

k. Is the project site in the 500 year Floodplain? 9 Yes 9 No 

l. Is the project site located over, or immediately adjoining, a primary, principal or sole source aquifer? 9 Yes 9 No 
If Yes: 

i. Name of aquifer:  _________________________________________________________________________________________

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91670.html


Page 12 of 13 

m. Identify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project site:  ______________________________ 
______________________________ _______________________________ ______________________________ 
______________________________ _______________________________ ______________________________ 

n. Does the project site contain a designated significant natural community? 9 Yes 9 No 
If Yes: 

i. Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation): _____________________________________
  ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ii. Source(s) of description  or evaluation: ________________________________________________________________________
iii. Extent of community/habitat:

• Currently:    ______________________  acres 
• Following completion of project as proposed:   _____________________   acres
• Gain or loss (indicate + or -):  ______________________ acres 

o. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal government or NYS as   9 Yes 9 No 
endangered or threatened, or does it contain any areas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?

  

 

 
p. Does the project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by NYS as rare, or as a species of 9 Yes 9 No

special concern?
 

q. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing? 9 Yes 9 No  
If yes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use: ___________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________

E.3.  Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site 
a. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to 9 Yes 9 No 

Agriculture and  Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 304?
If Yes,  provide county plus district name/number:  _________________________________________________________________  

b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present? 9 Yes 9 No 
i. If Yes: acreage(s) on project site?  ___________________________________________________________________________

ii. Source(s) of soil rating(s):  _________________________________________________________________________________

c. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National 9 Yes 9 No 
Natural Landmark?

If Yes:   
i. Nature of the natural landmark:           9  Biological Community             9   Geological Feature
ii. Provide brief description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent: ___________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________
  ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

d. Is the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmental Area? 9 Yes 9 No 
If Yes: 

i. CEA name: _____________________________________________________________________________________________
ii. Basis for designation: _____________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Designating agency and date:  ______________________________________________________________________________

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91675.html


Page 13 of 13 

e. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district   9 Yes 9 No 
which is listed on, or has been nominated by the NYS Board of Historic Preservation for inclusion on, the
State or National Register of Historic Places?

If Yes:  
i. Nature of historic/archaeological resource:   9 Archaeological Site   9 Historic Building or District     

ii. Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________
iii. Brief description of attributes on which listing is based:

   _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

f. Is the project site, or any portion of  it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for 9 Yes 9 No 
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

g. Have additional archaeological or historic site(s) or resources been identified on the project site? 9 Yes 9 No 
If Yes:  

i. Describe possible resource(s):  _______________________________________________________________________________
ii. Basis for identification:   ___________________________________________________________________________________

h. 9 Yes 9 No Is the project site within fives miles of any officially designated and publicly accessible federal, state, or local 
scenic or aesthetic resource?

If Yes:  
i. Identify resource: _________________________________________________________________________________________

ii. Nature of, or basis for, designation (e.g., established highway overlook, state or local park, state historic trail or scenic byway,
etc.):  ___________________________________________________________________________________________________

iii. Distance between project and resource: _____________________ miles.
i. Is the project site located within a designated river corridor under the Wild, Scenic and Recreational Rivers 9 Yes 9 No 

Program 6 NYCRR 666?
If Yes:  

i. Identify the name of the river and its designation: ________________________________________________________________
ii. Is the activity consistent with development restrictions contained in 6NYCRR Part 666? 9 Yes 9 No 

F. Additional Information  
Attach any additional information which may be needed to clarify your project.  

If you have identified any adverse impacts which could be associated with your proposal, please describe those impacts plus any 
measures which you propose to avoid or minimize them. 

G.  Verification 
I certify that the information provided is true to the best of my knowledge. 

Applicant/Sponsor Name ___________________________________ Date_______________________________________ 

Signature________________________________________________ Title_______________________________________ 

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91680.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91685.html


Page 1 of 10 

Full Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 2 - Identification of Potential Project Impacts 

Part 2 is to be completed by the lead agency.  Part 2 is designed to help the lead agency inventory all potential resources that could 
be affected by a proposed project or action.  We recognize that the lead agency=s reviewer(s) will not necessarily be environmental 
professionals.  So, the questions are designed to walk a reviewer through the assessment process by providing a series of questions that 
can be answered using the information found in Part 1.  To further assist the lead agency in completing Part 2, the form identifies the 
most relevant questions in Part 1 that will provide the information needed to answer the Part 2 question.  When Part 2 is completed, the 
lead agency will have identified the relevant environmental areas that may be impacted by the proposed activity.   

If the lead agency is a state agency and the action is in any Coastal Area, complete the Coastal Assessment Form before proceeding 
with this assessment. 
Tips for completing Part 2: 

• Review all of the information provided in Part 1.
• Review any application, maps, supporting materials and the Full EAF Workbook.
• Answer each of the 18 questions in Part 2.
• If you answer “Yes” to a numbered question, please complete all the questions that follow in that section.
• If you answer “No” to a numbered question, move on to the next numbered question.
• Check appropriate column to indicate the anticipated size of the impact.
• Proposed projects that would exceed a numeric threshold contained in a question should result in the reviewing agency

checking the box “Moderate to large impact may occur.”
• The reviewer is not expected to be an expert in environmental analysis.
• If you are not sure or undecided about the size of an impact, it may help to review the sub-questions for the general

question and consult the workbook.
• When answering a question consider all components of the proposed activity, that is, the Awhole action@.
• Consider the possibility for long-term and cumulative impacts as well as direct impacts.
• Answer the question in a reasonable manner considering the scale and context of the project.

1. Impact on Land
Proposed action may involve construction on, or physical alteration of,  NO  YES 
the land surface of the proposed site.  (See Part 1. D.1)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - j.  If “No”, move on to Section 2.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may involve construction on land where depth to water table is
less than 3 feet.

E2d 9 9

b. The proposed action may involve construction on slopes of 15% or greater. E2f 9 9

c. The proposed action may involve construction on land where bedrock is exposed, or
generally within 5 feet of existing ground surface.

E2a 9 9

d. The proposed action may involve the excavation and removal of more than 1,000 tons
of natural material.

D2a 9 9

e. The proposed action may involve construction that continues for more than one year
or in multiple phases.

D1e 9 9

f. The proposed action may result in increased erosion, whether from physical
disturbance or vegetation removal (including from treatment by herbicides).

D2e, D2q 9 9

g. The proposed action is, or may be, located within a Coastal Erosion hazard area. B1i 9 9

h. Other impacts: _______________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________ 

9 9

                                Agency Use Only [If applicable]
Project :

Date :

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91690.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91690.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91704.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91709.html


Page 2 of 10 
 

 
2. Impact on Geological Features 

The proposed action may result in the modification or destruction of, or inhibit 
access to, any unique or unusual land forms on the site (e.g., cliffs, dunes,   NO   YES 
minerals, fossils, caves).  (See Part 1. E.2.g) 
If “Yes”, answer questions a - c.  If “No”, move on to Section 3. 

 Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

 
a. Identify the specific land form(s) attached: ________________________________ 
    ___________________________________________________________________ 

E2g 9 9 

 
b. The proposed action may affect or is adjacent to a geological feature listed as a 

registered National Natural Landmark. 
Specific feature: _____________________________________________________      

E3c 
 
9 9 

 
c.  Other impacts: ______________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

  
9 9 

 
3. Impacts on Surface Water 

The proposed action may affect one or more wetlands or other surface water  NO   YES 
 bodies (e.g., streams, rivers, ponds or lakes).  (See Part 1. D.2, E.2.h)  

 If “Yes”, answer questions a - l.  If “No”, move on to Section 4. 

 Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may create a new water body. D2b, D1h 9 9 
 
b. The proposed action may result in an increase or decrease of over 10% or more than a 

10 acre increase or decrease in the surface area of any body of water. 
D2b 9 9 

 
c. The proposed action may involve dredging more than 100 cubic yards of material 

from a wetland or water body.   
D2a 

 
9 9 

 
d. The proposed action may involve construction within or adjoining a freshwater or 

tidal wetland, or in the bed or banks of any other water body. 
E2h 

 
9 9 

 
e. The proposed action may create turbidity in a waterbody, either from upland erosion, 

runoff or by disturbing bottom sediments. 
D2a, D2h 

 
9 9 

 
f. The proposed action may include construction of one or more intake(s) for withdrawal 

of water from surface water. 
D2c 

 
9 9 

 
g. The proposed action may include construction of one or more outfall(s) for discharge 

of wastewater to surface water(s). 
D2d 

 
9 9 

 
h. The proposed action may cause soil erosion, or otherwise create a source of  

stormwater discharge that may lead to siltation or other degradation of receiving 
water bodies. 

D2e 
 
9 9 

 
i. The proposed action may affect the water quality of any water bodies within or 

downstream of the site of the proposed action. 
E2h 

 
9 9 

 
j. The proposed action may involve the application of pesticides or herbicides in or 

around any water body. 
D2q, E2h 

 
9 9 

k. The proposed action may require the construction of new, or expansion of existing, 
wastewater treatment facilities. 

 D1a, D2d 
 
9 9 

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91714.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91719.html


Page 3 of 10 

l. Other impacts: _______________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________ 

9 9

4. Impact on groundwater
The proposed action may result in new or additional use of ground water, or   NO  YES 
may have the potential to introduce contaminants to ground water or an aquifer. 
(See Part 1. D.2.a, D.2.c, D.2.d, D.2.p, D.2.q, D.2.t) 
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h.  If “No”, move on to Section 5.  

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may require new water supply wells, or create additional demand
on supplies from existing water supply wells.

D2c 9 9

b. Water supply demand from the proposed action may exceed safe and sustainable
withdrawal capacity rate of the local supply or aquifer.
Cite Source: ________________________________________________________

D2c 9 9

c. The proposed action may allow or result in residential uses in areas without water and
sewer services.

D1a, D2c 9 9

d. The proposed action may include or require wastewater discharged to groundwater. D2d, E2l 9 9

e. The proposed action may result in the construction of water supply wells in locations
where groundwater is, or is suspected to be, contaminated.

D2c, E1f, 
E1g, E1h 

9 9

f. The proposed action may require the bulk storage of petroleum or chemical products
over ground water or an aquifer.

D2p, E2l 9 9

g. The proposed action may involve the commercial application of pesticides within 100
feet of potable drinking water or irrigation sources.

E2h, D2q, 
E2l, D2c 

9 9

h. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

9 9

5. Impact on Flooding
The proposed action may result in development on lands subject to flooding.  NO  YES 
(See Part 1. E.2)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - g.  If “No”, move on to Section 6.

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may result in development in a designated floodway. E2i 9 9

b. The proposed action may result in development within a 100 year floodplain. E2j 9 9

c. The proposed action may result in development within a 500 year floodplain. E2k 9 9

d. The proposed action may result in, or require, modification of existing drainage
patterns.

D2b, D2e 9 9

e. The proposed action may change flood water flows that contribute to flooding. D2b, E2i, 
E2j, E2k 

9 9

f. If there is a dam located on the site of the proposed action, is the dam in need of repair,
or upgrade? 

E1e 9 9

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91724.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91729.html


Page 4 of 10 

g. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________ 

9 9

6. Impacts on Air
The proposed action may include a state regulated air emission source.   NO  YES 
 (See Part 1. D.2.f., D,2,h, D.2.g) 
If “Yes”, answer questions a - f.  If “No”, move on to Section 7. 

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. If  the proposed action requires federal or state air emission permits, the action may
also emit one or more greenhouse gases at or above the following levels:

i. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide (CO2)
ii. More than 3.5 tons/year of nitrous oxide (N2O)
iii. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon equivalent of perfluorocarbons (PFCs)
iv. More than .045 tons/year of sulfur hexafluoride (SF6)
v. More than 1000 tons/year of carbon dioxide equivalent of

hydrochloroflourocarbons (HFCs) emissions
vi. 43 tons/year or more of methane

D2g 
D2g 
D2g 
D2g 
D2g 

D2h 

9
9
9
9
9

9

9
9
9
9
9

9

b. The proposed action may generate 10 tons/year or more of any one designated
hazardous air pollutant, or 25 tons/year or more of any combination of such hazardous
air pollutants.

D2g 9 9

c. The proposed action may require a state air registration, or may produce an emissions
rate of total contaminants that may exceed 5 lbs. per hour, or may include a heat
source capable of producing more than 10 million BTU=s per hour.

D2f, D2g 9 9

d. The proposed action may reach 50% of any of the thresholds in “a” through “c”,
above.

D2g 9 9

e. The proposed action may result in the combustion or thermal treatment of more than 1
ton of refuse per hour.

D2s 9 9

f. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

9 9

7. Impact on Plants and Animals
The proposed action may result in a loss of flora or fauna.  (See Part 1. E.2. m.-q.)  NO  YES 

  If “Yes”, answer questions a - j.  If “No”, move on to Section 8. 
Relevant 

Part I 
Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may cause reduction in population or loss of individuals of any
threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the Federal
government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.

E2o 9 9

b. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by
any rare, threatened or endangered species, as listed by New York State or the federal
government.

E2o 9 9

c. The proposed action may cause reduction in population, or loss of individuals, of any
species of special concern or conservation need, as listed by New York State or the
Federal government, that use the site, or are found on, over, or near the site.

E2p 9 9

d. The proposed action may result in a reduction or degradation of any habitat used by
any species of special concern and conservation need, as listed by New York State or
the Federal government.

E2p 9 9

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91734.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91739.html


Page 5 of 10 

e. The proposed action may diminish the capacity of a registered National Natural
Landmark to support the biological community it was established to protect.

E3c 9 9

f. The proposed action may result in the removal of, or ground disturbance in, any
portion of a designated significant natural community.
Source: ____________________________________________________________

E2n 9 9

g. The proposed action may substantially interfere with nesting/breeding, foraging, or
over-wintering habitat for the predominant species that occupy or use the project site. E2m 9 9

h. The proposed action requires the conversion of more than 10 acres of forest,
grassland or any other regionally or locally important habitat.
Habitat type & information source: ______________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

E1b 9 9

i. Proposed action (commercial, industrial or recreational projects, only) involves use of
herbicides or pesticides.

D2q 9 9

j. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

9 9

8. Impact on Agricultural Resources
The proposed action may impact agricultural resources.  (See Part 1. E.3.a. and b.)  NO  YES 
If “Yes”, answer questions a - h.  If “No”, move on to Section 9. 

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may impact soil classified within soil group 1 through 4 of the
NYS Land Classification System.

E2c, E3b 9 9

b. The proposed action may sever, cross or otherwise limit access to agricultural land
(includes cropland, hayfields, pasture, vineyard, orchard, etc).

E1a, Elb 9 9

c. The proposed action may result in the excavation or compaction of the soil profile of
active agricultural land.

E3b 9 9

d. The proposed action may irreversibly convert agricultural land to non-agricultural
uses, either more than 2.5 acres if located in an Agricultural District, or more than 10
acres if not within an Agricultural District.

E1b, E3a 9 9

e. The proposed action may disrupt or prevent installation of an agricultural land
management system.

El a, E1b 9 9

f. The proposed action may result, directly or indirectly, in increased development
potential or pressure on farmland.

C2c, C3, 
D2c, D2d 

9 9

g. The proposed project is not consistent with the adopted municipal Farmland
Protection Plan.

C2c 9 9

h. Other impacts: ________________________________________________________ 9 9

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91745.html


Page 6 of 10 

9. Impact on Aesthetic Resources
The land use of the proposed action are obviously different from, or are in  NO  YES 
sharp contrast to, current land use patterns between the proposed project and
a scenic or aesthetic resource.  (Part 1. E.1.a, E.1.b, E.3.h.)

  If “Yes”, answer questions a - g.  If “No”, go to Section 10. 
Relevant 

Part I 
Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. Proposed action may be visible from any officially designated federal, state, or local
scenic or aesthetic resource.

E3h 9 9

b. The proposed action may result in the obstruction, elimination or significant
screening of one or more officially designated scenic views.

E3h, C2b 9 9

c. The proposed action may be visible from publicly accessible vantage points:
i. Seasonally (e.g., screened by summer foliage, but visible during other seasons)
ii. Year round

E3h 
9
9

9
9

d. The situation or activity in which viewers are engaged while viewing the proposed
action is:
i. Routine travel by residents, including travel to and from work
ii. Recreational or tourism based activities

E3h 

E2q,  

E1c 9
9

9
9

e. The proposed action may cause a diminishment of the public enjoyment and
appreciation of the designated aesthetic resource.

 E3h 9 9

f. There are similar projects visible within the following distance of the proposed
project:

0-1/2 mile 
½ -3  mile 
3-5   mile 
5+    mile 

D1a, E1a, 
D1f, D1g 

9 9

g. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

9 9

10. Impact on Historic and Archeological Resources
The proposed action may occur in or adjacent to a historic or archaeological  NO  YES 
resource.  (Part 1. E.3.e, f. and g.)

If “Yes”, answer questions a - e.  If “No”, go to Section 11.
Relevant 

Part I 
Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous
to, any buildings, archaeological site or district which is listed on or has been
nominated by the NYS Board of Historic Preservation for inclusion on the State or
National Register of Historic Places.

E3e 9 9

b. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous
to, an area designated as sensitive for archaeological sites on the NY State Historic
Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory.

E3f 9 9

c. The proposed action may occur wholly or partially within, or substantially contiguous
to, an archaeological site not included on the NY SHPO inventory.
Source: ____________________________________________________________

E3g 9 9

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91750.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91760.html


Page 7 of 10 

d. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

9 9

e.
If any of the above (a-d) are answered “Moderate to large impact may 
occur”, continue with the following questions to help support conclusions in Part 3:

i. The proposed action may result in the destruction or alteration of all or part
of the site or property.

ii. The proposed action may result in the alteration of the property’s setting or
integrity.

iii. The proposed action may result in the introduction of visual elements which
are out of character with the site or property, or may alter its setting.

E3e, E3g, 
E3f 

E3e, E3f, 
E3g, E1a, 
E1b 
E3e, E3f, 
E3g, E3h, 
C2, C3 

9

9

9

9

9

9

11. Impact on Open Space and Recreation
The proposed action may result in a loss of recreational opportunities or a  NO  YES 
reduction of an open space resource as designated in any  adopted
municipal open space plan.
(See Part 1. C.2.c, E.1.c., E.2.q.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e.  If “No”, go to Section 12. 

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may result in an impairment of natural functions, or “ecosystem
services”, provided by an undeveloped area, including but not limited to stormwater
storage, nutrient cycling, wildlife habitat.

D2e, E1b 
E2h,  
E2m, E2o, 
E2n, E2p 

9 9

b. The proposed action may result in the loss of a current or future recreational resource. C2a, E1c, 
C2c, E2q 

9 9

c. The proposed action may eliminate open space or recreational resource in an area
with few such resources.

C2a, C2c 
E1c, E2q 

9 9

d. The proposed action may result in loss of an area now used informally by the
community as an open space resource.

C2c, E1c 9 9

e. Other impacts: _____________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________

9 9

12. Impact on Critical Environmental Areas
The proposed action may be located within or adjacent to a critical  NO  YES 
environmental area (CEA).  (See Part 1. E.3.d)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - c.  If “No”, go to Section 13. 

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quantity of the resource or
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.

E3d 9 9

b. The proposed action may result in a reduction in the quality of the resource or
characteristic which was the basis for designation of the CEA.

E3d 9 9

c. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

9 9

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91765.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91771.html


Page 8 of 10 

13. Impact on Transportation
The proposed action may result in a change to existing transportation systems.  NO  YES 
(See Part 1. D.2.j)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - f.  If “No”, go to Section 14. 

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. Projected traffic increase may exceed capacity of existing road network. D2j 9 9

b. The proposed action may result in the construction of paved parking area for 500 or
more vehicles.

D2j 9 9

c. The proposed action will degrade existing transit access. D2j 9 9

d. The proposed action will degrade existing pedestrian or bicycle accommodations. D2j 9 9

e. The proposed action may alter the present pattern of movement of people or goods. D2j 9 9

f. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

9 9

14. Impact on Energy
The proposed action may cause an increase in the use of any form of energy.  NO  YES 
(See Part 1. D.2.k)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - e.  If “No”, go to Section 15. 

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action will require a new, or an upgrade to an existing, substation. D2k 9 9

b. The proposed action will require the creation or extension of an energy transmission
or supply system to serve more than 50 single or two-family residences or to serve a
commercial or industrial use.

D1f, 
D1q, D2k 

9 9

c. The proposed action may utilize more than 2,500 MWhrs per year of electricity. D2k 9 9

d. The proposed action may involve heating and/or cooling of more than 100,000 square
feet of building area when completed.

D1g 9 9

e. Other Impacts: ________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________

15. Impact on Noise, Odor, and Light
The proposed action may result in an increase in noise, odors, or outdoor lighting.  NO  YES 
(See Part 1. D.2.m., n., and o.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - f.  If “No”, go to Section 16. 

Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may produce sound above noise levels established by local
regulation.

D2m 9 9

b. The proposed action may result in blasting within 1,500 feet of any residence,
hospital, school, licensed day care center, or nursing home.

D2m, E1d 9 9

c. The proposed action may result in routine odors for more than one hour per day. D2o 9 9

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91776.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91781.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91786.html


Page 9 of 10 

d. The proposed action may result in light shining onto adjoining properties. D2n 9 9

e. The proposed action may result in lighting creating sky-glow brighter than existing
area conditions.

D2n, E1a 9 9

f. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

9 9

16. Impact on Human Health
The proposed action may have an impact on human health from exposure  NO  YES 
to new or existing sources of contaminants.  (See Part 1.D.2.q., E.1. d. f. g. and h.)
If “Yes”, answer questions a - m.  If “No”, go to Section 17. 

Relevant  
Part I 

Question(s) 

No,or 
small 

impact 
may cccur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action is located within 1500 feet of a school, hospital, licensed day
care center, group home, nursing home or retirement community.

E1d 9 9

b. The site of the proposed action is currently undergoing remediation. E1g, E1h 9 9

c. There is a completed emergency spill remediation, or a completed environmental site
remediation on, or adjacent to, the site of the proposed action.

E1g, E1h 9 9

d. The site of  the action is subject to an institutional control limiting the use of the 
property (e.g., easement or deed restriction).

E1g, E1h 9 9

e. The proposed action may affect institutional control measures that were put in place
to ensure that the site remains protective of the environment and human health.

E1g, E1h 9 9

f. The proposed action has adequate control measures in place to ensure that future
generation, treatment and/or disposal of hazardous wastes will be protective of the
environment and human health.

D2t 9 9

g. The proposed action involves construction or modification of a solid waste
management facility.

D2q, E1f 9 9

h. The proposed action may result in the unearthing of solid or hazardous waste. D2q, E1f 9 9

i. The proposed action may result in an increase in the rate of disposal, or processing, of
solid waste. 

D2r, D2s 9 9

j. The proposed action may result in excavation or other disturbance within 2000 feet of
a site used for the disposal of solid or hazardous waste. 

E1f, E1g 
E1h 

9 9

k. The proposed action may result in the migration of explosive gases from a landfill
site to adjacent off site structures.

E1f, E1g 9 9

l. The proposed action may result in the release of contaminated leachate from the
project site. 

D2s, E1f, 
D2r 

9 9

m. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________ 

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91791.html


Page 10 of 10 
 

 
 
 
17. Consistency with Community Plans 
 The proposed action is not consistent with adopted land use plans.    NO   YES 
 (See Part 1. C.1, C.2. and C.3.)   
 If “Yes”, answer questions a - h.  If “No”, go to Section 18. 

 Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action’s land use components may be different from, or in sharp 
contrast to, current surrounding land use pattern(s).  

C2, C3, D1a 
E1a, E1b 

9 9 

b. The proposed action will cause the permanent population of the city, town or village 
in which the project is located to grow by more than 5%.  

C2 9 9 

c. The proposed action is inconsistent with local land use plans or zoning regulations. C2, C2, C3 9 9 

d. The proposed action is inconsistent with any County plans, or other regional land use 
plans. 

C2, C2 9 9 

e. The proposed action may cause a change in the density of development that is not 
supported by existing infrastructure or is distant from existing infrastructure. 

C3, D1c, 
D1d, D1f, 
D1d, Elb 

9 9 

f. The proposed action is located in an area characterized by low density development 
that will require new or expanded public infrastructure. 

C4, D2c, D2d 
D2j 

9 9 

g. The proposed action may induce secondary development impacts (e.g., residential or 
commercial development not included in the proposed action) 

C2a 9 9 

h. Other: _____________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 9 9 

 
18. Consistency with Community Character 
  The proposed project is inconsistent with the existing community character.   NO   YES 
  (See Part 1. C.2, C.3, D.2, E.3) 
 If “Yes”, answer questions a - g.  If “No”, proceed to Part 3. 

 Relevant 
Part I 

Question(s) 

No, or 
small 

impact 
may occur 

Moderate 
to large 

impact may 
occur 

a. The proposed action may replace or eliminate existing facilities, structures, or areas 
of historic importance to the community. 

E3e, E3f, E3g 9 9 

b. The proposed action may create a demand for additional community services (e.g. 
schools, police and fire)  

C4 9 9 

c. The proposed action may displace affordable or low-income housing in an area where 
there is a shortage of such housing. 

C2, C3, D1f 
D1g, E1a 

9 9 

d. The proposed action may interfere with the use or enjoyment of officially recognized 
or designated public resources. 

C2, E3 9 9 

e. The proposed action is inconsistent with the predominant architectural scale and 
character. 

C2, C3 9 9 

f. Proposed action is inconsistent with the character of the existing natural landscape.  C2, C3 
E1a, E1b 
E2g, E2h 

9 9 

g. Other impacts: ______________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________ 

 9 9 

  

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91799.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91813.html


Full Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 3 - Evaluation of the Magnitude and Importance of Project Impacts 

and  
Determination of Significance 

Part 3 provides the reasons in support of the determination of significance.  The lead agency must complete Part 3 for every question 
in Part 2 where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where there is a need to explain why a particular 
element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse environmental impact. 

Based on the analysis in Part 3, the lead agency must decide whether to require an environmental impact statement to further assess 
the proposed action or whether available information is sufficient for the lead agency to conclude that the proposed action will not 
have a significant adverse environmental impact.  By completing the certification on the next page, the lead agency can complete its 
determination of significance. 

Reasons Supporting This Determination: 
To complete this section: 

• Identify the impact based on the Part 2 responses and describe its magnitude.  Magnitude considers factors such as severity,
size or extent of an impact. 

• Assess the importance of the impact.  Importance relates to the geographic scope, duration, probability of the impact
occurring, number of people affected by the impact and any additional environmental consequences if the impact were to 
occur. 

• The assessment should take into consideration any design element or project changes.
• Repeat this process for each Part 2 question where the impact has been identified as potentially moderate to large or where

there is a need to explain why a particular element of the proposed action will not, or may, result in a significant adverse
environmental impact.

• Provide the reason(s) why the impact may, or will not, result in a significant adverse environmental impact
• For Conditional Negative Declarations identify the specific condition(s) imposed that will modify the proposed action so that

no significant adverse environmental impacts will result.
• Attach additional sheets, as needed.

Determination of Significance - Type 1 and Unlisted Actions 

SEQR Status:    Type 1   Unlisted 

Identify portions of EAF completed for this Project:   Part 1   Part 2   Part 3 

                       Agency Use Only  [IfApplicable] 
Project :

Date :

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91818.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91818.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91818.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91824.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91829.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91829.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91836.html


Upon review of the information recorded on this EAF, as noted, plus this additional support information 

and considering both the magnitude and importance of each identified potential impact, it is the conclusion of the 
 as lead agency that: 

  A. This project will result in no significant adverse impacts on the environment, and, therefore, an environmental impact 
statement need not be prepared.  Accordingly, this negative declaration is issued. 

 B. Although this project could have a significant adverse impact on the environment, that impact will be avoided or 
substantially mitigated because of the following conditions which will be required by the lead agency: 

There will, therefore, be no significant adverse impacts from the project as conditioned, and, therefore, this conditioned negative 
declaration is issued.  A conditioned negative declaration may be used only for UNLISTED actions (see 6 NYCRR 617.d). 

 C. This Project may result in one or more significant adverse impacts on the environment, and an environmental impact 
statement must be prepared to further assess the impact(s) and possible mitigation and to explore alternatives to avoid or reduce those 
impacts.  Accordingly, this positive declaration is issued. 

Name of Action: 

Name of Lead Agency: 

Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: 

Title of Responsible Officer: 

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: Date: 

Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer) Date: 

For Further Information: 

Contact Person: 

Address: 

Telephone Number: 

E-mail: 

For Type 1 Actions and Conditioned Negative Declarations, a copy of this Notice is sent to: 

Chief Executive Officer of the political subdivision in which the action will be principally located (e.g., Town / City / Village of) 
Other involved agencies (if any) 
Applicant (if any) 
Environmental Notice Bulletin:  http://www.dec.ny.gov/enb/enb.html  

Page 2 of 2

http://www.dec.ny.gov/enb/enb.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91841.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/regs/4490.html#18098
















 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Water Tank Study 
 

for the 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board 
 
 

  

 
 
 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board 
5815 Buffalo Avenue 

Niagara Falls, NY 14304 

 

 

 

May 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



NFWB – Tank Study 1 May 2018 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 PAGE 

1.0 INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................................... 2 

2.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS ............................................................................................. 2 

3.0 NEEDS ANALYSIS ....................................................................................................... 6 

4.0 PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS.................................................................................... 7 

5.0 RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS ......................................................................... 9 

6.0 CONCLUSION ............................................................................................................... 9 

 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES 

 

APPENDIX A Analysis of Water Infrastructure for Midsize and Large Cities with Declining 

Populations 

APPENDIX B EXISTING SYSTEM LAYOUT 

APPENDIX C EXISTING TANK DRAWINGS  

APPENDIX D  WATER MODEL PRESSURES 

APPENDIX E  PROBABLE COST ESTIMATES 

APPENDIX F  TANK LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 



NFWB – Tank Study 2 May 2018 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 

In June 2017 the American Water Works Association (AWWA) mentioned the City of 

Niagara Falls in their article Analysis of Water Infrastructure for Midsize and Large 

Cities with Declining Populations (included in Appendix A). The article states: 

  

Older industrial cities that have experienced steady, long-term population declines 

and job losses, called “legacy cities,” also have diminished revenues and less 

ability to provide services such as for drinking water and wastewater (Mallach & 

Brachman 2013, 110th American Assembly 2011). Many also face water and 

wastewater infrastructure problems, including the presence of lead pipes in 

drinking water service lines. 

 

Despite the decreasing population and loss of industry, insufficient storage for the 

purposes of fire flow and everyday use is one of the main water infrastructure problems 

faced in Niagara Falls. This report will describe Niagara Falls’ existing water system, 

analyze the need for additional storage, and evaluate multiple alternatives to increase the 

City’s storage capacity. 

 

2.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 

2.1 General System Description 

The Niagara Falls Water Board (NFWB) assumed control of the City’s water system in 

1990 from the City of Niagara Falls. The system contains a water treatment plant, a 2 

million-gallon (MG) storage tank and roughly 300 miles of water main. Approximately 

56,000 residents along with 12 to 14 million visitors brought in by the City’s tourism 

industry are served by the system. 

 

2.2 Surface Supply 

Niagara Falls’ water system contains a conventional water treatment plant that draws its 

water from the Upper Niagara River through an intake tunnel beneath the river. After 

entering the plant, the raw water passes through 0.39 MG pretreatment tanks, 0.84 MG 

flocculation tanks, 1.23 MG settling tanks, 0.81 MG filters, and 1.42 MG contact tanks. 

Finished water is stored in a 1.31 MG clear well before being discharged to the system. 

 

In 2016, the water plant produced 7.4 billion gallons of water. The average daily 

production was 20.3 million gallons per day (MGD) and the highest single day was 23.3 

million gallons (MG). Table 2.1 shows the totals for water plant production since 2008.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



NFWB – Tank Study 3 May 2018 

YEAR TOTAL PRODUCED (GAL) DAILY AVERAGE (MGD) 

2008 5,978,012,000 16.38 

2009 6,221,999,000 17.04 

2010 6,637,425,000 18.18 

2011 6,713,431,000 18.39 

2012 6,727,217,000 18.43 

2013 6,536,679,000 17.91 

2014 7,831,479,000 21.46 

2015 7,785,336,000 21.33 

2016 7,440,929,000 20.37 

 

Table 2.1 Historical Water Plant Production 

 

After the clear well, water is pumped to a 2 MG storage tank on 56th Street. The NFWB 

operates 2 larger lead pumps and 3 smaller lag pumps. The lead pumps are rated 700 

horsepower, 1185 rpm, and flow 10760 gpm at 205 feet total dynamic head (TDH). The 

lag pumps are rated 300 horsepower, 1790 rpm, and flow 4510 gpm at 205 feet TDH. 

Under normal conditions, one lead pump is running at all times. An operator will turn on 

one or more lag pumps to fill the tank once it reaches its low water level. 

 

2.3 Historical Water Consumption 

 

According to the Annual Drinking Water Quality Report for 2016 issued by the NFWB, 

2.4 billion gallons of metered water were delivered to customers, leaving 5 billion gallons 

of water unaccounted for. Possible causes of unaccounted water include: water main 

flushing, meter inaccuracies, illegal consumption, hydrant usage, authorized unmetered 

usage, and underground pipe leakage. Table 2.2 compares the NFWB percentage of 

unaccounted for water to other local municipalities 

 

Municipality % Unaccounted Water 

Niagara Falls Water Board 68 

Erie County Water Authority 30 

Town of Tonawanda Water 42 

Grand Island Water 32.6 

City of Buffalo 35-40 

 

Table 2.2 Percent Unaccounted Water 

 

The NFWB has been diligent in decreasing the amount of unaccounted water in their 

system through leak repair, hydrant replacement, meter replacement and calibration, and 

elimination of illegal connections. For this report, it is assumed that these efforts have 

reduced the quantity of unaccounted water to 30% of the total amount of water produced. 

Adding metered usage and 30% unaccounted water yields a total consumption of 3.4 

billion gallons a year, which converts to 9.3 MGD.  

 

 



NFWB – Tank Study 4 May 2018 

2.4 Water Distribution System 

 

As stated earlier, Niagara Falls contains approximately 300 miles of water main that 

ranges in size from 4 inch to 42 inch. Some parts of the system are estimated to be over 

100 years old. The system is constructed of cast iron, ductile iron, concrete and PVC 

pipe. A layout of the existing system can be found in Appendix B. There are 

approximately 2,200 hydrants with associated system valves. Residents and businesses 

are served through roughly 18,000 service connections ranging in size from 5/8 inch to 

10 inch. Table 2.3 shows the breakdown of main size and pipe material within the 

system. 

 

Distribution System Piping 

    

Water Main  Material Type Length (ft) 

6-inch  PVC 1,500 

8-inch  PVC  2,610 

10-inch  PVC  700 

12-inch  Asbestos Cement 5,500 

20-inch  RCPP  7,800 

24-inch  RCPP  5,600 

30-inch  RCPP  13,370 

36-inch  RCPP  16,810 

42-inch  RCPP  7,850 

2-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 700 

4-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 95,030 

6-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 596,540 

8-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 239,680 

10-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 121,455 

12-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 102,045 

14-inch  HDPE 6,540 

16-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 59,660 

20-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 46,730 

24-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron 26,230 

30-inch  Cast/Ductile Iron       9,060 

  Total: 1,365,410 
 

Table 2.3 Main Size and Material Breakdown 
 



NFWB – Tank Study 5 May 2018 

Niagara Falls Water System Approximate Age Dis-

tribution of Pipe 

   

Age Feet Percent 

1890-1910 65,802 5% 

1911-1930 515,179 38% 

1931-1950 288,940 21% 

1951-1970 251,682 18% 

1971-1990 144,121 11% 

1991-2013    101,772     7% 

Total 1,367,496 100% 

Table 2.3 Continued Main Size and Material Breakdown 

 

2.4 Water System Storage 

 

The 2 MG storage tank on 56th Street is 215’ tall elevated metal tank with a diameter of 

84’ and was built in 1996. The typical operating range for the tank is listed below: 

  

 High Water Level (HWL): 774.5’ 

 Low Water Level (LWL): 754.5’ 

 

A site plan and elevation view of the 56th Street Tank is included in Appendix C. 

 

The system also contains an abandoned 2 MG Water Tank on Beech Avenue. The Beech 

Avenue tank was built in 1947 and is a multi-leg style elevated tank. The tank is 150’ tall 

with an operating range as follows: 

 

 HWL: 735’ 

 LWL: 700.5’ 

 

Due to the 40’ difference in water levels, the Beech Avenue tank was abandoned after 

completion of the 56th Street tank. A site plan and elevation view of the Beech Avenue 

tank is also included in Appendix C. An aerial image of the Beech Avenue tank taken 

during a recent drone survey is shown in Figure 2.1. 

 



NFWB – Tank Study 6 May 2018 

 
 

Figure 2.1 Beech Avenue Tank Aerial Image 

 

3.0 NEEDS ANALYSIS 
 

3.1 Pressure Requirements 

 

According to Recommended Standards for Water Works (also known as 10 State 

Standards), a water system should have a minimum working pressure of 35 psi and a 

normal working pressure between 60 and 80 psi. Pressure for the entire water system in 

Niagara Falls is driven by the water level in the 56th Street Tank. Neglecting head loss. 

the static pressure at the highest elevation in the system, 635 feet, is 52 psi at LWL and 

the static pressure at the lowest point in the system, 542 feet, is 100 psi at HWL. These 

values meet or exceed the 10 States pressure requirements.  

 

Due to the age of the system, there is a large amount of head loss caused by 

tuberculation, leaks and partially closed valves. Areas in the system further away from 

the 56th Street Tank, mainly in the northwest portion of the city, experience pressures as 

low as 30 PSI according to our water model.  An elevated tank in this area would help 

boost the pressure to match those areas closer to the 56th Street Tank. A graphic showing 

the modeled pressures throughout the system is included in Appendix D. 

 

 

 

 

 



NFWB – Tank Study 7 May 2018 

3.2 Storage Requirements 

 

Based on 10 State Standards, a water system should have sufficient storage for one 

average day’s consumption and fire flow as recommended by the appropriate state 

Insurance Services Office (ISO). A fire flow scenario of 2,500 GPM for 2 hours which 

totals 300,000 gallons is assumed for this report. Some locations throughout the City may 

require additional fire flow protection according to ISO ratings. However, given the age 

of the system and the abundance of smaller mains, 2,500 GPM is an achievable fire flow 

that will not negatively impact the system. 

 

 As mentioned earlier, an average daily consumption of 9.3 MGD is assumed for this 

report. Combining the average daily consumption of 9.3 MG and a fire flow of 300,000 

gallons yields a total storage requirement of 9.6 MG. With the current storage of 2 MG, 

Niagara Falls is under capacity by 7.6 MG.  

  

 3.3 Other System Considerations 

  

Currently, the only active storage tank in Niagara Falls system is the 2 MG tank on 56th 

Street. During water main breaks or if the 56th street tank were to be damaged or 

malfunction, the system is maintained through the pumps at the water plant and 

supplemented through an interconnection with the Niagara County Water District 

(NCWD). During recent breaks, the NFWB was barely able to maintain sufficient 

pressure to avoid issuing a boil water warning. Only having one tank in the system also 

causes a maintenance issue. When it comes time to paint the inside of the 56th street tank, 

there is no viable option to maintain the system while the tank is offline. A second tank in 

the system would provide an additional storage buffer and redundancy in case the 56th 

street tank was taken offline. 

 

4.0 PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 
 

4.1 General 

The Niagara Falls water system is under the recommended 10 States Standards capacity 

by 7.6 MG. While it is not economically feasible for the NFWB to add this amount of 

storage at once, the storage capacity of Niagara Falls system needs to be increased. 

 

This section will explore the following options in which the NFWB may proceed: 

 

  Option 1: No Action 

  Option 2: Raise Existing Beech Avenue Tank 

  Option 3: Demolish and Replace Existing Beech Avenue Tank 

 

Opinions of probable cost for each option are included in Appendix E. 

 

 

 

 



NFWB – Tank Study 8 May 2018 

4.2 Option 1: No Action 

The first option is to take no action. The system will remain undersized for daily use and 

fire flow. In case of damage or malfunction at the 56th Street tank, Niagara Falls will need 

to rely on the pumps at the water plant and the NCWD to maintain service. Also, pressure 

problems will persist in areas further away from the 56th Street Tank. Despite being the 

cheapest and least disruptive of the options, not acting does nothing to improve on the 

inadequacies of the system.  

  

 4.3 Option 2: Raise Existing Beech Avenue Tank 

The second option is to rehabilitate and raise the abandoned Beech Avenue tank 40’ to 

match the HWL of the 56th Street Tank. The advantage of the Beech Avenue tank site is 

that the NFWB already owns it and the infrastructure to connect the tank to the system is 

already installed. This eliminates the hassle of locating and purchasing a new property 

suitable for a water tank and the cost of installing new watermain to connect the new tank 

to the system. Raising the existing tank would increase the storage capacity in the system 

and address pressure and redundancy concerns. Appendix D contains a graphic showing 

the change in pressure after the addition of an elevated tank on Beech Avenue. 

Although the location of the Beech Avenue tank is an advantage, rehabilitation of the 

existing tank and raising it to the correct hydraulic grade present a substantial amount of 

cost. The Beech Avenue tank has not been in service since the 56th Street tank was 

installed in 1996 and has sat abandoned with little to no maintenance. The tank would 

need to be repainted which likely would include the abatement of lead paint. Another 

thing to consider is water tanks typically have a service life of 75-100 years and the 

Beech Avenue tank is 71 years old as of 2018. Even with the necessary rehabilitation, the 

Beech Avenue tank would need to be replaced within the next 30 years. 

 A larger concern of raising the existing tank is structural adequacy. While the existing 

foundation would likely support the downward force of 2 MG of water, it was not 

designed to handle the additional overturning seismic and wind loads caused by raising 

the tank. With the necessary rehabilitation and structural reinforcement, raising the 

existing Beech Avenue tank would be more expensive than demolishing the existing tank 

and replacing it with a new one.  

  

 4.4 Option 3: Demolish and Replace Existing Beech Avenue Tank 

The third option is to demolish the existing multi-leg tank on the Beech Avenue site and 

replace it with a new concrete shafted elevated tank (CET). Like Option 2, this option 

also has the benefit that the NFWB owns the site and the necessary infrastructure is 

already in place.  

Demolition of the existing tank and construction of the new tank will create some 

disturbance to the adjacent homes and school. It would be best if construction were 

scheduled while school is out of session. Lead paint is a concern with the existing tank 

and abatement would be necessary during demolition if tests reveal it is present. It would 

cost approximately two hundred thousand dollars to dismantle and remove the existing 

tank. 



NFWB – Tank Study 9 May 2018 

The new CET would be installed to match the hydraulic profile of the 56th Street tank to 

maintain the current system’s pressure. Adding 2 MG of storage to the system would 

decrease the deficit to 5.6 MG and provide a backup if something were to happen to the 

56th Street tank. An additional benefit of CETs is a lower re-paint cost in the future. The 

concrete shaft eliminates approximately 50% of surface area that would need to be 

repainted. A lifecycle cost analysis of a multi-leg tank versus a CET is included in 

Appendix F. The cost of constructing a CET is approximately 4 million dollars.  

  

5.0 RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS 
 

5.1 Selected Alternative 

 

Considering the system needs and the cost of each option presented in Section 4.0, it is 

recommended that Option 3 be selected for further development. Although it does not 

entirely satisfy the storage deficit, Option 3 provides 2 MG of additional storage and adds 

redundancy to the system in case of emergency. A 2 MG tank at the Beech Avenue 

location will also help increase pressure in areas plagued by low pressure due to head 

loss. In total Option 3 will cost 6 million dollars. 

 

6.0 CONCLUSION 
 

As a legacy city, Niagara Falls is experiencing a steady decline in population which nega-

tively impacts revenue and their ability to maintain aging infrastructure. The storage 

capacity of their water system is insufficient for daily use and fire flow according to 10 

States Standards. It is recommended that the NFWB demolish the existing Beech Avenue 

tank and install a new 2 MG concrete shafted elevated tank in its place.   After construc-

tion, the NFWB will then need to reevaluate their system to determine where it makes the 

most sense to install additional water storage to adequately serve their customers. 

 



Appendix A 

 

Analysis of Water Infrastructure for 

Midsize and Large Cities with 

Declining Populations 















































 Appendix B 

 

Existing System Layout 





Appendix C 

 

EXISTING TANK DRAWINGS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







Appendix D 

 

WATER MODEL PRESSURES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Existing System Pressures

Page 1 of 127 Siemon Company Drive Suite 200 W  Watertown, CT 06795 USA  +1-203-755-16665/9/2018

Bentley WaterGEMS CONNECT Edition
[10.00.00.55]Bentley Systems, Inc.  Haestad Methods Solution CenterNF Water Model JEH.wtg

jhunt
Rectangle

jhunt
Text Box
Tank Location

jhunt
Rectangle



System Pressures with Proposed Beech Ave Tank

Page 1 of 127 Siemon Company Drive Suite 200 W  Watertown, CT 06795 USA  +1-203-755-16665/9/2018

Bentley WaterGEMS CONNECT Edition
[10.00.00.55]Bentley Systems, Inc.  Haestad Methods Solution CenterNF Water Model JEH.wtg

jhunt
Rectangle

jhunt
Rectangle

jhunt
Rectangle

jhunt
Text Box
Tank Location



Appendix E 

 

PROBABLE COST ESTIMATES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Niagara Falls Water Board

Opinion of Probable Cost

Option 2 - Raise Existing Beech Avenue Tank

Item Description Unit Price Quantity Total

Survey stake-out LS $5,000 1 5,000.00$           

Erosion control LS $5,000 1 5,000.00$           

Site mobilization LS $10,000 1 10,000.00$         

20,000.00$         

Remove Existing Fence LF $5 520 2,600.00$           

Misc excavation LS $20,000 1 20,000.00$         

22,600.00$         

Asphalt Access Drive SF $5 1,750 8,750.00$           

New Chain Link Fence LF $30 520 15,600.00$         

Topsoil and turf LS $5,000 1 5,000.00$           

29,350.00$         

Replace Waterline piping and appurtenances LF $400 280 112,000.00$       

Misc drainage LS $5,000 1 5,000.00$           

Electrical at tank location (controls, power, cathodic, control room) LS $50,000 1 50,000.00$         

167,000.00$      

Paint Existing Tank (Full recoat) LS $1,500,000 1 1,500,000.00$    

Reinforce Existing Foundation LS $1,000,000 1 1,000,000.00$    

Raise Existing Tank 40' LS $2,000,000 1 2,000,000.00$    

4,500,000.00$   

4,738,950.00$    

473,900.00$       

1,184,800.00$    

6,397,650.00$   

* Note that these costs are based on prevailing wage rates.  Private installation may reduce costs by up to 20%.

Prices shown do not include operation and maintenance costs.

Site Work Subtotal

Mobilization

Mobilization Subtotal

Demolition

Demolition Subtotal

Site Work

10% Construction Contingency

25% Soft Costs

Total Capital Cost

Utilities

Utilities Subtotal

Rehabilitation

Rehabiliation Subtotal

Construction Subtotal



Niagara Falls Water Board

Opinion of Probable Cost

Option 3 - Demolish and Replace Existing Beech Avenue Tank

Item Description Unit Price Quantity Total

Survey stake-out LS $5,000 1 5,000.00$           

Erosion control LS $5,000 1 5,000.00$           

Site mobilization LS $10,000 1 10,000.00$         

20,000.00$         

Remove Existing Tank LS $200,000 1 200,000.00$       

Remove Existing Fence LF $5 520 2,600.00$           

Misc excavation LS $20,000 1 20,000.00$         

222,600.00$      

Asphalt Access Drive SF $5 1,750 8,750.00$           

New Chain Link Fence LF $30 520 15,600.00$         

Topsoil and turf LS $5,000 1 5,000.00$           

29,350.00$         

Replace Waterline piping and appurtenances LF $400 280 112,000.00$       

Misc drainage LS $5,000 1 5,000.00$           

Electrical at tank location (controls, power, cathodic, control room) LS $50,000 1 50,000.00$         

167,000.00$      

2.0-MG Concrete Shafted Elevated Tank LS $4,000,000 1 4,000,000.00$    

4,000,000.00$   

4,438,950.00$    

443,900.00$       

1,109,800.00$    

5,992,650.00$   

* Note that these costs are based on prevailing wage rates.  Private installation may reduce costs by up to 20%.

Prices shown do not include operation and maintenance costs.

10% Construction Contingency

25% Soft Costs

Total Capital Cost

Utilities

Utilities Subtotal

New Tank

New Tank Subtotal

Construction Subtotal

Site Work Subtotal

Mobilization

Mobilization Subtotal

Demolition

Demolition Subtotal

Site Work



Appendix F 

 

TANK LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 

 



Tank Capacity (MG) : 2,000

Height to TCL (feet) : 200

Cost of Capital Rate (APR): 4%

Inflation Rate (APR) : 3%

Evaluation Period (Years): 100

Composite Multi-Leg

Capacity MG: 2,000 2,000

Tank Cost, $: $4,000,000 4,000,000

Cost $/Gallon 2.00 2.00

Service Life

15

40

20

General  Area Expected Touch Maintenance Full Recoat 

Maintenance Requiring Touch Up Cost (today) Repaint Cost Cost (today)

Costs Up $/SF (today) $/SF ($/SF)

Interior Wet: 7.5% 12.38$                N/A 6.29$                  

Interior Dry: 7.5% 11.47$                3.26$                  4.09$                  

Exterior: 7.5% 12.95$                4.74$                  5.57$                  

     

Exterior Containment: None

Interior Wet Surfaces:

Interior Dry Surfaces:

Exterior Surfaces:

ICS-2: Epoxy / Epoxy /Epoxy (12 mils)

ICS-1: Epoxy / Epoxy (8 mils)

 Comparative Elevated Tank Lifecycle Cost Analysis

           Estimated Original Tank Cost

AWWA D102 DescriptionsCoating Systems

OCS-6: Zinc / Epoxy/ Polyurethane (6 mils)

Location: Niagra Falls, NY

CBI Elevated Tank LIFECYCLE Analysis (Rev 7-2011).xlsm 1



      

                              Paint Areas

Composite Multi-Leg

Exterior (ft2): 25,700 76,075

Interior, Wet (ft2): 30,700 27,700

Interior, Dry (ft2): 2,200 0

Total (ft2): 58,600 103,775

                              Job Size Update Factors

Composite Multi-Leg

Exterior: 1.1 1.0

Interior, Wet: 1.1 1.1

Interior, Dry: 1.2 1.2

 

                              Current Touch Up Costs 

Composite Multi-Leg

Exterior: $27,453 $73,877

Interior, Wet: $31,347 $28,284

Interior, Dry: $2,271 $0

      

                              Current Maintenance Repaint Costs 

Composite Multi-Leg

Exterior: $134,088 $360,832

Interior, Dry: $8,615 $0

                              Current Full Recoat Costs 

Composite Multi-Leg

Exterior: $157,410 $423,594

Interior, Wet: $212,304 $191,558

Interior, Dry: $10,793 $0

Composite Multi-Leg

Original Tank Cost 4,000,000$         4,000,000$         

365,243$            982,876$            

790,737$            713,466$            

10,836$              -$                    

5,166,816$     5,696,342$     

 Note: Interior Wet Maintenance Recoats are not Recommended

Total Cost of 

Ownership:

Exterior Repainting:

Interior, Wet Repainting:

Interior, Dry Repainting:

Total Cost of Ownership

The Total Cost of Ownership equals Original Tank Cost plus the investment today needed to meet all future 
repainting costs over the evaluation period.

CBI Elevated Tank LIFECYCLE Analysis (Rev 7-2011).xlsm 2



 Comparative Elevated Tank Lifecycle Cost Analysis

EXTERIOR Composite Multi-Leg

Sum of Present 

Values: $365,243 $982,876

20 $110,526 $297,428

40 $106,952 $287,809

60 $75,097 $202,087

80 $72,668 $195,551

-

-

-

-

Interior Wet Composite Multi-Leg

Sum of Present 

Values: $790,737 $713,466

15 $183,661 $165,714

30 $158,882 $143,356

45 $137,447 $124,015

60 $118,903 $107,284

75 $102,861 $92,809

90 $88,983 $80,288

-

-

Interior Dry Composite Multi-Leg

Sum of Present 

Values: $10,836 $0

40 $5,853 $0

80 $4,982 $0

-

-

-

-

-

-

The following tables show the Present Value of the future repainting costs for the exterior, interior 
wet, and interior dry paint areas for each repaint year. Costs for exterior and Interior, dry altenate 
between maintenance repaint and full recoat for each cycle. Cost for wet interior assumes full 
recoat every cycle.

CBI Elevated Tank LIFECYCLE Analysis (Rev 7-2011).xlsm 3



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-006

ADOPTING FIVE YEAR CAPITAL PLAN

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) is committed to 
maintaining and improving its drinking water and wastewater systems through fiscally prudent, 
well planned, and strategic investments in its capital infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board has developed a five-year plan to implement projects 
necessary to continue to meet the water and wastewater needs of the City of Niagara Falls; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board desires to adopt a formal five-year capital plan to provide 
Water Board staff and the public with guidance on its future plans and the anticipated source of 
the funds for those capital improvements; and

WHEREAS, adoption of a five-year capital plan will assist the Water Board in setting 
appropriate rates, fees, and charges; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that the Water Board hereby adopts the five-year capital plan that is 
attached to this resolution.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Executive Director.

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:
Not applicable.

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board



Lengt

h Orig Project 2.0%  Cost 
LOCATION

Feet Estimate

Est 

Date

Inflation 

Adj
2022

C-1
IT Plan 

Implementation
   1,000,000 2005    1,000,000 

Develop & 

implement IT 

solution  

Efficiencies and 

cost savings
A 4 3 4 6 17 $150,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $25,000

C-2
Meter Replacement & 

Upgrades
$4,500,000

2005    4,970,000 

Replace inaccurate 

& old meters 

To insure meter 

accuracy and 

automated reading

A 6 1 5 6 18 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000

C-4
Rate Restructuring 

60/40
      150,000 2005       150,000 

Evaluate rates and 

cost allocation

Better cost 

allocation & rate 

stability

A 2 1 6 6 15

C-5  Fleet Replacement

      700,000 2005       840,000 

Replenish fleet

Replace aging and 

unsafe vehicle 

stock

A 6 2 3 4 15 $480,000 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000

C-6
Water/sewer GIS/GPS 

Mapping
$266,653

2005       270,000 

Document system 

assets

Better asset 

management with 

CMMS

A 6 2 3 6 17 $75,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $25,000

WW-4A

WWTP Rehab Phase 

4A - Sed. Basins & 

Scum A 5 4 3 4 16

$1,100,000 $3,000,000 $3,000,000 $3,300,000 $0

WW-4B

WWTP Rehab Phase 

4B - GPS 

Rehabilitation
A 5 4 3 4 16

$1,000,000 $3,000,000 $200,000 $0

WW-4C

WWTP Rehab Phase 

4C - Polymer & 

Dewatering Controls
A 5 4 3 4 16

$1,800,000 $320,000 $0

WW-4D

WWTP Rehab Phase 

4D - Carbon & 

Support Gravel A 5 4 3 4 16

$2,000,000 $0

WW-4E

WWTP Rehab Phase 

4E - Electrical 

Improvements
A 5 4 3 4 16

$1,610,000 $1,000,000 $0

WW-4F

WWTP Rehab Phase 

4F - Chemical 

Improvements
A 5 4 3 4 16

$3,650,000 $0

WW-4G

WWTP Rehab Phase 

4G - HVAC 

Improvements
A 5 4 3 4 16

$1,160,000 $0

WW-4H

WWTP Rehab Phase 

4H - Backwash Blower 

& Piping A 5 4 3 4 16

$300,000 $0

WW-4I

WWTP Rehab Phase 

4I - Piping 

Improvements A 5 4 3 4 16

$640,000 $0

WW-4J Outfalls $8,000,000

WW-4X

2017 Discharge 

Incident/Order  

Expenses
A 5 4 3 4 16

$2,000,000 $1,389,500

WW-7 WWTP Roof Repairs

Replace & repair 

large sections of the 

WWTP roofs

Necessary for 

facility protection 

and longevity

A 5 3 3 4 15 $150,000 $1,350,000 $150,000 $150,000

FORECASTED EXPENDITURES

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re

R
e
g

 /
 P

u
b

li
c

 

H
e
a

lt
h

 /
 E

n
v

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s

R
a
ti

n
g

 T
o

ta
l

PROJECT RATING

2018 2019 2020 2021
L = LaSalle, N = North of 62, 

S = South of 62, A = All

PROJECT 

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT 

JUSTIFICATION

Deferred
Range 1-6  (6 is most important)

COMBINED PROJECTS (WATER AND WASTEWATER)

WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS

ITEM PROJECT NAME

Estimate Info

$550,00+0 

$550,000 
$500,000 

$500,000 

$500,000 

$1,500,000 

$625,000 

$625,000 

$1,800,000 

$1,800,000 

$900,000 

$900,000 

$562,500 

$562,500 

$275,000 

$275,000 

$1.000.000 

$1,000,000 

$170,000 

$170,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,500,000 

$ 

$3,550,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,650.000 

$1,650,000 



WW-9
WWTP/GPS 

Miscellaneous

Repairs / 

replacements not 

associated with 

Phased Projects

Necessary for 

continued 

operation

A 4 4 3 4 15 $160,000 $160,000 $160,000 $160,000 $160,000 $200,000

WW-9C
WWTP Sedimentation 

Basins

Replace mechanical 

components, 

concrete repairs

Necessary for 

continued 

operation

A 6 5 3 4 18

WW-11
WWTP UV 

Disinfection Study

Evaluate changing 

disinfection process

Operational cost 

reduction
A 5 5 3 6 19

WW-9D
WWTP Flood Damage 

Recovery

Repair/replace flood 

damaged equipment

Necessary for 

continued 

operation

A 6 6 3 5 20

WW-9E

WWTP 

Structural/Masonry 

Repairs

Repair aging and 

failing structural 

components

Restore structural 

integrity
A 5 4 3 3 15 $80,000 $374,000 $100,000

WW-9F

Flood Hazard 

Mitigation Grant 

Projects

Harden utility 

infrastructure 

against extreme 

weather

Prevent rainfall-

related impacts and 

damage

A 5 4 4 4 17 $208,070 $3,036,290

WW-9H

WWTP Mercury 

Reduction Project - 

SB#5 Effluent Flow 

Improvements

Treatment plant 

improvements

Regulatory 

requirement
A 3 6 4 2 15

WW-12A
Sanitary Lift Station 

Electrical Upgrades
      300,000 2005       300,000 

Provide standby 

power generation to 

lift stations

Improve reliability L 5 4 5 5 19 $370,000

WW-12B
WWTP Standby 

Generator

Replace and 

upgrade WWTP 

power generator

Improve reliability A 5 4 5 5 19 $400,000

WW-15
Sewer Replacements 

& Repairs
   3,250,000 2005    3,250,000 

Replace / repair 

sewer lines, MH's, 

CB's

Lifecycle asset 

reinvestment
A 6 5 3 3 17 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $500,000

WW-15A
Belden Center Sewer 

Rehabilitation Work

Lining of Lockport 

Road Sanitary 

Sewer

Coordination 

withTown of 

Niagara project

N $25,000

WW-17
LaSalle Area Sewer 

Improvements (SSO)
   1,000,000 2005    1,000,000 

Sewer repairs to 

mitigate SSO's

DEC mandated 

regulatory 

requirement 

L 4 6 5 4 19 $200,000 $170,000 $590,000 $355,000 $500,000 $4,000,000

WW-18

Combined Sewer 

Overflow Long Term 

Control Plan (CSO 

LTCP) Implementation
   4,000,000 2005    4,160,000 

Implement sewer 

improvements to 

mitigate CSO's

DEC mandated 

regulatory 

requirement 

N/S 5 6 3 3 17 $10,000

WW-19
CSO Outfall Structural 

Repairs

Repairs to CSO 

outfalls on lower 

river

Restore structural 

integrity
N/S 4 3 2 2 11 $300,000 $2,500,000 $4,000,000

WW-21 Tunnel Inspection

Inspect large 

diameter 

conveyance 

systems

Plan repairs prior to 

failures
S 3 3 2 3 11 $233,000 $350,000

WW-23
Gorge Pumping 

Station Headworks
      350,000 2005       350,000 

Repair and protect 

GPS equipment

Necessary for 

facility protection 

and longevity

N/S 5 6 2 4 17

W-2
Ontario Ave - 13th to 

18th Street
$250,969

2005       260,000 

Very low flow 4" & 

breaks & service 

leaks, hydrant 

spacing issues

N 6 6 4 5 21 $400,000 $0

Replace water 

mains and install 

new services

WATER INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS

$2,000,000 $20,000 $0  $100,000 

$0  $20,000 $90,000  

$156,053 $2,277,225 

$52,017 $759,065 

$70,000 

$163,000 

$280,000 

$300.000 



W-4

Military Road Main, 

between Jacob and 

Cayuga 

$182,070

2005       180,000 

Frequent breaks on 

4 inch line
L 6 5 4 5 20 $210,000 $0

W-5
97th Street - 98th to 

NF Blvd
Frequent breaks L 6 3 6 5 20

W-6

Bollier Avenue Main, 

between 82nd and 

Military
900 $210,000 2001       250,000 

Victory pipe, 

Frequent breaks
L 6 3 5 4 18 $650,000

W-7
Buffalo Avenue Water 

Valves
28,600 $1,250,000 2004    1,330,000 

Replace damaged 

valves : Combined 

with WW-16

Road 

reconstruction 

opportunity

L/S 6 4 3 4 17

W-8

Hennepin Ave Main,- 

S. 86th to S.89th 

Street

$505,000 2005

      540,000 

Dangerous 

excavation
L 6 6 3 4 19 $510,000

W-9

Rivershore Drive 

Main, - S.86th to 91st 

Street 1,700 $220,000 1994       300,000 

Frequent breaks, 

poor excavation 

conditions

L 6 5 3 4 18 $280,000

W-10
10th St., Lockport to 

North

6 inch pipe with 

breaks, fire flow
N 6 5 3 2 16 $600,000 $0

W-11
Witkop Ave and 85th 

St  Loop all  8" 2,100 $575,000 2001       670,000 

Victory pipe 

frequent breaks
L 6 2 4 4 16 $670,000

W-12
Laughlin Drive Main, -  

82nd to Bollier Ave
1,800 $380,000 1994       510,000 

Victory pipe 

frequent breaks
L 6 2 4 4 16 $500,000

W-13
Willow Ave Main, 11th 

to 17th St -   8" 2,000 $410,000 2001       490,000 

6 inch pipe with 

breaks
N 6 2 4 3 15 $460,000

W-14

Whitney Avenue, 18th 

Street to Hyde Park 

Blvd

Main breaks, 

service breaks
N 5 4 4 2 15 $850,000 $0

W-15

LaSalle Avenue, Hyde 

Park Blvd to 11th 

Street

Main breaks, 

service breaks
N 5 3 4 2 14 $1,600,000

W-16
Ontario Ave - 13th to 

Main Street

Main & service 

breaks, fire flow
N 5 5 3 2 15 $500,000

W-17

Military Road Main, 

Jacob to Bollier 

Avenue 

6 inch pipe with 

breaks
L 4 4 4 2 14 $150,000

W-18

Pierce Ave Main, - 

18th to Hyde Park with 

8"

$501,939

2005       530,000 

Many service 

breaks (not main)
N 5 2 3 3 13 $750,000

W-18A
Buffalo Avenue Point 

to City Docks

6 inch pipe with 

breaks
L 4 4 4 2 14 $450,000 $0

W-19
Pierce Ave Main, 11th 

to 18th Street 8"
4,400 $875,000 2001    1,050,000 

Many service 

breaks (not main)
N 5 2 3 3 13 $570,000

W-20
Loop Niagara Avenue 

Main, to Parkview Dr
1,300 $80,000 1994       110,000 

Install & loop with 

new main 

Eliminate dead end 

and blow-off
N 3 3 3 4 13 $110,000

W-21
Whitney Avenue, 11th 

Street to 18th Street

Replace water 

mains and install 

new services

Main breaks, 

service breaks
N 4 4 3 2 13 $650,000

W-22
Loop "D" St Main, -  

Falls St to Gill Creek
400 $50,000 1994         70,000 

Install & loop with 

new main 

Eliminate dead end 

and blow-off
S 4 2 2 2 10 $70,000

W-23

81st Street, Frontier 

Avenue to Pine 

Avenue

Service leaks L 3 3 3 1 10 $850,000

W-24

McKoon Ave Main, - 

DeVeaux to James 

Avenue 2,200 $500,000 1994       690,000 

Occasional breaks N 3 2 2 2 9 $670,000

W-25
Welch Ave Main,, 19th 

to 24th Street  16"
1,500 $510,000 2001       610,000 

Main breaks, 

service breaks
S 2 2 2 2 8 $600,000

W-26
Automation & Security 

Upgrades at WTP
$500,000

2005       530,000 

Automate WTP 

operations and 

perform necessary 

Maintain facility 

security
A 5 3 5 13 $500,000

W-28
Large Valve 

Replacement
$572,435

2005       600,000 
Replace valves >12" System reliability A 6 2 5 4 17 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $100,000

Replace water 

mains and install 

new services

Replace water 

mains and install 

new services

Replace water 

mains and install 

new services

$400,000 

$250,000 



W-29
Leak Detection / 

Distribution Modeling
$200,000

2005       220,000 

Identify and control 

system losses

Resolve water 

quality & pressure 

issues; better asset 

A 4 2 5 6 17 $200,000

W-30 Hydrant Replacement $314,147
2005       310,000 

Replace old and 

inoperable

Fire protection 

reliability
A 5 4 4 3 16 $191,950 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000 $80,000

W-31
Water Miscellaneous 

Improvements
$1,200,000

2005    1,200,000 

Water system 

repairs

Maintain 

infrastructure
A 5 3 3 3 14 $191,950 $120,000 $120,000 $120,000 $120,000 $100,000

W-32
WTP Vent Line 

Replacement

Replace corroding 

process vent piping

Maintain treatment 

plant integrity
A 4 2 2 3 11 $53,000 $100,000

W-33
Abandon 20" Victory 

Pipe WM

Abandon 

unnecessary and 

failing watermain

Victory pipe, 

potential for  

breaks

L 5 2 5 5 17 $170,000 $0

W-34
WTP Laboratory 

Instrumentation

New instruments for 

sample analysis

Regulation-driven 

water testing
A 3 5 2 5 15 $0

W-35
Beech Avenue Tank 

Replacement

Replace existing 

water storage tank

Distribution system 

operation & 

reliability

N 5 3 2 4 14 $3,000,000 $3,000,000 $0

W-36 77th Street from Lasalle Parkway to Niagara Falls Boulevard

Replace water 

mains and install 

new services

$875,000 $0

W-37 Michigan Avenue from Lockport Street to 10th Street

Replace water 

mains and install 

new services

$150,000 $0

Total $11,587,970 $25,030,790 $12,185,000 $9,869,000 $24,130,000

$4,085,017 $10,246,565 $4,615,000 $3,374,000 $1,595,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Sum 2017 > 2021

$4,100,000 $12,752,617 $2,984,065 $3,165,000 $1,574,000 $24,575,682

Coverage Set-Aside $0

$1,946,900 $0 $0 $0 $1,946,900

$0 $3,000,000 $6,020,000 $3,995,000 $13,015,000

$976,053 $2,277,225 $0 $0 $3,253,278

Phase 1 NYS WWTP Funding $2,120,000 $7,262,500 $3,150,000 $8,000,000

Interfund Transfer $1,500,000 $1,389,500 $0 $0 $2,889,500

NYSEFC SRF Loan $0 $0 $0 $2,500,000 $2,500,000

Totals : $10,642,953 $26,681,842 $12,154,065 $9,660,000 $59,138,860

Bonded

Grants

Fund Sources

Annual Coverage Transfer

NYPA-FST Settlement



Page 1 of 2 

 

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-007 

 

REQUIRING WEEKLY STAFF REPORTS TO BOARD MEMBERS 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) typically holds one 

working session and one regular meeting per month, but there often are multi-week gaps 

between meetings; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Water Board operations are complex, and Board Members desire and 

require timely information in order to aid in making decisions that best benefit the Water Board, 

its ratepayers, and its employees; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Board members are volunteers and it would be inefficient for each Board 

member to speak with each department head on a weekly basis to stay apprised of the 

department’s principal activities, issues, and progress on initiatives;  

 

 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

 

 RESOLVED, that that effective immediately, the following Niagara Falls Water Board 

supervisory personnel are to provide to the Executive Director a written weekly update regarding 

their department’s principal activities, issues, and progress on initiatives over the past week, and 

the Executive Director is to forward this information to the Board of Directors: 

 

1. Supervisor Meters,  

2. Supervisor of Pipes,  

3. Microbiologist,  

4. Chief Operator Water Treatment Plant,  

5. Supervisor of Maintenance,  

6. Chief Operator Wastewater Treatment Plant,  

7. Director of Administrative Services,  

8. Safety and Security Coordinator,  

9. Director of Financial Services,  

10. Director of Technical and Regulatory Services, and  

11. Industrial Monitoring Coordinator 

 

 AND IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that any extraordinary developments reasonably 

believed to be newsworthy or of special urgency shall be communicated by the Executive 

Director or General Counsel to the Board of Directors as expeditiously as possible. 

 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 

  Executive Director 

 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:  

  Not applicable. 

 

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 

on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

 

 Yes No Abstain Absent 

Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

 

Signed By: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

 



Page 1 of 2 

 

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-008 

 

DIRECTING STAFF TO REQUEST PROPOSALS  

FOR FORENSIC ACCOUNTING SERVICES 

 

 WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has a complex operating 

and financial structure that is influenced by particular agreements, statutes, bond covenants, and 

its legal relationship with the Niagara Falls Water Authority; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Water Board has certain funds that have been designated as reserve or 

restricted that it wishes to employ for capital projects in order to minimize necessary rate 

increases if possible; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Water Board has been unable to find satisfactory answers to questions 

regarding its use of reserve or restricted funds, which may depend on the original sources and 

dates of deposit of such funds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Water Board further wishes to review the 2016 findings of the 

New York State Comptroller’s Office following an audit, including a review and confirmation of 

proper separation between Water Board and Niagara Falls Water Authority funds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is anticipated that a professional services firm with forensic accounting 

experience would be able to address these outstanding questions and to provide useful advice 

regarding internal controls;  

 

 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

 

 RESOLVED, that the Director of Financial Services and General Counsel hereby are 

directed to solicit proposals for the forensic accounting services requested above, and to prepare 

a recommendation, including a not-to-exceed dollar figure, for the Board following receipt of 

responses to the request for proposals. 

 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 

  Director of Financial Services 

  General Counsel 

 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:  

  Not applicable. 

 

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 

on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

 

 Yes No Abstain Absent 

Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

 

Signed By: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

 



Page 1 of 1 

 

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-009 

 

SETTING WILLIAM WRIGHT’S SALARY  

AFTER SIX-MONTH CONTRACTUAL REVIEW 

 

 WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) entered into an 

employment agreement with William Wright that required the Water Board to review 

Mr. Wright’s salary after he served in the position of Superintendent for six months; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Water Board staff reviewed Mr. Wright’s performance, and Mr. Wright’s 

performance as Superintendent after six months is rated “Superior”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, as an incentive for Mr. Wright’s retention and continued Superior 

performance, the Water Board desires to provide Mr. Wright with a salary adjustment in 

conformity with the provisions of his contract; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

 

 RESOLVED, that the Salary of Superintendent William Wright hereby is increased by 

8.5% over its current level, and that his annual salary rate after this increase shall be $75,350, 

effective on August 1, 2018. 

 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 

  Director of Administrative Services 

 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:  

   

 

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 

on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

 

 Yes No Abstain Absent 

Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

 

Signed By: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson 

Vote Witnessed By: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board 

 



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-010

PURCHASE OF HYDRAULIC GUILLOTINE CUTTER WITH SAFETY FUNDS

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has an active Safety 
program, and the Safety Department and Outside Pipes have identified as a desired and 
significant improvement in worker safety the purchase of a diamond wire hydraulic guillotine 
cutter for the cutting of main pipes, to replace the use of hand-held tools; and 

WHEREAS, existing Water Board equipment will supply the hydraulic power required 
to operate such a cutter; and

WHEREAS, Water Board staff have obtained a quote in the amount of $10,665 from 
E.H. Wach for the purchase of a diamond wire hydraulic guillotine package for 4” to 
16” diameter pipes; and

WHEREAS, funds for this procurement are available in the Safety Department budget;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that Water Staff hereby are authorized to procure a diamond wire 
hydraulic guillotine package for 4” to 16” diameter pipes using Safety Department funds at a 
total cost not to exceed $10,665.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Director of Operations

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:
Safety Department Budget

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board









Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-011

REQUIRING IT DEPARTMENT REVIEW OF PURCHASES 
FOR POSSIBLE INTEGRATION WITH WATER BOARD SYSTEMS

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) actively is upgrading its 
technology to more efficiently and effectively fulfill its mission to provide safe and reliable 
water and wastewater management services to our community; and 

WHEREAS, it is desired by the Water Board that where possible newly-purchased 
systems will integrate with existing technology and systems, such as the Lucity enterprise asset 
management software; and

WHEREAS, the IT Department’s opinion regarding technology upgrades is relevant to 
the Water Board’s decisions regarding such upgrades; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that for procurements that may involve integration of software or 
technology with existing Water Board systems, the IT Department’s opinion regarding the 
feasibility and utility of such integration shall be provided to the Water Board in connection with 
the procurement request.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Director of Administrative Services

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:
Not applicable.

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-012

ADOPTING NYS DEPARTMENT OF LABOR GUIDANCE REGARDING JANUS CASE

WHEREAS, much of the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) workforce is 
covered by collective-bargaining agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the Union workforce plays a crucial and appreciated role in Water Board 
operations, and the Water Board wishes to maintain an open, productive, and mutually-respectful 
relationship with the Unions representing Water Board workers; and

WHEREAS, the United States Supreme Court decision in Janus v. AFSCME Council 31 
has changed established law and practice relating to the right of a union to receive the payment 
of fair share agency fees from public-sector employees who decline union membership; and

WHEREAS, the New York State Department of Labor has issued a document entitled 
“Guidance for Public-Sector Employers and Employees in New York State” that discusses the 
impact of Janus on collective bargaining, agency fees, Union member access, and Union 
member personal information; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  *



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that the Water Board hereby adopts a policy to follow the New York State 
Department of Labor’s guidance on the Janus decision, as may from time to time be issued and 
amended.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Director of Administrative Services

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:
Not applicable.

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Guidance for Public-Sector Employers and Employees in New York State 

New York State has a long and important tradition of supporting the organized labor movement and the 
fundamental right of workers to organize. Public-sector employees play a crucial role in communities 
across New York State. Each day they work hard to ensure public safety, protect public health, and to 
provide other critical services to New York residents. 
 
The Supreme Court of the United States issued a decision in Janus v. AFSCME Council 31, 585 U.S. ____, 
138 S.Ct. 2448 (2018) on June 27, 2018. The Janus decision overturned decades of established law and 
practice relating to the right of a union to receive the payment of fair share agency fees from public-
sector employees who decline union membership. As a result, there has been much confusion and this 
Guidance is intended to provide clarity to employers and employees. The only change under Janus is 
that public employers may not deduct agency fees from a non-member’s wages, nor may a union 
otherwise collect agency fees from a non-member, without the non-member employee’s affirmative 
consent. All other rights and obligations of public-sector employers and employees under state law 
remain unchanged. For example, unions have, in the past, presented dues deduction cards, or other 
similar evidence of union membership such as membership lists, to public employers and those 
employers previously collected union dues from its employees on that basis. The decision in Janus does 
not require a union to obtain new dues deduction cards or obtain other evidence of union membership 
or remove a public employer’s obligation to collect dues from members of a union. Public employee 
unions are not required to produce dues authorizations cards for members from whom the employer 
has previously deducted dues. 
 

Collective Bargaining  
• Under New York law, the rights of public-sector employees to collectively bargain are unaffected 

by the decision in Janus.  Employees maintain the right to: 
o organize; 
o form, join, or assist any employee organization for the purpose of bargaining collectively 

through representatives of their own choosing on questions of wages, hours, and other 
terms and conditions of employment; and 

o engage in lawful, concerted activities for the purpose of collective bargaining. 
• Employees also continue to have the right to be free from threats, interference or coercive 

statements when exercising their protected rights to engage in concerted activity. 

• Public employers are forbidden from interfering in the formation of a union, discriminating 
against or terminating an employee based on union membership or activity, and refusing to 
bargain in good faith with a union. 

 

Union Dues & Agency Fees 
• The Janus decision does not impact any agreements between a union and its members to pay 

union dues, and existing membership cards or other agreements by union members to pay dues 
must be honored. The Janus decision only impacts the mandatory collection of an agency fee by 
individuals who decline union membership. 

• Employees who are non-members and paying agency fees may choose to become dues paying 
union members. 

• Employees may pay dues through a payroll deduction. 

 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Member Access & Personal Information 
• Under many collective bargaining agreements, and under Civil Service Law § 208, public 

employers are required to provide in a timely manner, the collective bargaining representative 
with the names and contact information of any newly hired employees. 

• Public employees have the right to keep their personal information protected by their employer. 
An employee’s personal information, such as home address, personal email address, home or 
mobile telephone numbers, and other contact information is protected from disclosure (with 
limited exceptions). 

 
Employees who believe their rights have been violated should contact their employer or their union. 



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-013

AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH JONI CIMINO 

WHEREAS, Joni Cimino disputed certain Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) 
charges for service at 1414-16 Main Street; and 

WHEREAS, to resolve that dispute, Ms. Cimino and the Water Board previously entered 
into a payment plan for those disputed charges that provided that Mr. Cimino would make 
monthly payments and keep her water bills current, and that outstanding interest and penalties 
would be removed from the bill upon repayment of all outstanding principal; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Cimino has made more than the minimum agreed payment each month 
but earlier in 2018 received two large and unexpected water bills that she was unable to pay 
when due; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Cimino has requested a new agreement to the Water Board to extend 
the period for her prior settlement agreement and to address the new charges; and

WHEREAS, the Water Board under its general authority to compromise and settle 
claims arising from contracts may waive the imposition of penalties arising from a claimant’s 
nonpayment of water rents when compromising a claim asserted by the claimant; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1230-f, Title 10-B, Article 5 of the Public Authorities Law 
authorizes the Water Board to negotiate, compromise and settle claims when there is sufficient 
consideration for the compromise of a claim and if the parties in good faith advance opposing 
contentions; and

WHEREAS, as of July 1, 2018 the outstanding balance for 1414-16 Main Street was 
$10,318.32 for water and sewer charges plus $3,321.12 for penalties;  

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  *



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that the Water Board’s Director of Financial Services hereby is authorized 
to execute an agreement with Joni Cimino for the payment of the outstanding charges for service 
to 1414-16 Main Street, in a form approved by General Counsel and containing the following 
substantive terms:

1. Ms. Cimino will make an initial good-faith payment of $1,318.32 by August 15, 2018; 
2. Ms. Cimino will make 15 monthly payments of $600, with the first such installment due 

on October 1, 2018;
3. All new bills shall be paid on time;
4. Upon satisfaction of the foregoing conditions, the accrued interest and penalties for 

1414-16 Main Street shall be waived; and
5. Should Ms. Cimino default on the agreement, all outstanding charges, interest, and 

penalties immediately shall come due and water service may be terminated.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Director of Financial Services
General Counsel

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:
Not applicable.

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-014

STRATUS SERVER MIGRATION SERVICES

WHEREAS, pursuant to resolution 2018-02-005, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water 
Board”) previously awarded a bid for the purchase of a Stratus ftServer following a public bid; 
and 

WHEREAS, professional software development, integration and testing, documentation, 
and training services are required in order to put that Stratus ftServer into service; and 

WHEREAS, Water Board staff has received a quote from Applied Sciences Group, Inc., 
for these professional services, in a total amount of $31,065;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby authorizes the Director of 
Administrative Services to enter into an agreement with Applied Sciences Group, Inc., for 
professional software development, integration and testing, documentation, and training services 
that are required in order to put the Stratus ftServer into service, for a total amount not to exceed 
$31,065.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Director of Administrative Services

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board























Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-015

AWARDING CONTRACT FOR SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT AT 66TH STREET AND GIRARD AVENUE

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) sewer manhole at 
66th Street and Girard Avenue is in poor condition and in danger of a collapse; and 

WHEREAS, the functional condition of this manhole is important to the sewer system in 
the LaSalle area, as it is the meeting point of a 24” and a 30” sewer main through which much of 
that area’s wastewater passes; and 

WHEREAS, the manhole repair will require deep excavation under difficult conditions, 
bypass pumping to maintain sewer performance while repairs are completed, and significant 
traffic maintenance and protection work; and 

WHEREAS, Water Board staff worked with City of Niagara Falls Engineering to 
prepare specifications to seek bids to perform the required sewer manhole reconstruction; and

WHEREAS, to minimize the inconvenience associated with the repair, the Water Board 
desires to complete the manhole reconstruction before school starts, as the location is near an 
Elementary school and Board of Education offices; and 

WHEREAS, the contract specifications provide that the winning contractor will have 
sole responsibility for completion of all aspects of the project, including bypass pumping and 
maintenance and protection of traffic; and

WHEREAS, City Engineering solicited competitive bids for the work; and

WHEREAS, 4th Generation Construction, Inc., is the only contractor that submitted a 
bid for the project, with a base bid total price of $98,000; and

WHEREAS, Water Board staff recommends that the contract for the project be awarded 
to 4th Generation Construction, Inc.;

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  *



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, its Executive Director 
hereby is authorized to enter into a contract with 4th Generation Construction, Inc., to complete 
the sanitary sewer manhole replacement project at 66th Street and Girard Avenue, for a total base 
bid price not to exceed $98,000.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Executive Director

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board













Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-016

AUTHORIZING LIFT STATION SCADA CONTROL

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has seven lift stations that 
currently are manually activated; and 

WHEREAS, adding supervisory control and data acquisition (“SCADA”) control to 
those lift stations will allow them to be activated more rapidly when needed, and will reduce 
certain labor expenses; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a previously awarded indefinite quantity/indefinite delivery 
(“IDIQ”) contract, Ferguson Electric Service Co., Inc., will install SCADA control panels in the 
seven lift stations for an estimated cost of $45,000 (on a time and material basis), and will 
procure from Zeller AC&E the required pump control panels compatible with the Water Board’s 
lift station pumps for an estimated cost of $145,750; and 

WHEREAS, Clark Patterson Lee and Water Board staff have prepared a proposal for 
these services plus 10% contingency ($20,000) and 15% engineering and administration 
($30,000); and

WHEREAS, the total estimated cost to complete the project is $240,000; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  *



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, its Executive Director 
hereby is authorized to direct Ferguson Electric Service Co., Inc., to add SCADA control to 
seven lift stations, with the total cost of the project including engineering services provided by 
Clark Patterson Lee not to exceed $240,000.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Executive Director

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board



















Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2018-07-017

AUTHORIZING FUNDS TO PROCURE TWO ADDITIONAL SETS OF 
SEDIMENTATION BASIN SCRAPER BLADES

WHEREAS, at its June 2018 meeting and pursuant to Resolution 2018-06-011, as 
amended, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) authorized funds to fabricate two 
stainless steel scraper blade assemblies for wastewater treatment plant sedimentation basins; and 

WHEREAS, a total of three sedimentation basins needed new scraper blade assemblies; 
and

WHEREAS, with the fabrication of two more stainless steel scraper blade assemblies in 
addition to those authorized in June 2018, stainless-steel assemblies will be available for all 
basins currently in need of scraper blade assemblies and the Water Board will have one extra 
stainless steel scraper blade assembly on hand in order to reduce the time required for future 
repairs, improving efficiency, reducing cost, and helping the wastewater plant function as well as 
is possible given the plant’s other limitations and outdated treatment technology; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated cost to prepare two additional stainless steel scraper blade 
assemblies is $120,000, with said assemblies to be fabricated using pre-bid indefinite 
delivery/indefinite quantity contracts and/or Water Board personnel, as appropriate

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  *



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, its Executive Director 
hereby is authorized expend up to $120,000 in Water Board funds to procure two additional 
wastewater treatment plant sedimentation basin stainless steel scraper blade assemblies.

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution:
Executive Director

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution:

On July 30, 2018, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote 
on roll call, which resulted as follows:

Yes No Abstain Absent
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ]

Signed By:

________________________________
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By:

________________________________
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board


	Agenda
	10.d  DRAFT June Meeting Minutes
	2.I.g   Bond Analysis Niagara Falls Water Board Projection
	6.a.i  General Merchandise and Materials Control Specialist
	6.a.ii  Records and Retention specialist
	Action Item #6a - July 2018 Personnel Actions.xlsx
	9.ab  18-6 June Report for July 2018
	10.II.i  ny-alert-quick-reference-guide-enroll-no-nygov-account060718140pm
	10.II.ii  ny-alert-quick-reference-guide-enroll-existing-nygov-account060718145pm
	10.II.b  Twitter
	12.a  RESOLUTION 2018-07-001– Camera Truck Software Upgrade
	12.a.i  NFWB Pipelogix Quote 7-2-18
	12.b RESOLUTION 2018-07-002– Root Control Bid
	12.b.i Sewer Line Root Control Memo to NFWB
	12.b.2 Sewer Line Root Control Tally Sheet for NFWB Item
	12.c RESOLUTION 2018-07-003– Verizon One Talk Phone Upgrades
	12.c.i Verizon One Talk Service Quote
	12.c.ii Connected Solutions One Talk Hardware and Installation Quote
	12.d Resolution 2018-07-004 Additional GHD Funds
	11145878Porter-6
	Scope of Services
	Proposed Schedule and Fee
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	12.d.i GHD Consent Order item proposal 062718
	12.e Resolution 2018-07-005 Lead Agency  Neg Dec
	12.e.i  Long Form Beech Avenue 2018 (5)
	12.e.ii  feafpart2
	12.e.iii  Full Environmental Assessment Part 3
	12.e.iv   Resolution 2018-02-20 Authorizing NYS Water InfrastructureImprovement Act
	12.e.v  Interested Agency letters
	12.e.vi  NFWB Tank Report Compiled
	12.f  2018-07-006 - Adopting Five Year Capital Plan
	12.f.i  options NFWB Spring 2018 Draft CIP BOARD recomendations plus comparison
	12.g  2018-07-007 - Requiring weekly staff reports
	12.h  2018-07-008 - Forensic accounting
	12.i  2018-07-009 - Salary Review - Bill Wright
	2018-07-010 - Purchase Hydraulic Guillotine with Safety Funds
	12.j.1  EM Wachs
	2018-07-011 - Requiring IT Department Approval of Technology Purchases
	2018-07-012 - Board to follow Department of Labor guidance on Janus case
	10.b.i janus-guidance
	2018-07-013 - Authorizing Cimino Settlement
	2018-07-014 - Stratus Server Migration Services
	12.n.i   Applied Sciences
	2018-07-015 - Awarding COntract - 66th and Girard Manhole
	12.o.i  66th  Girard (2)
	2018-07-016 - Lift Station SCADA Control
	12.p.i   Lift station SCADA
	2018-07-017 - Two additional sets of scraper blades

	C3a: Yes
	C3b: Yes
	C3c: No
	D2a: No
	D2aiv: Off
	D2aviii: Off
	D2b: No
	D2iii: Off
	D2c: No
	Print Form: 
	Text3: 
	descrine any use limitataions: 
	Institutional or Engineering Controls: 
	Urban: Yes
	Describe Any Engineering Controls: 
	C2b: No
	C2c: No
	A: 
	-SS1: Demolish and Replace Beech Avenue Water Tank
	-SS2: 1780 Beech Avenue, Niagara Falls, NY
	-SS3: Demolish an existing 2 million gallon, steel multi-leg tank that is approximately 150 feet high, 80 foot diameter and was constructed in 1948. A new storage tank with concrete support legs and metal tank to be constructed in same location that is approximately same size in volume (2 million gallons) and that will also be about 40 feet taller in height. The new tank will allow for better water distribution within the City, increased water pressure for customers, additional fire fighting capabilities. Also, replacement of this tank will allow for greater system redundancy, as the tank has been out of service for twenty years, which results in the storage tank along 56th Street currently being the only storage tank in service.
	-SS4: Niagara Falls Water Board, attn: Douglas S. Williamson
	-SS5: 716-283-9770
	-SS6: dwilliamson@nfwb.com
	-SS7: 5815 Buffalo Avenue
	-SS8: Niagara Falls
	-SS10: 14304
	-SS11: 
	-SS9: NY 
	-SS12: 
	-SS13: 
	-SS14: 
	-SS15: 
	-SS16: 
	-SS17: 
	-SS18: 
	-SS19: 
	-SS21: 
	-SS20: 
	-SS22: 
	-SS23: 
	-SS24: 

	BaSS1: 
	BaSS2: 
	Ba: No
	Bb: No
	BbSS1: 
	BbSS2: 
	Bc: No
	BcSS1: 
	BcSS2: 
	Bd: No
	BdSS1: 
	BdSS2: 
	Be: Yes
	BeSS1: Niagara County Department of Health
	BeSS2: TBD
	Bf: Yes
	BfSS1: Empire State Development Corp. funding
	BfSS2: July 1, 2018
	Bg: Yes
	BgSS1: Environmental Facilities Corp. funding
	BgSS2: June 15, 2018
	Bh: Yes
	BhSS1: Federal Aviation Administration
	BhSS2: TBD
	Bi: No
	Bii: No
	Biii: No
	C1: No
	C2a: No
	C2bSS1: 
	C2cSS1: 
	C3aSS1: Exempt
	C3ci: 
	C4a:     Niagara Falls School District
	C4b: Niagara Falls, NY
	C4c: NIagara Falls
	C4d: NA
	D1a: Maintenance of public water supply facility
	D1ba: 1.25
	D1bb: 1
	D1bc: 1.25
	D1ciSS1: 
	D1ciSS2: 
	D1diii: 
	D1divSS2: 
	D1ei: 
	D1eiiSS1: 2
	D1eiiSS2: 3
	D1eiiSS3: 2019
	D1eiiSS4: 9
	D1eiiSS5: 2019
	D1eiiSS6:                   Phase 1: demolition of existing tank, Phase 2: Construct replacement tank
	D1fSS1: 
	D1fSS2: 
	D1fSS3: 
	D1fSS4: 
	D1fSS5: 
	D1fSS6: 
	D1fSS7: 
	D1giiSS3: 80
	D1fSS8: 
	D1gi: 1
	D1giiSS1: 200
	D1giiSS2: 80
	D1giii: 0
	D1hi: water storage for municipal water system
	D1hiiSS1: Niagara River
	D1hiii: 
	D1hivSS1: 2,000,000
	D1hivSS2: N/A
	D1hvSS2: 80
	D1hvSS1: 40
	D1hvi: Concrete support legs with upper steel section for storage of water.
	D2ai: 
	D2aiiSS1: 
	D2aiiSS2: 
	D2aiii: 
	D2aivSS1: 
	D2av: 
	D2avi: 
	D2avii: 
	D2aix: 
	D2bi: 
	D2bii: 
	D2bivSS1: 
	D2bivSS2: 
	D2bivSS3: 
	D2bv: 
	D2ci: 
	D2CiiiSS1: 
	D2ciiSS1: 
	D2civSS2: 
	D2civSS3: 
	D2cv: 
	D2cvi: 
	D2di: 
	D2dii: 
	D2diiiSS1: Niagara Falls Wastewater Treatment Facility
	D2diiiSS2: City of Niagara Falls
	D2diiiSS9: 
	D2divSS3: 
	D2divSS2: 
	D2divSS1: 
	D2dv: 
	D2dvi: 
	D2eii: 
	D2eiii: 
	D2eiiiSS1: 
	D2fi: 
	D2fii: 
	D2fiii: 
	D2giiSS1: 
	D2giiSS2: 
	D2giiSS3: 
	D2giiSS4: 
	D2giiSS5: 
	d2hi: 
	d2hii: 
	D2iSS1: 
	D2jiiiSS1: 
	D2jii: 
	D2jiiiSS3: 
	D2jv: 
	D2ki: 
	D2kii: 
	D2liSS2: 
	D2liSS3: 
	D2liiSS1: 24
	D2liiSS2: 24
	D2liiSS4: 24
	D2liSS1: 7:00 am to 4:00 pm
	D2liSS4: 
	D2mi: 
	D2miiSS1: 
	D2ni: Site lighting to illuminate ground for maintenance workers and security purposes.
	D2niiSS1: 
	D2oSS1: 
	D2pi: 
	D2piii: 
	D2qi: 
	D2riSS1: 
	D2riSS2: 
	D2riSS3: 
	D2riSS4: 
	D2riiSS1: 
	D2riiSS2: 
	D2riiiSS1: 
	D2si: 
	D2siii: 
	D2ti: 
	D2tii: 
	D2tiii: 
	D2tiv: 
	D2tvSS1: 
	D2tvSS2: No hazardous waste is generated from operation of a water storage tank.
	E1aiOtherSS1: 
	E1aiiUses: 
	E1bOther: 
	E1ciUsage: 
	E1diFacilties: 
	E1eiSS1Height: 
	E1eiSS2Length: 
	E1eiSS3SurfaceArea: 
	E1eiSS4Volume: 
	E1eiiHazard Classification: 
	E1eiiiDate and Summary: 
	E1fiSS1Sources: 
	E1fiiLocation Description: 
	E1fiiiDevelopment Constraints: 
	E1giActivities: 
	E1hiSS2DEC ID: 
	E1hiSS4DEC ID: 
	E1hiiControl Measures: 
	E1hiiiSS1DEC ID: 
	E1hivCurrent Status: 
	E1hvSS1DEC Site: 
	E1hvSS2Institutional: 
	E2aDepth: N/A
	E2bSS1Proportion: 
	E2cSS1Soil Type: Urban
	E2cSS3Soil Type: 
	E2cSS5SoilType: 
	E2gSS1Geologic Features: 
	E2hivSS1Streams Name: 
	E2hivSS3Lakes or Ponds Name: 
	E2hivSS5Wetlands: 
	E2hivSS2Classification: 
	E2hivSS4Classification: 
	E2hivSS6Size: 
	E2hivSS7Wetland No: 
	E2hvSS1Impaired Water Bodies: 
	E2liAquifer Name: 
	E2mSS1Predominant Species: 
	E2mSS2Predominant Species: 
	E2mSS3Predominant Species: 
	E2niHabitat or Community Description: 
	E2nii: 
	E2niiiCurrent Acres: 
	E2niiiCompleted Acres: 
	E2niiiGain or Loss Acres: 
	E2oiSpeicies: 
	E2piSpecies: 
	E2qSS1Desciption of Affects: 
	E3aSS1County and District: 
	E3biAcreage: 
	E3biiSource: 
	E3ciiDescription of Landmark: 
	E3diCEA Name: 
	E3diiBasis for Designation: 
	E3diiiDesignating Agency and Date: 
	E3eiiName: 
	E3eiiiDescription of Attributes: 
	E3giResource: 
	E3giIdentification: 
	E3hiIdentification: Niagara Falls State Park
	E3iiName of River: 
	GSS1: Niagara Falls Water Board
	GSS3:                                                       Douglas S. Williamson
	GSS2: 
	GSS4: Director of Technical & Regulatory Services
	C2aSS1: Off
	D1c: No
	D1d: No
	D1dii: Off
	D1e: Yes
	D1di: 
	D1f: No
	D1g: Off
	D1h: Yes
	D1hiiGround: Off
	D1hiiOther: Specify
	D1hiiSurface: Off
	D2biv: Off
	D2cii: Off
	D2ciiSS2: Off
	D2ciiSS3: Off
	D2ciiSS4: Off
	D2ciiSS5: Off
	D2ciii: No
	D2d: No
	D2civ: No
	D2diii: Yes
	D2diiiSS3: Yes
	D2diiiSS4: Yes
	D2diiiSS5: No
	D2diiiSS6: Yes
	D2diiiss7: Off
	D2diiiSS7: No
	D2div: No
	D2e: No
	D2eiSS1: 
	D2eiSS2: 
	D2eiSS3: 
	D2eiSS4: 
	D2eiiiSS2: Off
	D2eiv: Off
	D2f: No
	D2g: No
	D2gi: No
	D2h: No
	D2i: No
	D2j: No
	D2jiMorning: Off
	D2jiEvening: Off
	D2jiWeekend: Off
	D2jiSS2: 
	D2jiRandomly: Off
	D2jiv: Off
	D2jvi: Off
	D2jvii: Off
	D2jviii: Off
	D2k: No
	d2kiii: Off
	D2kiii: Off
	D2m: No
	D2mii: No
	D2n: Yes
	D2nii: No
	D2o: No
	D2p: No
	D2q: No
	D2piiSS2: 
	D2qii: No
	D2r: No
	D2s: No
	D2siiSS1: 
	D2siiSS2: 
	D2t: No
	D2tv: Off
	E1aiIndustrial: Off
	E1aiCommercial: Off
	E1aiResidential: Off
	E1aiRural: Off
	E1aiForest: Off
	E1aiAgriculture: Off
	E1aiAquatic: Off
	E1aiOther: Off
	E1bSS1RoadsCurrent Acres: 0.5
	E1bSS4Forested-Current Acres: 
	E1bSS7MeadowsCurrent Acres: 
	E1bSS10AgCurrent Acres: 
	E1bSS13SurfaceCurrent Acres: 
	E1bSS16WetlandCurrent Acres: 
	E1bSS19Non-VegCurrent Acres: 0.75
	E1bSS2RoadsCompleted Acres: 0.5
	E1bSS5ForestedCompleted Acres: 
	E1bSS8MeadowsCompleted Acres: 
	E1bSS11AgCompleted Acres: 
	E1bSS14SurfaceCompleted Acres: 
	E1bSS17WetlandCompleted Acres: 
	E1bSS20NonVegCompleted Acres: 0.75
	E1bSS3RoadsGain or Loss: 0.0
	E1bSS9MeadowsGain or Loss: 
	E1bSS12AgGain or Loss: 
	E1bSS15SurfaceGain or Loss: 
	E1bSS18WetlandGain or Loss: 
	E1bSS21NonVegGain or Loss: 0.0
	E1c: No
	E1d: No
	E1e: No
	E1f: No
	E1fi: Off
	E1g: No
	E1h: No
	E1hi: Off
	E1hiSS1Spills: Off
	E1hiSS3Environmental: Off
	E1hiSS5Neither: Off
	E1hiii: No
	E1hv: No
	E1hvSS5: Off
	E2b: No
	E2cSS2%: 100
	E2cSS4%: 
	E2cSS6%: 
	E2dAverageFeet: N/A
	E2eSS1Well Drained: Off
	E2eSS3Moderately Drained: Yes
	E2eSS5Poorley Drained: Off
	E2eSS2%: 
	E2eSS4%: 100
	E2eSS6%: 
	E2fSS1010%: Yes
	E2fSS515% or greater: Off
	E2fSS31015%: Off
	E2fSS2%: 100
	E2fSS4%: 
	E2fSS6%: 
	E2g: No
	E2hi: No
	E2hii: No
	E2hiii: No
	E2hv: No
	E2i: No
	E2j: No
	E2k: No
	E2l: No
	E2n: No
	E2o: No
	E2p: No
	E2q: No
	E3a: No
	E3b: Off
	E3c: Off
	E3ciSS1Biological: Off
	E3ciSS2Geological: Off
	E3d: No
	E3e: No
	E3eiArchaeological: Off
	E3eiHistoric: Off
	E3f: No
	E3g: No
	E3h: Yes
	E3i: No
	E3iii: Off
	E1bSS6ForestedGain or Loss: 
	EhiiNature or Basis for Designation: state park
	E3hiiiDistance between project and resource: 3
	E1bSS22OtherCurrentAcreage: 
	E1bSS23OtherCompletedAcreage: 
	E1bSS24OtherGain or Loss: 
	E2mSS4Predominant Species: local bird life
	E2mSS5Predominant Species: 
	E2mSS6Predominant Species: 
	E2mSS7Predominant Species: 
	E2mSS8Predominant Species: 
	E2mSS9Predominant Species: 
	D2riiiSS2: 
	D2piiSS1: 
	D2liiSS3: 24
	D2jiiiSS2: 
	D2jiiiSS4: 
	D2giiSS6: 
	D2bivSS4: 
	D2bivSS5: 
	D2bivSS6: 
	D1divSS3: 
	D2ciiiSS2: 
	D2civSS1: 
	1a: No
	Impact on Land: Yes
	1b: no
	1c: No
	1d: No
	1e: Yes
	1f: No
	1g: No
	1h: Off
	1OtherImpacts: 
	2: No
	2a: Off
	2b: Off
	2c: Off
	Specic Land Form: 
	Nation Landmark: 
	2OtherImpacts: 
	3: No
	4: No
	4a: No
	4b: Off
	4c: Off
	3a: No
	3b: No
	3c: No
	3d: No
	3e: Yes
	3f: Yes
	3g: Yes
	3h: No
	3i: No
	3j: No
	3k: No
	4d: Off
	4e: Off
	4f: Off
	4g: Off
	4h: Off
	5: No
	5a: Off
	5b: Yes
	5c: Yes
	5d: No
	6: No
	6ai: Off
	6aii: Off
	6aiv: Off
	6av: Off
	6vi: Off
	6b: Off
	6c: Off
	6d: Off
	6aiii: Off
	7: No
	7a: Off
	7b: Off
	7c: Off
	7d: Off
	7e: Off
	7f: Off
	7g: Off
	7h: Off
	7i: Off
	7j: Off
	8a: Yes
	8b: No
	8c: No
	8d: No
	8e: No
	8f: No
	8g: No
	8h: No
	9: No
	Print: 
	8: No
	9a: Yes
	9b: Off
	9cii: Off
	9dii: Off
	10d: Off
	11: No
	9e: Off
	9f: Off
	10a: Off
	10b: Off
	10c: Off
	9g: Off
	10ei: Off
	10eii: Off
	10eiii: Off
	11a: Off
	11c: Off
	11d: Off
	11e: Off
	11b: Off
	12: No
	12a: Off
	12b: Off
	12c: Off
	13a: Off
	13b: Off
	13c: Off
	13d: Off
	13f: Off
	14: No
	14a: Off
	14b: Off
	14c: Off
	14d: Off
	15: No
	15a: Yes
	15b: No
	15c: Yes
	15d: Off
	15e: Off
	3Other Impacts: 
	4Other Imapcts: 
	5Other Impacts: 
	6Other Impacts: 
	4Cite Source: 
	7Cite Source: 
	Habitat Type: 
	7Other Impacts: 
	8Other Impacts: 
	9Other Impacts: 
	Archaeology: 
	10Other Impacts: 
	11Other Impacts: 
	12Other Impacts: 
	13Other Impacts: 
	14Other Impacts: 
	15Other Impacts: 
	16Other Impacts: 
	17Other: 
	18Other Impacts: 
	13g: Off
	16: Yes
	16g: No
	16f: No
	16d: No
	16c: No
	16b: No
	16a: No
	16h: No
	16i: No
	16j: No
	16k: No
	16l: No
	16e: No
	17: No
	13: No
	17a: Off
	17b: Off
	17c: Off
	17d: Off
	17e: Off
	17f: Off
	17g: Off
	17h: Off
	18: No
	18a: Off
	18b: Off
	18c: Off
	18d: Off
	18e: Off
	18f: Off
	18g: Off
	15f: Off
	3l: Off
	5e: No
	5f: No
	5g: Off
	6e: Off
	6f: Off
	9di: Off
	9ci: Off
	14e: Off
	16m: Off
	10 Impact: No
	Date: July 2018
	Project: Beech Avenue Water Storage Tank
	Part 3 Additional Sheets as Needed:  The Beech Avenue water storage tank has existed since 1947 within a developed area of the City of Niagara Falls. As such, the tank has become familiar to the surrounding residents. Furthermore, existence and operation of the tank does not create excessive noise, pollution, light, shadows, or bird strikes. The tank is located adjacent to the Henry J Kalfas Magnet School which was why Section 16 of EAF Part 2 was answered yes. The tank does not cause any adverse impacts to the school. The new tank will be similar in storage size and look but may be increased in height to provide better water service.  This increase in height will not alter the essential characteristics of the tank and will not create excessive noise, pollution, light, shadows, or bird strikes.  The proposed replacement will be newer, including fresh paint and elimination of any lead paint that may be discovered on the existing tank, and thus its finish is expected to be more attractive.  Replacement of the tank will provide water customers with continued supply of water, adequate water pressure, redundant system storage and firefighting capabilities. Furthermore, during the 30 day response period, only letters were received from the NYSDEC and Niagara County DOH for which, no objections were noted. Therefore, the proposed action will not create any adverse impacts. 
	Upon Review of the information recorded on this EAF: May 2018 Water Tank Study prepared by Clark Patterson Lee Engineers.  Comment letters received from noticed agencies.
	Substantially Mitigated Because of the Following Condition: 
	Part Three - Name of Action: Demolish and Replace Beech Avenue Water Tank
	Part Three - Name of lead agency: Niagara Falls Water Board
	Part Three Responsible Officer: Rolfe Porter
	Part Three Title of Responsible Officer: Executive Director
	Text10: 
	Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: 
	Part Three Date One: 
	Part Three Date Two: 
	Text13: Seth Krull, PE/ Clark Patterson Lee
	Part Three Address: 26 Mississippi Street Suite 300, Buffalo, NY 14203
	Part Three Telephone Number: (716) 880-1256
	Part Three Email: skrull@cplteam.com
	Part Three Maginitude and Importance: Niagara Falls Water Board
	Project EAF Part One: Yes
	Completed for the Project Part 2: Yes
	EAF completed for this project part 3: Yes
	Type 1 Seqr Status: No
	Part 3: Yes
	Print: 
	Date: July 2018
	Project: Beech Avenue Water Storage Tank


